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JoyanMSIOUNE Y
Financial Highlights

JuNIsNUnIUdSdoulnide JUNISRUIAWI:NINIS
Financial Statements in Which Separate Financial Statements
Equity Method is Applied

2558 2557 2558 2557 2556
2015 2014 2015 2014 2013
wan1SANTUIIU (89Uunn) Operating Results ( Million Baht)
S19lASoU Total Revenue 3,003 2,984 3,003 2,984 2,937
flsonmisAiduwnunaurinaenibe
MBia:AnFousIAN (EBITDA) EBITDA 409 542 572 542 534
doundurinlsvinuaiNuiuusBNsoy Share of Profit from Investment in 2) 2 - - -
Associated Company
nnlsans Net Profit 323 328 325 326 338
FIUNWNISHU (3uu1n) Financial Status ( Million Baht)
aunsweisou Total Assets 3,327 3,111 3,330 3,108 2,834
KUAUSOU Total Liabilities 619 629 619 629 599
a‘auvad@ﬁoﬁu Total Shareholders’ Equity 2,708 2,482 2,711 2,479 2,235
dms1dounNIsiiu (Soea:) Financial Ratios (%)
omsInlsans Net Profit Margin 10.78 10.99 10.85 10.94 11.50
HNSIWAMNDUINUIINAUNSWE (ROA) Return On Assets 10.05 10.54 10.12 10.99 12.42
dnsIwanauinumodouvealyfiofu Return On Equity 12.47 13.22 12.56 13.85 15.99
(ROE)
lssioUTUWLZU (UN/AU) Basic Earnings Per Share (Baht) 6.22 6.31 6.27 6.28 6.49
nnlsoruUsuan (UN/Ku) Diluted Earnings Per Share (Baht) 6.13 6.21 6.17 6.18 6.40
YarmMUUnYE (UIN/Ku) Book Value Per Share (Baht) 51.29 47.00 51.35 46.95 42.32
USGN thdu $9Am (UKIBU) 3

Crown Seal Public Company Limited



ANUSNSSUNISUSUN
Board of Directors

unedlswi on (71 U)
Mr.Hirofumi Miki (71 years)
arysi - iydu

Nationality : Japanese

FAMAUY U5e51Unssuns

dndounstioRuluusen* (Sovas)  -lafi-

ANUQFINISHNYN / Us:5RNNSousU

>>  USeym3 Ienenans waylanssuenans
uvVInende WASEDA UspinAdiu

Us=aunisairinaulus:o: 5 U gouriay

et UsesunIsunis usem ehiu 9in (wmw)

UszsuAnaudng U3 Tle leiu n3U Teanad 11t

a o

Useounssuns USEn unenenuAy wuyuaeess $1in
2550 - 2556 N3IUNSHarUTEEIUNTIUNNTUSNG
ustm ale o Tnen S

Position  Chairman

Ratio of Shareholding* (%) -None-

Education / Director Training Courses with |IOD

>> Bachelor Degree of Science and Engineering,

Waseda University, Japan

Past experience of 5 years retroactively

Present Chairman Crown Seal Public Company Limited.
Honorary Chairman Toyo Seikan Group Holdings Limited.
Chairman Bangkok Can Manufacturing Company Limited.

2007 - 2013 Director and President Toyo Seikan Kaisha Limited.

4 s1euuUs=91U 2558
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u1gINw 2uEo1Us (69 U)

Mr. Dhep Vongvanich (69 years)
arysm : Ing

Nationality : Thai

FIIKUY - NTIUNT59aTE Ay T99UTEs1UNTINAT

dndounsiioRuluusun* (Sovas)  -laifi-

ANUQAINISANYN / Us:5RNNSousU

>>  USgyy1wdieanssumans unadnsaluvninendy

Uszaunisnirinunufus:o: 5 U dourag

Yoyl AITUNITDATE LAz TOIUTEEIUNTIUAS
U3 ehAu 919 (W)
Uszou U3 FifidRun wanafn wousindinea nesdeistu $1im
fsnunssumsiianstvg) U3 Yududlne Sain e
SCG Country Executive Director Usgineiisnunu
N533UMNT USEW Inenanafnuaziadiost 100 (i)
Board of Commissioner PT. Indonesia Caps & Closures

Position  Independent Director and Vice-chairman
Ratio of Shareholding* (%) -None-
Education / Director Training Courses with IOD
>> Bachelor Degree of Engineering, Chulalongkorn University
Past experience of 5 years retroactively
Present Independent Director and Vice-chairman
Crown Seal Public Company Limited
Chairman TPC Vina Plastic and Chemical Corp., Limited.
Advisor of the President Siam Cement Public Company Limited. (SCG)
SCG Country Executive Director Vietnam.
Member of Board of Directors
Thai Plastic and Chemicals Public Company Limited.

Board of Commissioner PT. Indonesia Caps & Closures



unwwla Meuwadanus (79 U)

Mrs. Pilai Piemphongsarn (79 years)
anyvi : Ine

Nationality : Thai

AIKUY NTIUNT59852 kag UsyaunssunITnsiadou
dndounsiioRuluusun* (Sovas)  -laifi-
ANUQAINISANWYN / Us:0MNSousU
>>  USgygyw3smstay® gaensaluvninendes/
>>  faoudyTueuan (CPA. NO.2336)
>>  Certified Internal Audit Anfudni
970 Institute of Internal Auditors (CIA. NO.30861)
>> Director Certification Program (DCP)
Jszaunisniringnulus:o: 5 U dourag
Yagliu NITUNTDETE WAz UILHIUNTINNITATIVEDU
VI ehAu 91m (wmnau)
U5E57U U3 0RRLaUALLLUALILY AUTALAUT 91119
NITUNTDATLUALNIINNITATINEDU
UsTm UseiudelnedTan $1dn wmaw)

Position  Independent Director and
Chairman of the Audit Committee

Ratio of Shareholding* (%) -None-

Education / Director Training Courses with |IOD

>> Bachelor Degree of Accountancy, Chulalongkorn University/

>> Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) (CPA.NO.2336)

>> Honorary Certified Internal Auditor from The Institute of

Internal Auditors (CIA.NO.30861)

>> Director Certification Program (DCP)

Past experience of 5 years retroactively

Present Independent Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee
Crown Seal Public Company Limited.
President Audit and Management Consultant Company Limited.
Independent Director and Audit Committee

Thaivivat Insurance Public Company Limited.

Jr —

ungenglo: ngdadls (64 U)

Mr. Yasuo Tsujihiro (64 years)
drysim : tudu
Nationality : Japanese

FKUY ATIUNT
dndounstioRuluusen* (Sovas) -lafi-
ANUQFINISANYN / Us:5RNNSousU

>> USnyqyin3 anvuasugaans Jiyu Gakuen College Usgimadiu
Us:zaunisninunulus:e: 5 U gounay

et N53UNS VSN fhiu 1R (@)

2556 - 2558 Us¥a1unTINnIsuIvTg uiev dudesu lradesa d1in

1Y

2552-2556  Us¥51UATINAITUSING USEW Lauwlu AaTuAesA 9100

Position  Director

Ratio of Shareholding* (%) -None-

Education / Director Training Courses with |IOD

>> Bachelor Degree of Economics Jiyu Gakuen College, Japan
Past experience of 5 years retroactively

Present Director Crown Seal Public Company Limited.

2013 - 2015  President Nippon Closures Company Limited.

2009 - 2013 President Japan Crown Cork Company Limited.

UsBN th3u $9AR (UKIBU) 5)
Crown Seal Public Company Limited



urgoAlyd Inu: (52 U)

Mr. Akiyoshi Toba (52 years)
arys : gdu

Nationality : Japanese

ungasn ¥aryis1ouna (67 U)
Mr. Satit Chanjavanakul (67 years)
arysm : Ing

Nationality : Thai

AMAUY  AFTUAS
dndounnsiioAuluussen* (Seva:) 0.0189
ANUQFINISANWY / Us=aANSousu .
>> VT islvdenans aminends glog Ussinegu/
>> Director Accreditation Program (DAP)
>> Director Certification Program (DCP)
Uszaunisnirinunutus:e: 5 U gounau
Yaqtiu nssunswazdaInnsive) usem /ddu e Wmaw)
President Director PT. Indonesia Caps & Closures
Operating Officer U3¥ iUdou laaawvesa $1in
n33UM3 U3 Unanenuey uuyurlaeds $1in
NFIUNIT UIEN ngsunA 9110
2553-2556  General Manager International Operations
U3 Lawly Astdpesa $ain
509UsE51U U ol Loty wadinea woust ueafiufamsdy
Wwoild Wumes (oide) rin
2509- 2555 fnegdanisivgjerladiuuims vt ’hdu ria (mww)

Position  Director

Ratio of Shareholding* (%) 0.0189

Education / Director Training Courses with I0D

>> Bachelor Degree of Commerce, Chuo University, Japan/
>> Director Accreditation Program (DAP)

>> Director Certification Program (DCP)

Past experience of 5 years retroactively

Present Director and President Crown Seal Public Company Limited.

President Director PT. Indonesia Caps & Closures
Operating Officer Nippon Closures Company Limited.
Director Bangkok Can Manufacturing Company Limited.
Director Petpak Company Limited.

2010 - 2013 General Manager International Operations
Japan Crown Cork Company Limited.
Vice President Toyo Seikan Technical & Administration
Service Center (Asia) Company Limited.

2006 - 2012 Senior Vice President-Administration

Crown Seal Public Company Limited.

s1u91uUs:9U 2558
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AIKUY ATSUNTDATE ey NITUATATIVEDU
dndounsioRuusun* (Sova:)  -laifi-
ANUQFINSANWT / Us:0RNnsousy
>> el (US5§3A9), umninendesssuaans
>> M.Sc. (Textile Technology), University of Leeds, U.K/
>> Director Certification Program (DCP) i;uﬁ 83
Jszaunisninunulus:e: 5 U dourag
Yagtu NSINNTDATLUALNITUNNTATIVADY UNA. W1FU
U5¥51UNTIUNT VLA, Lod 1BY & vefwes ;
N3FUNIATINADY VLA, Lot waia U Taadied
NTTUMIATIIADU UMY, unsaaemnssuidfuudy
NTTUMINTIIADU UNA. ada wiomwosh
ASINNSATIAERU VLA, e aying duiuesd
n351n13 USE vdnming oidy nda e
n551M15 U3 Ine weslall leaded d1im
N33UMS VN winnssuanugs dria
nsINNS USEW eaiid Tewleldy d1in
N551N1S USEM Indaeiu Tsind $1im

Position  Independent Director and the Audit Committee

Ratio of Shareholding* (%) -None-

Education / Director Training Courses with IOD

>> M.A. (Business Administration), Thammasat University

>> M.Sc. (Textile Technology), University of Leeds, U.K/

>> Director Certification Program (DCP)

Past experience of 5 years retroactively

Present Independent Director and the Audit Committee Crown Seal Plc
Chairman SNC Former Public Company Limited.
Audit Committee Asia Plus Group Holdings Company Limited
Audit Committee Chumpom Palm Oil Industry Public Company Limited.
Audit Committee Lalin Property Public Company Limited.
Audit Committee Thai Agro Energy Public Company Limited.
Director Asia Plus Securities Company Limited.
Director Thai Airline Holdings Company Limited.
Director Jamjuree Innovations Company Limited.
Director SPC Home Ideas Company Limited.

Director Witcorp Products Company Limited.



unegAgml yagy (47 U)

Mr. Dhitivute Bulsook (47 years)
arysm : Ing

Nationality : Thai

ms.ddua Asawya (61 U)
Prof.Dr. Suwimon Keeratipibul (61 years)
arysm : Ing

Nationality : Thai

FAMAUY - NITUNNT

dndounnsiioAuUUSEN* (Sowa:)  0.0120

ANUQFINTSANWY / Us:0ANNsousy

>> U3gyay1ln Unn55Aa Babson College Useimmansgausnd

>> USQIRITIMNTINANENT PAINTUNNTING 1§/

>> Director Certification Program (DCP ‘;"u 78/2549)

Uszaunisniringnutus:e: 5 U gounay

Uagliu N33UNT VSN fhAu 911A (@)
599U5E5UNTINATT UD. ATUIWIA uluiaLium
NIFUNT UTEW LaFugu 91im (W)
35UN1S USE Winesy (lyeuaus) e
13305 UTEW 1a3uge leansd 91in
NFTUNT UTEY L33 1inefisa 911in
NIIUNT VTN 1euge nsutls 31iin
N33UN"5 USYW Great Brands Limited
N33UNNT UTEY LATDepuLsIEas (2008) 91110
nysunIs USm Inenss $1im
NIIUNT UTEN UATUIU 9119

2554 - 1.8.2558 NITUNTFIANTT UTEN 1dSuan 9110 ()

Position  Director

Ratio of Shareholding* (%) 0.0120

Education / Director Training Courses with |IOD

>> MBA of Babson College, USA

>> Bachelor of Engineering, Chulalongkorn University/

>> Director Certification Program DCP 78/2006

Past experience of 5 years retroactively

Present Director Crown Seal Public Company Limited.

Vice Chaiman Modern Trade Management Company Limited.

Director Sermsuk Public Company Limited.

Director Petform (Thailand) Limited.

Director Sermsuk Holding Company Limited.
Director Sermsuk Beverage Company Limited.
Director Sermsuk Training Company Limited.

Director Great Brands Limited.

Director Wrangyer Beverage (2008) Company Limited
Director ThaiDrinks Company Limited

Director Cash Van Company Limited.

2011 - Sep. 2015 President Sermsuk Public Company Limited.

FIKUY NTUNTTDETY

dndounsiioRuusun* (Sova:)  -liil-

ANUQFINISANYN / US:5RNNSousU

>> UgygynwasU3aygyien denanssuaans anwnmalulagnismiin

WIeaeElsTan Useinaguu /

>> Director Accreditation Program (DAP i;u 97/2555)

Uszaunisninunulus:e: 5 U dounay

Hagdu  nssunnsBase U3 /v 9iia (umnvw)
o1sdusEdmaivnalulanise s
AREINGIANERT - PNAINTAUIMINGITY
NITUNNTOETE UTEN IvsTilaust Lutned 310m (W)

2540-2554 Q’Lmulm‘uaﬁﬂfrjuégmawmsmmmi
anmanannnssuuisUsznelvelunisussau Codex
Committee on Food Hygiene Gua\ﬂﬂsqmimmimmmi
swiaUssna Sednvhlagefnisanussenni FAO/WHO

Position Independent Director
Ratio of Shareholding”* (%) -None-
Education / Director Training Courses with 10D
>> Doctor and Master of Engineering
(Fermentation Technology), Hiroshima University, Japan/
>> Director Accreditation Program (DAP 97/2012)
Past experience of 5 years retroactively

Present Independent Director Crown Seal Public Company Limited.
Lecturer at the Department of Food Technology
Faculty of Science, Chulalongkorn University
Independent Director President Bakery Public Company Limited.
1997-2011  Representative of the Food Industry Group

The Federation of Thai Industries in Codex Committee
on Food Hygiene of Codex Alimentarius Commission,
Organized by Food and Agriculture Organization (FAO) and
World Health Organization (WHO) of UN

USGN W13U 971R (UKIBU)
Crown Seal Public Company Limited



uedsy ez (62 U)

Mr. Susumu Yamada (62 years)
drys - cgdu

Nationality : Japanese

ugwWIdNIny IFDMSUNS (56 U)

Mr. Pongpanu Svetarundra (56 years)
arysm : Ing

Nationality : Thai

KUY ATIUNT

dndounsfioRuluusan* (Sosa:)  -luifi-

ANUQFINISANWYN / US:0ANNSOUSUY .

>> USaynis Commerce, Un1INgay Keio, Useinaguu

Jszaunisninnonutus:e: 5 U gounay

et N33UM5 VS /U diin (umnvw)
nssuMsuazgInnslng
UTEN UNNBNWAY LLQJUHLLWF‘\LQ@%‘G 1A
nssunsuazdnnisvg) udv Tale leiu (Usemalne) S1in
nssuNs U3EM wind wau ulundu $ida
nssuns Uit Tnavea dla wau afen (Ussiwdlne) $1in

2553 f¥annstvg u3e wind wau Sulundu i

Position  Director
Ratio of Shareholding* (%) -None-
Education / Director Training Courses with I0D
>> Bachelor Degree of Commerce, Keio University, Japan
Past experience of 5 years retroactively
Present Director Crown Seal Public Company Limited.
Director and President
Bangkok Can Manufacturing Company Limited.
Director and President
Toyo Seikan (Thailand) Company Limited.
Director Next Can Innovation Company Limited.
Director Global Eco-can Stock (Thailand) Company Limited.

2010 President Next Can Innovation Company Limited.

s1u91uUs:9U 2558
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KUY ATIUNNTDATE LAZ NTTUNITATIAEDU
dndounsfioRuluusyn* (Sosa:)  -laifi-
ANUQFINISANY / Us:0RNnsausy
>>  M.A. (Economics), Northwestern University, USA./
>> Financial Statements for Directors (FSD 2/2008)
>> Role of the Chairman Program (RCP 21/2009)
Jszaunsnininunulus:o: 5 U dourad
YJagliu NFIUNITDATLURLNTTUNTNTIVAOU U3 EnTU 911 ()
Udnnsens nsgnsamsvieadienuazin
n33uN13 N3satnihvudanaruwiiUszmalng
N3IUNNT USEM Ineasuseiudy $1in
n33un13 UsEM nsdulne $ie (umaw)
NFTUATT SUIAITVIMSTING §1% (Wmvw)
2554 - 2558 509UaANTENTNNITARE NILNTNAITAG

Position  Independent Director and the Audit Committee
Ratio of Shareholding* (%) -None-
Education / Director Training Courses with I0OD
>>  M.A.(Economics), Northwestern University, USA /
>> Financial Statements for Directors (FSD 2/2008)
>> Role of the Chairman Program (RCP 21/2009)
Past experience of 5 years retroactively
Present Independent Director and the Audit Committee
Crown Seal Public Company Limited.
Permanent Secretary of Ministry of Tourism and Sports
Director Mass Rapid Transit Authority of Thailand.
Director ThaiSri Insurance Company Limited.
Director Thai Airways International Public Company Limited.
Director TMB Bank Public Company Limited.
2011 - 2015 Deputy Permanent Secretary of Ministry of Finance



u1986138 uN1AUI (59 U)

Mr. Hisashi Nakajima (59 years)
arys - gdu

Nationality : Japanese

ALY NFIUNTT
dndounisfioRuluusen* (Sova:) lud
ACUQFINSANYN / Us=dmnnsousu
>> USga1e3 IMnIsuasesna uinineas senlnle, Ussmmﬁﬁu
Us=aunisnirinoulus:o: 5 U douriay
aq1iu N99UNNT LA /1AL A0 (WA
.81.2558 - ﬁ@’iﬂu President and Representative Board Director
uim dilileu Tnaaraia 4in
2556 - @.n.2558  Board Director and Executive Operating Officer,
Head of Technical Development Headquarters
s dilileu Tnaaaia 4in
2553 - 2556 Operating Officer LLa:é%ﬂﬂ’]i‘Tﬁ‘Nﬁu Ishioka
s dilileu Tnaaaia 4niin

Position  Director
Ratio of Shareholding* (%) - None -
Education / Director Training Courses with I0D
>> Bachelor of Mechanical Engineering, Hokkaido University, Japan
Past experience of 5 years retroactively
Present Director Crown Seal Public Company Limited.
Sep 2015 - Present  President & Representative Board Director
Nippon Closures Company Limited
2013 - Aug 2015 Board Director & Executive Operating Officer,
Head of Technical Development Headquarters
Nippon Closures Company Limited
2010 - 2013 Operating Officer & Plant Manager, Ishioka
Nippon Closures Company Limited

UNgWSQH a1sdu (56 U)

Mr. Pornwut Sarasin (56 years)
arysm : Tng

Nationality : Thai

KUY ATSNANS
dndounsfioruluusun* (Sova:) 0.0415
ANUQFINISANUYN / Us:oANNSoUsY

>> Wyanln anasmegsia unmingrdeidiiledlen dszimmanigenisny

>> Director AccorediTaTion Program (DAP g'u 45)
Us:=aunisninunultus:g: 5 U gourag
gty n93uNs U3EM thau ain (g
2566 - Thqtiu szaunssunis wdEn netriing 97iia )
nIsuns uazidszauanznssuntsmsaaay uua. agelng i ueud wiia
nasuns 3w Taullsdnd wmes 97 @omnaw)
n93uNng U3 1ait (nauaud) s1im e
nasuNg W5 il @szindlne) 91in
nasuns U3EM gausn aslaludia @Wszinelne) 47in
nesuNTs LS B ueuned aszmelng 91ia
nasuns 1sEW Inewede wldla 1391087 97iin
ngsuNs 5N lnensaaalau ain
nasuns 13 lne 18u-3 41iia
n931NT 13N mSIs Bq 11ad 1fin
aw ST aa
NgTUNTT LUFEN s3ins Bgq Aate Anfin
n33UMS U3EN nqamEtnAL 1R
2542 - 2556 7891/3789UN9UNNS 15N Tneniing anfin

Position  Director

Ratio of Shareholding* (%) 0.0415

Education / Director Training Courses with IOD

>> MBA. Peperdine University, USA /

>> Director Accreditation Program (DAP 45)

Past experience of 5 years retroactively

Present Director Crown Seal Public Company Limited.

2556-Present Chairman ThaiNamthip Company Limited.
Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee
Charoong Thai Wire & Cable Public Company Limited.
Director Home Product Center Public Company Limited
Director AP (Thailand) Public Company Limited.
Director Denso (Thailand) Company Limited.
Director Honda Automobile (Thailand) Company Limited.
Director Isuzu Motors (Thailand) Company Limited.
Director Thai Asia Pacific Brewery Company Limited.
Director Thai Bridgestone Company Limited.
Director Thai-MC Company Limited.
Director Tri Petch Isuzu Sales Company Limited.
Director Tri Petch Isuzu Leasing Company Limited.
Director The Krungthep Thanakom Company Limited.

1999-2013  Vice-chairman ThaiNamthip Company Limited.

USGN W13U 971R (UKIBU)
Crown Seal Public Company Limited



u1elyssls 1n8n: (45 U)

Mr. Yoshihiro Kaitsuka (45 years)
drys - cgdu

Nationality : Japanese

uNEVUNIWS InTASEVY (51 U)

Ms. Napaporn Temeesrisuk (51 years)
arysm : Tno

Nationality : Thai

KUY NSTUNNS

dndounsiioRuluusen* (Sova:)  -lufi-

ANUQFINISANWN / Us:0ANNsousy

>> U3gyyes Armnssumand anvnienssauadesna

uvInends Ninon Ussmadiiu

Us:aunsndriuulus:g: 5 U gounay

et N33UNT VTN EhJU 911R (@)
Henenismaliauas Snwinsgsnnensusyiunmuam
US¥ ehdu 91n (nww)
Manager, Engineering management department,
Production Division U3#w dueu lnaaisesea $11in

Position  Director
Ratio of Shareholding* (%) -None-
Education / Director Training Courses with IOD
>> Bachelor Degree, Department of Mechanical Engineering,
Faculty of Engineering Division, Nihon University, Japan
Past experience of 5 years retroactively
Present Director Crown Seal Public Company Limited.
Vice President — Technical and
Acting Vice President — Quality Assurance
Crown Seal Public Company Limited.
Manager, Engineering management department,

Production Division Nippon Closures Company Limited.

s1euuUs:=91U 2558
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FIKUY @UIYNITUTEN Wag LavuN1IAMENITUNITUTENY

andounsiioRuluusen* (Sewa:) 0.00963

ANUQFINTSANYT / US=9RNsousy

>>  USey1ms AESEANans unnInendusssuenans/

>> Company Secretary Program (CSP)

>> Effective Minute Taking (EMT)

>> Board Reporting Program (BRP)

>> Company Reporting Program (CRP)

Uszaunsniriviulus:o: 5 U dounay

Yaqtu ddnnisatinanunsusem usEm /hdu $1in (nww)
AILNITUTEN USEN ehdu 91iin ()
LAYIUNITANENTIUNITUTEN USEN eh3u 9110 ()

Position  Company Secretary and Secretary to the Board of Directors
Ratio of Shareholding* (%) 0.00963
Education / Director Training Courses with 10D
>> Bachelor Degree of Political Science, Thammasat University/
>> Company Secretary Program(CSP)
>> Effective Minute Taking (EMT)
>> Board Reporting Program (BRP)
>> Company Reporting Program (CRP)
Past experience of 5 years retroactively
Present Company Secretary Office Manager
Crown Seal Public Company Limited.
Company Secretary Crown Seal Public Company Limited.
Secretary to the Board of Directors

Crown Seal Public Company Limited.

HENH 1. nssunsuisng v 13 i ilensdutuimeaseuatissminaiu
2. * usmuesgausa uazynsiidiliussaifinniese
Remarks 1. All above 13 Directors have not family relations.
2. * Ratio of shareholding includes shares of spouse and minor
children.



(WUSKIS
Management

urgoAled Inu: (52 U)

Mr. Akiyoshi Toba (52 years)
arysi : iydu

Nationality : Japanese

fty - {Iansing
andounnsiioruluustn® (Soga:) 0.0189
ANUQFINISANWY / US:35iN1sousi .
>> YS9 midlvdamans umninede ylog Ussinaguw/
>> Director Accreditation Program (DAP)
>> Director Certification Program (DCP)
Js=aunisnirinoulus:o: 5 U dounag
Yaqliu fdan1slvie) uSEm lhiu Sain )
President Director PT. Indonesia Caps&Closures
Operating Officer U3¥ dUUsu laaalvesa 911n
n33UNT U3EM Unanenuay uuyurAeds $1in
NIIUNT VSN nwsuna 3170
2553-2556  General Manager International Operations
U3 LUy ATUABIA 911R
soeUszs1U U3 ol Loty wiadlnea woust weafiuflamsiy
Wwoiia Wumes (eide) rin
25092555 feddanislugieniladiuuims v dhdu 9in o)

Position  President

Ratio of Shareholding* (%) 0.0189

Education / Director Training Courses with |IOD

>> Bachelor Degree of Commerce, Chuo University, Japan/

>> Director Accreditation Program (DAP)

>> Director Certification Program (DCP)

Past experience of 5 years retroactively

Present President Crown Seal Public Company Limited.
President Director PT. Indonesia Caps & Closures
Operating Officer Nippon Closures Company Limited.
Director Bangkok Can Manufacturing Company Limited.
Director Petpak Company Limited.

2010 - 2013 General Manager International Operations
Japan Crown Cork Company Limited.
Vice President Toyo Seikan Technical & Administration
Service Center (Asia) Company Limited.

2006 - 2012 Senior Vice President-Administration
Crown Seal Public Company Limited.

UNANAS gsugu (59 U)
Mrs Suphasri Sutanadhan (59 years)
arysn : Ing

Nationality : Thai

AiinUY - gEmnen1sgd uaznsty
dndoumsfioRuluusen* (Sovas)  -lafi-
APUAINISANYN / Us:5RNNSousU
>> Mini MBA 2¥13NeNaesssuenans
>> USuayns USMIEINa uminenae dadudey CIA. No. 30833/
>> Company Secretary Program (CSP)
>> Effective Minute Taking (EMT)
Uszaunisninnunulus:e: 5 U gounag
2647 - flqifu daunemstiyduaznieiu

13 thau A7e Wwa)
2568 - 19q17u N9IUN19IATIAADL

13 wiided @umaflingd 91 @vnaw

Position  Vice President - Finance and Accounting

Ratio of Shareholding* (%) -None -

Education / Director Training Courses with |IOD

>> Mini MBA Thammasat University

>> Bachelor Degree of Business Administration, Assumption
University, CIA No. 30833/

>> Company Secretary Program (CSP)

>> Effective Minute Taking (EMT)

Past experience of 5 years retroactively

2004 - Present Vice President - Finance and Accounting

Crown Seal Public Company Limited.
2015 - Present Audit Committee

Premier Enterprise Public Company Limited.

UsBN th3u $9AR (UKIBU) 11
Crown Seal Public Company Limited



ungsIu AruniAsud (51 U)
Mr. Ruj Tantsetthi (51 years)
dryvn : Ine

Nationality : Thai

unoluzsls 1ndn: (45 U)

Mr. Yoshihiro Kaitsuka (45 years)
drysim - tydu
Nationality : Japanese

AliKUY - Eien1slsanu

dndounnsiioAuluussn* (Soa:) 0.0019
ANUQFINISANUYN / US:OANTSOUSY

>>  USgygy1lm M3dnnsesdng amninendegsnatuding
Uszaunisniringnutus:e: 5 U gounay

tlaqiiu ganuaenislennu LEn 1Ay 9nfin @
2648 - 2556 AANISENENER 1 UTEN elAu 49in v

Position  Vice President - Plant
Ratio of Shareholding* (%) 0.0019
Education / Director Training Courses with |IOD
>> Master of Business Administration
(Major Organization Management), Dhurakij Pundit University
Past experience of 5 years retroactively
Present Vice President - Plant Crown Seal Public Company Limited.

2005 - 2012 Production 1 Manager Crown Seal Public Company Limited.

s1euuUs:=91U 2558
Annual Report 2015

ALY EB1nensmaila wagdnwnsewiensuseiunmnn

dndounsiioRuluusun* (Sovas)  -laifi-

APUQFUNTSANWN / Us:3RnNsousuy

>> Uy ns enIsudans

auimnssueIesna um ingnds Ninon Ussmadiiu

Uszaunisndrinviulus:o: 5 U douriay

Yagliu gonnensnalauazinwnisggruienisussiununim
U3 eh3u e @)
Manager, Engineering management department,
Production Division u3®v fiudeu lnaaivasa 911n

Vice President - Technical and

Acting Vice President - Quality Assurance

Ratio of Shareholding* (%) -None-

Education / Director Training Courses with IOD

>> Bachelor Degree, Department of Mechanical Engineering,

Position

Faculty of Engineering Division, Nihon University, Japan
Past experience of 5 years retroactively
Present Vice President — Technical and
Acting Vice President — Quality Assurance
Crown Seal Public Company Limited.
Manager, Engineering management department,

Production Division Nippon Closures Company Limited.



UNASWS raadmums:na (53 U)

Mrs. Siriporn Lawattanatrakul (53 years)
arysn : Ino

Nationality : Thai

ALY E81U38n15UIMS

dndounnstioRuluusen® (Sova:) -14di-

ANUQFINISANWY / US:35N1sous

>>  USln AugdAmnTsueans a1 inemansnauianes
PHIANTUNINGS

Js=aunisnirinoulus:o: 5 U dounag

taqiiu fanuenisidvie UFEn dhau 9afin
2657 - 2558 fanuienisung WEn thau 41 @)
2650 - 2556 fannsihegefiasnalszin

15 AU 97iA (Uvna)

Position  Vice President -Administration
Ratio of Shareholding* (%) -None-
Education / Director Training Courses with |IOD

>> Master Degree of Computer Science, Faculty of Engineering ,

Chulalongkorn University
Past experience of 5 years retroactively
Present Vice President - Administration
Crown Seal Public Company Limited.

2014 - 2015 Vice President - Sales Crown Seal Public Company Limited.

2007 - 2013 Infemational Business Manager
Crown Seal Public Company Limited.

unesIdy ASav (57 U)

Mr. Thongchai Srisook (57 years)
aryvn : Tne

Nationality : Thai

AiinUy - §ansiheyana

dndounnsiioAuluusen* (Soga:) 0.0033

ANUQFINISANWY / UszaANSoUsU

>>  USgygy1ei3 $genans anaensaluninede
Us:=aunisninuiulus:o: 5 U gounay

2637 - iy daanistheyana 158 ehau 99n wnaw

Position  Personnel Manager

Ratio of Shareholding* (%) 0.0033

Education / Director Training Courses with |IOD

>> Bachelor Degree of Political Science, Chulalongkorn
University

Past experience of 5 years retroactively

1994 - Present Personnel Manager Crown Seal Public Company Limited
B0 1. fusmens 6 v Lifiauduiusnisaseuaiisemineiu

2. * Jusmuresgausauayyasfidiliussgiin e
Remarks 1. All above 6 executives have not family relations.

2. * Ratio of shareholding Includes shares of spouse and minor children

UsBN th3u $9AR (UKIBU) 13
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wonusuNslsiuu
S9U ANUNIFASUY
V.P. PLANT

Ruj Tantsetthi

WououNsInATA
[o331s [ABN:

V.P. TECHNICAL
Yoshihiro Kaitsuka

wanuounisus:AuAtuNIw
[033[s TABN:

V.P. QUALITY ASSURANCE
Yoshihiro Kaitsuka

wonusuNsULydiianIsNu
ANAS dsugnu

V.P. FINANCE AND ACCOUNTING

Suphasri Sutanadhan

WououNISVIY

V.P. SALES

WoIU2uNISUSHIS
Asws naadriums:na
V.P. ADMINISTRATION
Siriporn Lawattanatrakul

WIRNSWgIUWLW
IS ISouIys
PRINTING MGR.
Wiharn Ruangpetch

wdnnsuhewantlan:

Urysn Insednyadng

METAL CAP PRODUCTION MGR.
Buncha Triyapunjavit

wInnsthewanuwanaan

Usy ansiosAnu

PLASTIC CAP PRODUCTION MGR.
Preecha Suthivechakun

yInnsuhgatuauuniswan
SU ArUNIAsSYF

PRODUCTION SUPPORT MGR.
Ruj Tantsetthi

wInnsuhegdAonssulAsINS
slass WuWrna

PROJECT ENGINEERING MGR.
Chalothorn Pimpisal

WIRNNsUeBFoNssuNalU

NISHU ASKHSTY

GENERAL ENGINEERING MGR.
Karoon Treehirun

Wnnsuheddeiia:waun

WUANA IASWIWIA

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT MGR.
Punsak Kaorapapong

winnisdrgds:=Auaruniwulan:
IUNYIOSSTU BIAYLUSIA

QUALITY ASSURANCE METAL CAP MGR.
Benchawan Channarong

wnnsthaus:auarunwuwanasan
Alvda: Inln

QUALITY ASSURANCE PLASTIC CAP MGR.
Kiyohisa Kaito

gannsthednygiia:n1suu

ANAS gsugnu

FINANCE AND ACCOUNTING MGR.
Suphasri Sutanadhan

wnnsthgssivss:InA

Unen as95u1ws
INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS MGR.
Nittaya Sirijariyaporn

wnnsthevigluds:ina
Ungn ds9suws
DOMESTIC SALES MGR.
Nittaya Sirijariyaporn

nnsthgowiwuulouny
ofivn ansna

CORPORATE PLANNING MGR.
Apichat Sathirakul

wannsthuande
unad ansna

PURCHASING MGR.
Malinee Sathirakul

wnnstheansauinA
91AU AJouKil

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY MGR.
Arkom Sanguanmoo

wnnsthaunna
S8y ASV
PERSONNEL MGR.
Thongchai Srisook

InN1sdUNIavIUNISUSEN
unws INDASEY

COMPANY SECRETARY OFFICE MGR.
Napaporn Temeesrisuk

gInnsdunmsovdeunelu
9sSUWN duUs:ans

INTERNAL AUDIT OFFICE MGR.
Wannapa Somprasit
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: Kawasan Industri MM2100.
JU. Madura | block LIO,Kel. Cikedokan
Cikarang Indonesia

- wanLazImUngEwanadn

: (62) 021-3860888

: (62) 021-3520908

: 16,375 vu (Revduowaz 25 vewuanvziden)

: Yuandyy

- 170/87 evensleeunaned 1 9u 32 auufyaAen
ARl UUNARDUAY LIAARBAAY NTUVINY 10110

: WARUATIIMUNBNTUTNANERN

: 0-2648-6100

: 0-2648-6199

: 140,000 %fu (Aeluseeay 10 vasuannziden)

: Viuandey

Name
Type of Business

Registration No.
Authorized Capital
Paid-up Capital
Par Value

By Dividing into

Address
Telephone
Fax

Homepage
Company Secretary

Company Registrar

Independent Auditor

Legal Consultant

Crown Seal Public Company Limited
Manufacture and sale of Crown Caps,
Pilfer-Proof Caps, Maxi Series, Plastic Caps and
Composite Caps

0107537000416 (Bor Mor Jor 288)
528,000,000 Baht

528,000,000 Baht

10 Baht

Ordinary Share 52,000,012 Shares
Preferred Share 799,988 Shares

5 Soi Rangsit-Nakornnayok 46, Prachatipat,
Tanyaburi, Pathumthani 12130

(662) 533-0450-9

(662) 974-1118

www.crownseal.co.th

Ms. Napaporn Temeesrisuk

Tel: (662) 533-0450-9 # 638

E-mail: napaporn@crownseal.co.th

Thailand Securities Depository (Thailand) Company
Limited. 93 Rachadapisek Rd., Dindaeng, Dindaeng,
Bangkok 10400

Tel : (622) 009-9000

Fax : (622) 009-9991

Ms.Pimjai Manitkajohnkit and/or

Mr.Sophon  Permsirivallop, and/or

Ms. Rosaporn Decharkom, and/or

Mrs. Sumana Punpongsanon,

EY Office Limited

(Previous Ernst & Young Office Limited) 33 rd Floor,
Lake Rajada Office Complex 193/136-137
Ratchadapisek Rd., Klongtoey, Bangkok 10110

Tel : (662) 264-0777 Fax : (662) 264-0789-90

S.AT. Associates Legal & Tax Co., Ltd.

444, 4" Floor, Olympia Thai Tower, Ratchadapisek Rd.,
Samsennok, Huay Kwang, Bangkok 10310

Tel : (662) 541-4214-6 Fax : (662) 541-4200

Juristic Person Where the Company’s Shareholding at least 10%
PT. Indonesia Caps and Closures

Address

Type of Business
Telephone

Fax

% Shareholding
Type of Share

PETPAK Co., Ltd.
Address

Type of Business
Telephone

Fax

% Shareholding
Type of Share

: Kawasan Industri MM2100. JI. Madura | Block LIO,

Kel. Cikedokan Cikarang, Indonesia

: Manufacture and Sale of Plastic Caps

: (62) 021-386-0888

:(62) 021-352-0908

: 14,375 Shares (25% of Registered Capital)
: Ordinary Shares

: 170/87, 32™ Floor, Ocean Tower 1 Bldg,,

New Ratchadapisek Rd., Klongtoey,
Bangkok 10110

: Manufacture and Sale of Plastic Bottles

: (662) 648-6100

: (662) 648-6199

: 140,000 Shares (10% of Registered Capital)
: Ordinary Shares
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Company’s Overview

1. Company Business Overview

Crown Seal Public Company Limited is a manufacturer and distributor of Crown Caps, Pilfer-Proof Caps, Maxi-
Crown, Maxi-Caps, Maxi-P, Plastic Caps and Composite Caps used as bottling and container seals for products namely
carbonated drinks, milk, beer, liquor, soda, drinking water, chicken essense, bird’s nest and medical supplies including
the hand-held capping machine and Maxi-Cap Sealing machine. Furthermore the company also earns the revenue

from the Printed Sheets Service.

Crown Seal Public Company Limited was established in 1968 by receiving technological supports from Nippon
Closures Co., Ltd., a company in Toyo Seikan Group Holdings Ltd. of Japan. With the high quality products and
sufficient production capacity, the company has distributed the products to leading customers both in country and
overseas with the sales revenue of over 2,800 Million Baht per year at the present. Major shareholders are in the
packaging industrial and beverage group: such as; Nippon Closures Co., Ltd., Toyo Seikan Co., Ltd, Boon Rawd Brewery
Co., Ltd., ThaiNamthip Co., Ltd, Sermsuk Plc., and Green Spot Co., Ltd.

Throughout the operational period of being engaged in the business of caps and closures packaging, the company
has developed and built up long standing relations with the customers by firmly adhering to the productions of
quality products and create satisfactions to the customers which, in this respect, leading technology from Toyo
Seikan Group Holdings, Limited is used in the productions. In addition, the company has still devoted its utmost
effort and firmly determined at all out endeavor possible to step forward in becoming the leader in packaging in

the future.

2. Significant Change and Development

Crown Seal Public Company Limited was registered for incorporation as a juristic person under the category of
a limited company on 26 April 1968 with the initial registered capital of 100,000,000 Baht divided into 10,000,000
ordinary shares with par value of 10 Baht each. The company was established through a joint venture of a domestic
beverage production companies with Berli Jucker Co., Ltd., and Toyo Seikan Kaisha Co., Ltd., where providing academic

and technical assistances on the productions of Crown Caps, Pilfer-Proof Caps, Maxi-Caps and Plastic Caps.
The company was granted a listed company in the Stock Exchange of Thailand on 30 December 1977.

On 2 February 1994, the company made a registration converting its status to a Public Company Limited in
accordance with Public Company Limited Act, B. E. 2535 (1992), under the Registration No. Bor.Mor.Jor.288 (PLC.288).
The Registration Number is currently changed to 01075370004 16.

The Year 201 :

» There was no significant change. Other than that, the company bought an automatic warehouse building and equipment
from Bangkok Can Manufacturing Co., Ltd., at the price of 45,422,145 Baht and the ownership was transferred from
such company on 31 August 2011.

s1u91uUs:9U 2558
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The Year 2012
« The Company increased the capital in Petpak Co., Ltd., twice, thus, accounting for a total of 180,000 shares at
450 Baht per share, hence totaling amounting to 81 million Baht which consequently resulting in the company to have

its shares in Petpak Co., Ltd., increased to a total of 260,000 shares or 18.6% of the total number of the shares.

The Year 2013 :

» Toyo Seikan Kaisha Co., Ltd., changed its structure and renamed it to Toyo Seikan Group Holdings Ltd., and transferred
all 5,280,000 shares of Crown Seal Public Company Limited or 10% of the total number of the shares to Toyo Seikan Co.,
Ltd., which is a subsidiary company that its shares were held by Toyo Seikan Group Holdings, Limited since 1 April 2013.

» Japan Crown Cork Co., Ltd., the major shareholder of the company in the totaling number of 19,843,338 shares or

37.58% of the total number of shares changed its name to Nippon Closures Co., Ltd., since 1 April 2013.

» The company sold its 120,000 shares in Petpak Co., Ltd., at the price of 483.48 Baht per share to Toyo Seikan Group
Holdings Ltd., leaving the company’s shares in Petpak Co., Ltd., remaining at 140,000 or 10.0% of the registered capital.

The Year 2014 :
» The company has established a joint venture with Nippon Closures Co.,Ltd. and Davlyn Steel Corporation (Hong Kong)
Co.,Ltd. named PT. Indonesia Caps and Closures to manufacture caps and closures in Indonesia with the registered capital

of 5,750,000 US Dollar, the number of shareholding at 14,375 shares or 25.0% of the registered capital.

The Year 2015 :

« There was no significant change.

3. Ownership Structure of the Company in Associated and Affiliated Companies
Company’s Name Type of Business Type of Share Registered Capital % Sharesholding

Associated Company
PT. Indonesia Caps and Closures Plastic Caps Common 5.75 Million USD 25.0

Affiliated Companies

Petpak Co., Ltd. Plastic Packaging Common 140 Million Baht 10.0
Heritage Stoneware Co., Ltd. Ceramic Kitchenware Common 100 Million Baht 10.0
Bangkok Can Manufacturing Co., Ltd.  Easy open end, Common 1,800 Million Baht 1.6

283 pieces can

Remark* Heritage Stoneware Co., Ltd. stopped its operation since 2008.

4. Relation between the Major Shareholders Business
The company receives technology supports from Toyo Seikan Co., Ltd. and Nippon Closures Co., Ltd. of Japan. As a result, the
company paid the royalty fee by percentage of net sales amount of each product along with other expenses if necessary for

technicians coming from Japan.

USGN W13U 971R (UKIBU)
Crown Seal Public Company Limited



aNUTUENISUSNOUSSND

anunUzYoYWaONTUA

WU (CROWN CAP) ilurhTnniinuin viunanuiumaniadeudntugd angluydeiaguindesiunisi @ dieln
wiuIzasaNUSnTIAUn ATy vsendndarinelunlad Jegtuldninvinussgindean (Jes lwan undumdes

Unakel

WnagonuUaou (PILFER-PROOF CAP) liUaniinuainden finunduitetosiunisuasuduau vnanusueaiiles
dnvusUludnuaziensinszuen dseelslaeseusenindnhiiureuh nmeluyimetantesiunissi@y liluady wanzeuy
Maglintinuinussqungnay 1A3eRungenas @51 e lundeiuvasudadie 19Usdnlddnleuslnalivusluasriied

WAANLNTFULATAIINIUNIST AU LA

wawanadn (PLASTIC CAP) JurUnniinviniindslagldnanafinedy augudud dswuuimansauiunisldeug
wanssiunaneUszan anvaslaevalivew dsesiudulaeseu wazlisesusszninsdrhivveudiie Wudydnvalnn
Hgniandaninnisussy dmanaingnesnwuuliilaladeg 1dUagladnidieuslaalivualuasiuses Jagdu useny

fiwanafnraneviiniionouauaInufeINsvesgna Laun

o

- thwanafnaliadiianuniintesiunssidy dmsulitaniinvinussquidnan vsonaniaeiiiIuNTEUIUNITUIIYIE
PauMQiad WU 91 Ul LATERANU TGS

- thwanafnalinliiTanuaiindesiun1siady Mesnuuualiaunsadesiunisiidulalaglideserdetanuninguly

Y
o A

dmsu Mindinvinussqunny unald

o =

- thwanadinvinldfiTaquniintesiun1ssidu dmSundndaueiiNunszuIUNITUTIIILUMIE 1IUW UL ¥

99

o =

- thwanafnvlinliffaguaiindesiun1siadu wen1sussglussuudasniio (Aseptic)
WI2OUKOULINBASIDU (MAXI CROWN) LlurhUandinuanfivihainusumansntuguazuinses aneluysieian

Jeaiunsiidu auduivelifvnwnudaliig dJesfunmsihnduinldiniuazsnsasuududliauysaiuuy wngay

- Ve = a o Cod

nazldUnnilnuansioeliudiusngeg

WDUKOUIONBUAU (MAXI CAP) JurhUnninuaniivinainuruegiiiloniaiudniugluazuinsesnieluyiie Tan

niintoeiun1sidu wenanauaudinaluimdeuduriwmundinasiwds Sallnaaudfmunzdmsundaduafdoaiu

q

q

Pluinfirnudugs vieenvulunatsnuldlaedliduadn wu dinu es g91 dmald

WDUKOULINBW  (MAXI-P) usUnninuanfivhanudusgiiloudniugluazuinses neluuseTandesiunis

$38u AauautRlpealumdeudulamuwlindudl sniinswwnunlifslaaeuanegiidendunaadin anunsadesiu

s v <

mstaeuludum waswngdmsundnsurindesnanulilunfndenutugdeedliduady wu didan e g51 dnald

winoulwaa (COMPOSITE CAP) WlusUaniinysznoumeaasaiy Lawn é'hmﬁ%ugﬂé’fwwmaaﬂlﬁu uazlaulany

AULY anunsaldnuiunsEuIuNSUSTIdsiuNIsEIWemeALTaugs inrdwsundndnringugUlianie, Sun vie

@

HAnATnTinsInwanwainnseanseavgdlaluegned

s1u91uUs:9U 2558
Annual Report 2015



InSowlinwWonduuuAulen l@suniseenuuuiluiimsansandniilfuiuainiviinen Jadestunissilua

a o  ea ' v | aevi a3 o .:4' Y 1
GUE]QNamﬂm‘ﬂmUﬁﬁﬁ!a%ﬂqﬁﬂu\LﬂL‘Uuaﬁn@@ ISUQWEJQJU']‘VIUFWLUWLﬂaauaqﬂlﬂagﬂ'Jﬂ

INSoowlinNWIDNE  1JuadesniiniitAerssuuiauanfasnlutid arunsondnlaneludindudd faudingasiig

2 Ao = o Yy oA a a ) a o  ea v 'Y
LA HLLLNYN IﬂEJNLlﬂﬂUmﬁﬂiﬂaﬂqﬂﬂﬂigﬁV}ﬁﬂq‘W E‘mlﬂiﬂLﬂUiﬂ‘H']NamﬂﬂJ‘V]‘WUiﬁﬁ}ﬂ']EJIUIVQQ?’]QJJHW@QIWU']U

PWUSMSWUWIWUlak: v liuinisindeuuasiundainanenieg asuuwiulavsuazuiuegiiiloy wWislignen

lTugUidududi visil usen ddiuinisluniseenuuuasaissuiiuishessuunisdaviiviuadevilrnuiuideaunn

[l
—

[rsvasoselauoousiny Tus:g: 3 U Awuw

2556
auun auun auun

snelndns

1. Nanuazv18rINBUL 2,680.65 89.28 2,623.78 87.92 2,641.65 89.94
2. %JUT\S]INLLﬁﬁﬂEJLLBjuﬁQJﬁ 162.04 5.40 157.12 5.26 142.80 4.86
3. iwalﬁ?)'u* 159.84 5.32 203.48 6.82 152.64 5.20
gonsmelanusunITRu 3,002.53 100.00 2,984.38 100.00 2,937.09 100.00

AHIEAG - uEaeeasuM iU lddug wu meldannaneesiag seldauinig wazdu 9

NNSQAALANNDNSLELTU

naueieshulul 2558 l¢Sunansenuaniladenisduidievesuilon  mnanmasugiatinsst Jademediy
uleveniesgludesmasswaniniinsusutuluteiusnuesd 2558 Jaduandudinums iy e1ems 911 Ssmane
anmgiomafiudsuntadld finmedeudenniidusnlinsmuggma Useneutuihmeludeulifismesemeainunsnssy
Foilisznsdnlvgonidsdouasiniay  nsnsdumugiannniasgleensiinsnisumeneldliiusmuuas
YIEUEIINTT aansatisussuarszaedymidseiuniie uinmsiiaudnuesismandseiiieniu Taiinansemuiu
ffadevossznsdnlvgvesszme  wiSgazimanszdumstuineludiedmdmesd Taonsliavsusslosinanid
91ns Mdunsnszdunsidaresudug snningugmamnsseiesy  asiduiiduledoatuldunaamsvieilenddl

Paneannvuilaeunul 2557

agslsfinunaaiaiesiuniglulszina iinsusuiuazusunagvdlundazUssiamiaiesi Inefimsdaadunisuelie
nssfuauosmste finsoonudniudilulg waendnfasifanzasuslaangutimaeinntu eveenain winan
ilmsutetugs wignanseliq Aflenumdonfiasdunutsty Tasusadlenalunisudniniesiuiiodwenludsman
sn9q Aifanufesluedosufiogunmussguaaut Swaanguiiiinsueiesedisioes Inefusznaunsmelvsiq 7
Fnenmlunsainsuususivenueazs3UNUssy eusmsmsuantiliusslevigegn

iwsospllildusanssed dinsimsiivlaeasinnnindosas 4 lngluunsngundniost Wy in3esiundous iseshuyinds
thuufndes \rSosNAuANUTIIINT Saundndusivdndifinsiule uazinisverenandsesnldediwiorlos dmsy
\P0sRLUTIIY Tnsudsiunazannegiudmiuieiessuiiussguin PET iundn duedesudiinisudsdugs udnaalsl
Idulnegneiiann laun

USGN W13U 971R (UKIBU)
Crown Seal Public Company Limited



AAALATEIRNYY BellnsdaaSunisnesellawnaenial wardiysaseinisds SMS Jemnuldiiiedalyn ielvinaiainig
AudwazAndn dwunaintauvin PET dinsvengiegwiaiilosazinansglvgq dveremdainudn ieiadeniny

Ioi3guvesnisdndming ielinseunquyniiunlulszime

Tngnmsiugaanssuasesnulul 2558 ladidnsnisiiuladusiosas 4 fefesay 10 Iuegivanamnssuuarn1sudedy

YDIATDINULAATUTZLAY

aanaesedluglineendeu Inmsivladulvluiemadesiuiunegluiseme Falugied 2558 nusnluvaneyssme
flanmagiafivssi wazdinnudumuresditu sgslsifusemeluginied wu wih Geauy an dulaii@e Adungy

Usgmaiiduiaulavesthamuiazdregrunmandn viedmduiusiinglunisinisamu
NagNsNIvMSsaaNquovusEny ul 2558 Javd

1. ATUMWYDOWAONTUN
Ui Sulsviedanulunisaudugsinielinissusesnunmssuunuiieg Tussdvaina lngusens dnsimun
wazsnusEULNLTRIUTIN Tiaenadestudeimuavesssuuiusesnmuninmariuetisiaides ileliuilaldan gnéay
Ie5uaudisinanm danudasade wsnzaudmiuaudvsinuivesgndn wazdulemaliuieme lasududumilwes

' '
A a

msdweuinsoshuninunng drnuvasndie feleguslnnegrsauysal laun

STUUUIMNIARNIN SO 9001 : 2008 kazszuuMsdinnssuaawnden 1SO 14001 : 2004 Fléiin1sussmeld Version
2015 Tuidiouduenou 2558 13t Sedndeiiuszuuimsaunmdniunseusy welvdmnudmnudilsluseaziendl
mafisifunazdneusunelussdng ilewrenaamienlunsuenissusesssuuUTmanaAIm 1SO 9001 : 2015 WArs¥UY
msdanssnudannden 150 14001 :2015 Tuddald

FPUUTUTDIANUABAABYD9911T SO FSSC22000:2013(Food Safety System) $au095zUUUTMNIANUADAAE
91913 15O 22000:2005 waglusunsuiiuguves PRPs dwitlsanunanussasfasifldituomms PAS 223:2011 (Public Availability
Specification) szUUNTIANITETIUINBLAZAUUADANY TIS 18001 wazszUUNTIANITeTIeutElazANUaoniY (BS
OHSAS 18001:2007, 1an. 18001-2554)

X aw o a o a a v o o A .
weaNNLUIEN Semsiinsanliunsudnnelaszuunmsdnnmsauanuagiiluanuusznaunis (Good Manufacturing
Practice - GMP) $¥UUNTIATIEMBUATI8LALYAINGANABIAIUAN (Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Point — HACCP)
= 6 ¥ o RPN 4 4 o 9 a a ] = o
Fatuszuunliivanuuszneumsgnane msiaziaiesdia szuumstsssnvninauuuynauilausiy (TPM) Tagiinisin

54 waz Kaizen Wundnnsiugiu Wieaseenudeiuwazanuiulanegndt lunislindndarivesusems

2. Anus M
U3eme Mdiflugsivegndlusdlawasidusssy  nmsimunsandulvsgsaumnauna tnefinsvunusiandmig
dudniugniegnsainane ilelriaenadosiumiuadeulmvowain wasinnumnzauiunsudsunlasmavesingiv
wdn 1wy usuwdn wivegiiden Wananadn sududunuvdnuessdndast uenaind Sdimsvssdiuiasiinsgiiions

Uiy nsdindnisasaiiessasadmiheluszesnaidimun . viensdesdisiudssyaiiaiauesian Fadaglu

v A

andidunguuitn NsgndnelulsemenazgndnsnsUseme laldszuunisussyasaniuegiuwnsvaty

s1u91uUs:9U 2558
Annual Report 2015



3. AUUSMS
U3t Wimnudndnyds deduiusnmsufsenineuisn uazgnin dadunagndddymanmsaaaifiodtuaiianin
Audfuuuuin Tasnmsneuauasarudosnisgndn femsuandudnfidamnmiarnsliusnsiia vaneunsune sewing
M58 uazndannse dnsuanidsuanuy uazunsuanudesnisvesgnin suluusglovilunsihanianuiuuss
Fufuazuinisvesuisny Binsafumnudiosnisvesiidamegiaue  Fssufsmnusaielunsiannadnsasisuuuulnie

WDABYBAIINAT MUK U9 LAL

usnanfinnumeiazimugniaiaueudy vitn Ssdifinnuuiniameaia Aanudiunalundsfasiveaine
anmnsaussgdnet demdeuliuinisnsada danseusuiiioiinyuanusiferiundndusiliiuyaainsvosgnd Tae
naeat 2558 UFEM IFsuResiangnénvilulssmauasinsssmas uusnnlmdwinsevsunnuludemEndost anm
m3la nsldau swdsnisifivshwussydasinewihluldou  eusumauualiiuiivenudiends dedeuiizavesgn
dielifiladngninagldsueufionelalumslinandusivosisng wiouidarhsudoyaiioligaddunansadeusias

ATILAZIIINAMNTIVDE9ABLTDY

dmsuaunsuuds InsguanarUnsssnwsavudeasuivny Wegluanmiwvanzauiunisidau Tdseuu secure
lock tvelyirnudulasieandinduaazlignilalusenininisouds  InggnAtanansauiasnssudumlaviui mnnuay
devneues Secure Lock faunisnyiasuiilssanugndn wenandfinnusiunisauds dannundoulunsufuinulnduly

mungszileuvedgndn Siudsdinisdngunsalanudasnsiesieg auiignAtiivunegeasuau

U3En Diusiinsfifinnudrwgimunisuudantieatuliuiem, aansadededuilignanlamuimun - uaziiiy

anupgaasRItunsUTsMsdweulitiinuazan 3057 Ieeluinsgriuieiuiuuiemm

4. MSWoULNWaQNTUN
LﬁaL‘TJumsmmagmmiﬁi’mmaiﬂq'qmamnﬁmm%ﬁuﬂasmwﬁﬁmmi@mm PET Tud 2558 us¥mv laviins
Andsanomsnankmanandniuingy via 29/25 Faduhiithiminu Weiuwasveegrunsnsludmantinfuuss
0 PET Gadumaafiving ssliinefidauutammanssainuneu uenani dildRaismentsndalmanafindmiuszuy
UTIuULUAeALTe (Aseptic filling line) wionifufindunTasfiusinanaiin ieifisdanuaunsalunimouaussausenis
nsvasgnénldetnsnsounqu Tl InaramuaTasts Laser dwsudavinlusluduldth wagnisfakendes Video
Inspecting Device (VID)lensiadundnnsinliiaenndesiudermuavesgnanlfesnadiuszdvsnm e lignandulaindudn

Rdaavazarunsalaulaogld

dwsungurlane ladnisveeidniseand miundndaeicindes iesesiunainaIeanundeus ARy
WATDPNUTIYTOU  wazATRINNGNE FalimsiAuladeaiiles vwananielulssinalareaiadislseing  Bnnsdnwins

amuiiefnAuAIasuNd miungurilans Wiesessunsiiule wavanunsasessumsiusnisauadouiiu talueuian
N0 KNSSUIla:MSILLTU
1. yunaoanaua:onsIMsIaulo
Tt 2558 Wuana1nvesussAimarlany Alduinuiaum fgnsinsulauinnindesas 4 Weieuiul 2557 39

= o Ao a Yy oA A Y 2 A A o o A A & ] 4 A a s
FANMUNITNNAT IWEJﬂEjlW]lIﬂ']iLWUIG\DL@LLﬂ LAFBNINUUND LAY Lﬂiamuﬁgmaﬂ LAIBNAULNABLET bATDNANLUYT LLazfﬁﬂ VUL

USGN W13U 971R (UKIBU)
Crown Seal Public Company Limited



'
d

Mpsenudning Insiulaianaduussaduaiviauiy  widniswulegduussadueivin PET Alvainvaeaunaussyln

1%

duslaadonte Bnvissiadmheluusuaussaiindifssiuesesfunussyuiani 9nnsnussdasmatainlasuay

e

'
a a

feuiiutu nansaueiinsoshuyiaiie Sudonliussydurinanafnlugulunisvenenain Usznouiuduyulaesiuweussy

AugnatadnATwurldusinnnunwil kazn1svudwAdauiny AlnuaAaasiILINNn

= 1

PNANNALFRINGIAEanl nardnnIANSINERIANT Ylimawevesuilaavam Jsdemalinisuslnawesesn

Lidiulawiiens w3eshuifinisdiulalauwn Winn Fadanudnlusesanie uinfinnswiaduas findauasdmedudium

Y

o w

1n mlsanmstmieduegiuusunaeaduddy

o

v
v A s

\wioshuneanaged Nudesuavasn Tud 2558 dnsudeduisuuse dmsusufsusuiuuussadadilvaenndesiv

q

=% '

ngszlouvesniasy swiaielidifenguduilan wasnisadeansewanianiseann lbilugisesmdwesd 2558 I3

WI9TUAUBENITUTY hazhBIRnR AR UNTTINUREIRaLTDY

' ' v
a ' Y aa o v A P

wseshungugUlnuasSiun Fallgrugndnidmaswe dnsiulanuurzaed Jainsduaiunisuigediesaiiodlugig

q q

' '
o = o

wANadAty e Weldiuassnmanvaindnsuriuaznongmalundnsiuriivinganiavidende liiuauiidfy

pamdnsuUTTATMINanaRntul 2558 Swmsdidnsinisvenedinnninesar 6 wazddiwwilduivlnetgieliien
dm3UT 2558 FranATesRuiinsnansIuduasunIsnatneg19deliewmannl Iaan Lan Wan uax  TINBINTIRUSENS
iN1sER OEM dusundndnaitnd  n1svensgiun1snanluginiasiigg vesusesme lnan1susmsdnnistsssulunimeigg
Tglenuvannvanglumsude ieaneldinglunisvuduaznmsdndhenisiiy/anUsinaussy dieliihiannguguilan

o w o o

wazsUnensly sport marketing udslunislawanusendnsius uazlasanizegsdslumslianuddydmnsunisvens

o

nandseanludasemealuginig Wewseudmiunsveegiunisuanlueuian

2. aMwMSLIOTU
nMsdaEin1ensdn uaznisdeansiilinsuuau vihlinnsd msasplugnaeduildognsagnin sanda laiviuusd
Tuwnsgpamnssuaiosdy fleuasirsannafatedomuanitisudoya waswudsionsrnisdldandie 8n
fansimumeluladnissdn nsaauauamn veusasrdnfeglunsguilndifesty inovausddnng aely
sniiuteiuld Aoglddnasomanadenules mawdsustasdisiu Jadulenmawasdediialunsvtonamidlulspna uas

oiinanae TnewnzUsenaluginiae@eny iueeniedld Falugrunisdweniidrdyreuiems lugrsaniinuu

U3ENY Ansuannunisalveswmainegiae uaskiinfdsiuuiem dudeu lraawesa 31dn lumsidugiunisudn Tu
giinadnundndusiuiseie ieuimsdunuliamnsausiuiuguisiifidnenmainussinadusg uanani Hafinw
ganslunisuenegunsnelugigramnsauiaieadslmig Tnsduien duveu lraawesa $1in Tarwaiuayulunis
fimumanfae eleduaslamiuanusalunisuvedu uasfisdiunsesmanludmanaluie viogugndluaiq egnsde

\iag

3. wollusshv
luanmiesyghaninisveasiednesiailioannust 2557 inlunainniasnulul 2558 lifndAnageniaianisalld

vaaangdin Tutislasunai 1 wazlasunain 2 veed IanuedeubmluEensuiudnnndgsuazdes In1sisen1sudn

s1u91uUs:9U 2558
Annual Report 2015



Huflewsunsneunisususnmn® wasssensuninfeu vildmanainstusaluszesnmdun windwmiulugasnsed
vianansuilaaiimnsen Jehlinanneiesinlnesuinisivlsligannin egralsiam wdostuundundes 1a3eq
Auindeus wndnafuyinds wdesiuiieaua wiesiuthnaldl thayulns vieflsiduiianied Ssnalundnfasiildsuns
nouuINgUilan dmsuiasesiunussquan Aesiviamsihlusludulunsduadunisue Wednwdiuasemmann vae
Fenfuguszneunsilimuddylunswaunansusiing diaussengaaaidumadenliiugusliag ilesnungugnin
w1kl

\ATDIALLEANDTRd WavdT lsuransenuannIsUTunBassnanialuaselusn Fehlvisandminelinisuiuaaiu
wazdnisauauanaasslusengudeou  nMsddawenisve waensingsudevlumslavanyssnduius  §useneu
nsnelngRwwenegiunisudnludgaamnssunsehulssiamiug  iamuiinaiemndalmd  n1smiusiinsiieni

OEM wisensmiusiuianisiiodun1sveneguinsing

dwsuindaniidnanin Indsiudnisdulavemalniu AEC Jalinsvenegiunisantudiussmeiioutou Wy Geeuny
w1 Bulefli@y a1y USEnm Aslainmswlenununuiinidinmnaandndaailimatain dundetegiifley wesessuluyn
naundndueieTeR TIndinsvenenaaludoininedens Jusendesds Falin1sveneiivesenamnssuniosulufiams

LRea!

4. AWENNNETOORNDINUIUAITOTUS KL

nafnUssreasygRitedou (AEC) shlsiglmeildsuamuadlinnuiussmaiidaiufadneamlunisues
FIuNTHER N3UEMI Nednsmne wasihdsdeditumama VilfnanaeTesiulundaedanufngn fudnfennglsy
oLu3N 1B 1Wu 1n1vid Gu Fu Buidle Warwalaielfidugudmsunsudn esmiheluglinauavdseenludsgiine
duq fuszneumsmaeneiimsvenemdsnisidn nieutvaulafiavasuhmsuanussyiusiiiefiozeuguiuny anay
o9 waziileainsrnuudaunsaveagsia vausiearuldvnifusiinsfisidnenmiiioains supply chain Audaunss fRveanis
wiviudsdldfnmnuindududstunelig vy wisdunsaeiusinmenisifleguuiiuguresnnududefifie
fu msfidiusnwiidregniuazinisioansedisialioanngan asdunmedesiuiiuumn dmunadruvesduieiu

Y

selnle

Uit Idunsatiuayumamatieann vish Tuveu Taaawesa S1in @alduuddvlueieves v lalsledu nfu
Toansd 310 finduntesdnussaiusilulsmadin) lugusiiduforumdnuandudmeneamaluladnsdnsuiuady
wouaanmAnSausilyn sueufesnisresing ImsuanivdsuiarBuianyaansisaesuiens toduadng
Fnenmuasiefiunue fusuihendn deUssiunan wasfumaliadolifinsdemsiuegaiiussAnamuag Sty

anunsainlasuslashunanelulsemasazaneusemne

5. A wdUU1dN9=DauANauNU
ussSuTnanaRn uarusTafariussam flexible packaging aglduarudisufuluogieraiiies ionouauas
waAnssuvearfuilanlunsaztsery  Tavazdlvluynmanaliiazsdunanedesiu vienaindufgulnauilnaussian
iee dmsunanmadosiuviianssaniendy Audunidunsemanluuinguiuilan Wisme Indaduisinenm uay
naiulvesussafusinanain uazussafamivseim flexible packaging 3dldiiFnwiilawsnnsverenandnldman
m%qﬁ"uﬁuﬂ Imaié’amul,ﬂ%‘aﬁﬂimamNwwmaaﬂﬁ’qLLUU compression mold Lagluu injection mold \eriudnanimli
anunsondnuasmneldlunannvanendndost iensuaussaudesnvesamaldviunisal wionmenegiunsnely

fangugnAthuunglusunan

USGN W13U 971R (UKIBU)
Crown Seal Public Company Limited



dwsundndaiasesnuluussadariviaut Snddasuanufisunasinsdulaluunandundndndogiwoiios usun«
lprdledugnanlunisiaumdndaueiluvanefifuazselles e lianuviuads uasinnumngausenisldnuivainae

gy TngAiatsnnin nsiilldau uaradi@sunuitanunsaudsduls Tuanmmiasegianveasdd uaziinsudetugs

goauguovNduaNMsElknylla:dadoumsankung

@

Tuszezina 3 Uik Insvelivignnselng 10 MeusnAniludesazifieuivsenmesiuvasu3gna fuil

P38 AUV

goaungsIU goauNglawN:anmM 10 SElsn Aausoga
2556 2,784 2,008 72.1
2557 2,781 1,863 67.0
2558 2,843 1,879 66.1

gndmelugivesuiung lu 10 yeusn f1wau 2 s WudfevuvesuitnT fe
1) US¥W ygy3onuiaies 11n wasusenluaie

& o w

2) u3Em Inguring d1in
U3t ldiimsvelviiugnmaelaiiusesas 30 veenelasuluszey 3 Yrwuin

dadounisoKUNgWaONTUA TUUSEINFLA:CNOUSEINA

Y498 AUV

goaNKUNlUUSEINA YOAKUNYCIDUSEINFA OOOKLNESOU
2556 2,163 621 2,784
(%) 77.69 22.31 100
2557 2,079 702 2,781
(%) 74.76 25.24 100
2558 2,156 687 2,843
(%) 75.84 24.16 100

¥ o

pannesUssAngaAy laun dulady

=

g w1 Beauy esawsidy diluwaud liviu a1 WEUTud duyen uuade
wardude 1udu

s1euuUs:=91U 2558
Annual Report 2015



anaKSogonnalunisus:nNoussiiv
U3t WisuavdiieniunssuitrasnaumaiiansndnihIu dndeniudasu drswnuulnd ehwanafin wazehaeulnds
nUIem dudeu lreawesa din Ussmeddu Tneudenn drssardvsnisudnludnnuiosazvesonuivaniveusay

RRIRRL]

MavNIswanla:usunrunNIswaa

MavMswaa | Saswmsld | Maomswaa | dasysld | Maomswaasou | dasinsld

WéOﬁM?ﬁ ~ = ° - ~ = o - ~ = ° -
SOU (AUBU) | MAdMSWAQ | SDU (3UBU) | idoMswan (@udu) Mdmswaa
(%) (%) (%)

NAUNAN SN 16,161 62 14,500 53 14,180 58

3000U tazyIKUe3anau

e Tulsvwdaaiuuazativayugramvnssuneglulseme mﬂdﬁmqauﬁy’u finunmunsguazsasunuligndy
fihdhanssssme e asfinsandsdeninanslutssmeneu Tnsdeuleuensiatongiuin visne asdamiue
1 1 519 ieliulaineyliimgAuiifinanmesinunsgiu SiAvsnza wagiinisdaeunsaaunm

[ @ a

msAndengdmieingau usenn anuddyiuaunmessingivlunisnds Wusuiuusn Tnedmunnasiumnsgi
Tunsnsivaeuliegndnnu wasdnnsaaeuddmne ngavvesu3eny egwaiaue weliiuliiningauildaslifinansenu
soamnmMaELA luwiazlusonT ssuaanddmieTngavelnig egradusyuu Tnemsuennguuesidmiienusinves

gau anfiunisnaaeulagiheyseiununm uazldunsgiulunisussiiunussuuannsgiuaina wu SO, GMP, HACCP,

OHSAS uag FSSC 22000 wadasfiudamuaumauingivlunisudnvesussmm

wanmrur Sonaukann 13 % msdvgaluls:ine
nauNansueHlany wHwwian / unueailidey wHuwian 100/ wiuegiiiiey 80
nauNan eI waadn Polypropylene 95

v
o

all Uiy SlamannisseTagavanngdmieselafiundnfesas 30 vesarn1steTngRuiaviun

USGN W13U 971R (UKIBU)
Crown Seal Public Company Limited



JucoutiasinAluladmswaa Javd

MATERIAL MATERIAL MATERIAL
uwukan/ wandaanuda uwukan/
oaultigy oauldgy
SLITTING PRESS COATING
AomuUIasIU gusuan indoudoonu
AMKuQ adu
COATING LINER PRINTING
indauldovnu ywanaan WUWQSY
aty auluan 1NSOVKLNEY
PRINTING PRINTING
WUWQST WUWQAS
INSOVKINY INSOVKINY
PRESS PACKING
Guduguan Uula:uss9
LINER
ywandan
auluwn
PACKING
duua:ussy
28 snevuUs=91U 2558

Annual Report 2015



Nature of Business

Our Products

Crown Cap is a bottle closure made from pressed coated steel sheet (tin free steel, tin plated steel) lined with
liner to prevent leakage. Once closed, Crown cap preserves the original content quality with an excellent sealing

performance. Crown cap is used for carbonated drinks, beer, soda, soymilk and fruit juice.

Pilfer-Proof Cap (PP Cap) is a screw cap developed to protect against pilferage. It is made by pressing aluminum
sheet into cylindrical shape, perforated (between the body and flare) and lined. PP cap is rust-proof, easy to open,
can be recapped if the content is not wholly consumed. Pilfer-Proof cap is suitable for carbonated drinks, health

drinks, spirit and medicine.

Plastic Cap is a screw cap made from plastic resin which is molded into shape. The inside is designed either
with or without liner material to prevent leakage. The cap has knurls around the side for easy opening, it can recap
after used. Now Plastic cap is used in many products upon customer’s requirement such as :

« Plastic cap with a liner: used for carbonated drinks or product using high temperature filling process such as tea,

milk and energy drinks

« Plastic cap without liner: provided anti-leaking feature without liner material, used for drinking water and fruit juice.

« Plastic cap without liner for product using high temperature filling process: used with; milk and tea.

« Plastic cap without liner: used for aseptic filling process.

Maxi Crown Cap is bottle closure made from pressed and scored coated tin free steel shell. The score is developed for easy
opening by simply pulling the attached ring. This closure gives a perfect anti pilferage feature. Maxi Crown is recapping for

non-refrigerate product.

Maxi Cap is a bottle closure made from coated aluminum sheet pressed into one piece, scored and lined. Apart from the same
general characteristic as Maxi Crown cap, Maxi cap made of aluminum, is rust-proof and more suitable for product kept in high

humidity. Maxi cap is used for drinking water, beer, spirit and fruit juice.

Maxi- P Cap is a bottle closure made from pressed and scored coated aluminum shell. The general characteristic is the same

as Maxi cap except the pulling ring is made of plastic. Maxi-P cap used for drinking water, beer, spirit and fruit juice.

Composite Cap is a closure comprised of two parts, the shell formed by plastic resin and metal top panel.
Composite cap is designed for product with retort sterilization process and suitable for chicken essence, bird’s nest

or other premium grade products.
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Hand-Crowner the hand-crowner is specially designed to crimp crown caps tightly, it is efficient in protecting
the product inside. The hand-crowner is easy to use and can be hand carried.

Maxi-Crimping Machine is a single-hand, pneumatic Maxi crimping machine can be used to crimp either Maxi
series. It is designed with high technology to achieve utmost sealing performance.

Printing Service is provided for coating, printing on steel plate and aluminum sheets before forming shaped.

The service is also covered to design, pattern from the high technology printing system.

Revenue Structure of the Company for the Past 3 Y-ears

2015 2014 2013

Revenue Type

Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht
Net Income

1. Manufacture and Sales

2,680.65 89.28 2,623.78 87.92 2,641.65 89.94
of Caps
2. Printing Service and

162.04 5.40 157.12 5.26 142.80 4.86

Sales of Printed Sheets
3. Other Incomes 159.84 5.32 203.48 6.82 152.64 5.20
Total Revenues of
Consolidated Financial 3,002.53 100.00 2,984.38 100.00 2,937.09 100.00

Statements*

Remark : *Indicating in accordance to consolidated financial statements which included other revenues such

as income from sales of scrap metal, administration, and others.
Marketing and Competitive Situation

In 2015 the beverage market has been negatively affected by three factors: first, purchasing power of the consumers
resulted from the economic stagnation; second, public policy on excise tax which has been adjusted upward during
the first half of the 2015; and third, agricultural products such as falling price of rubber and rice, change in weather
conditions resulted in drought due to less rainfalls during the rainy season and low water reserve in the dams not
sufficient for the farming sector. Thus, most people have low purchasing power and high debt. The economic
stimulus by the public sector through income compensation to the rice farmers and rubber planters could help
alleviate and suspend the problems at certain level. However, the continued falling agricultural price has mainly
affected most people in the country even though the government has stimulated spending in the second half of
the year through tax privileges. That helps stimulates spending in other sectors rather than the beverage industry

while only the tourism industry has been the supporting factor in the better direction compared to the year 2014.

Nonetheless each type of beverage has adjusted and changed its strategy in the domestic beverage industry

through sale promotion to stimulate the demand, issues of new products and specific products to satisfy the target
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group. That has been prepared for market expansion. Even though the competition has intensified, new manufacturers
are ready to join the competition with an opportunity in production of beverages for exporting to various markets
which are in need of healthy beverages in glass bottle. This market segment continues to grow further with new
potential entrepreneurs have created their own brand and have been contracted for co-packers to maximize their

production benefit.

Non-alcoholic drinks have an average growth rate over 4%. Particularly, electrolyte drinks, energy drinks, soy
milk, healthy drinks in ¢lass bottle, are the main products with growing prospect and expanding export market.
Carbonated soft drinks have continued their competition and expansion through PET container. The beverage with
severe competition but its market growth has not met the expectation is tea beverage, even though the sale
promotion has been undertaken throughout the year and SMS promotion was used to stimulate the market.
Meanwhile the PET bottled water has continued its expansion as major manufacturers have increased their production

capacity to take advantage of the distribution network covering all areas over the country.

The overall beverage industry in 2015 has grown up at 4 to 10 percent, depending on the beverage industry and
the competition of each type.

The Asian beverage market has a tendency to grow similar to the domestic market as in 2015 several countries
have encountered the economic stagnation and currency fluctuation. However, countries in the region like Myanmar,
Vietnam, Laos and Indonesia are the countries gaining attraction from investors for relocation of the production base

or formation of trading alliances for investment.

Marketing Strategies of the Company in 2015 are as Follows:

(1)Product Quality

The company has clearly set a policy to undertake its business under the following international quality certifications
through continuous development and maintenance of the working systems in accordance with the requirements of
such quality certification system to ensure that the customers will be provided with quality, safety and suitable
products and the company will have an opportunity to become a part of the delivery of quality and safety drinks

to the consumers properly.

Quality Management System 1SO9001: 2008 and Environmental Management System ISO 14001:2004 of which
the 2015 version was announced in September 2015. The company has its quality management team attending
the training program to ensure understanding in additional details and has arranged a training program in the
organization to ensure its readiness to apply for Quality Management System ISO 9001: 2015 and Environmental

Management System ISO 14001: 2015 in the following year.

Food Safety Certification System FSSC 22000:2013 (Food Safety System) including Food Safety Management
System ISO 22000:2005 and Fundamental Program of PRPs for Food Packaging Factory PAS 223:2011 (Public Availability
Specification) and Occupational Health and Safety Management System TIS 18001 and Occupational Health and
Safety Management System BS OHSAS 18001 : 2007, TIS 18001-2554.
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Moreover, the company has undertaken its production under Good Manufacturing Practice System (GMP), Hazard
Analysis and Critical Control Point System (HACCP) which are the system applicable to the food and drink manufacturing
premise, Total Productive Management System (TPM) with 5S and Kaizen practices as a basic concept to ensure

reliability and confidence in the products of the company used by the customers.

(2)Pricing

The company has transparently and fairly conducted its business with reasonable pricing and consistent review
of its pricing in congruence with the market fluctuation and suitable to changes in price of major raw materials such
as steel sheet, aluminum sheet, plastic pellets which are the major cost of the product. Besides, assessment and
analysis have been performed as a tool for cost management if there is any negotiation to fix the price for a certain
period, or participation in the bidding process as the corporate customers, both local and foreign customers, at

present have widely employed the bidding system.

(3)Services

The company has put its focus on developing and maintaining good relationship with its customers. That is the
key marketing strategy to encourage a better relationship with response to the need of the customers through good
quality products and excellent services before, during and after sales, exchange of information and learning the
needs of the customers which is beneficial to development and improvement of the products and services to meet
the requirements of the customers at all times, including cooperation on development of new products in order

to extend its marketing opportunity beyond the existing products.

In addition to a regular visit to the customers by the sales team, the technical service team of the company is
competent in the company products, cap closing condition. Teamn members are always ready to provide the inspection
or arrange the technical training for the customer’s staffs. The company has an honor to provide a number of
technical training courses for both domestic and export customers, cap closing condition, cap application, including
cap keeping condition prior to the use in the filling plants, field training for the customer’s production team, machine
repair and maintenance to ensure that the customers will be satisfied with the company’s products, together with

preparation of check-up database to report to the customers regularly.

For transportation, the company delivery trucks are properly maintained in the suitable condition. Secure lock
system also provided to keep the customers confident that the products cargo will not be opened during the
transportation. Thus the customer is eligible to refuse the delivery of the products immediately if the secure lock
is found to be damaged. Moreover, the transport team is ready to undertake the work in accordance with rules and
regulations of the customers, including arrangement of safety equipment completely in accordance with the

instructions of the customers.

The company has an alliance which is competent in transportation to assist the company to deliver the products
to the customers within the provided schedule and to facilitate the delivery management with speed and convenience

in accordance with the company standard.
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(4)Product Development

To expand the product variety to cover the PET bottled drinking water, the company has installed the new
production line of light plastic cap 29/25 type, to enhance and increase sales in to the area that the company has
no market share. The company has also installed two additional production lines to serve the requirement of the
customers; a new aseptic cap production line and a plastic cap printing machine, the company has also developed
and invested in laser printing machine for under the cap promotion and installed video inspecting device (VID) to

segregate the products not in accordance with the customers’ requirements.

The company has expanded its production capacity in metal caps, particularly, pilfer - proof caps to support the
market of electrolyte drinks, energy drinks, hot filled beverages and alcoholic drinks which have a tendency to grow
in both domestic and export markets. In addition, the study has been conducted on investment in installation of

printing machines for metal caps to support the growth and to provide the printing and coating services in the future.

Industrial Outlook and Competition

1. Market Size and Growth

In 2015, the market size of glass containers using metal closures has grown up over 4 percent compared with
the contracting market size in 2014. The growth segments are soy milk, energy drinks, electrolyte drinks, beer and
alcoholics meanwhile the carbonated soft drinks in ¢lass bottle have grown at a lower rate but growth is evident in
those contained in PET bottles which have come in various sizes for selection by the consumers. Since the selling
price of PET packaging is close to the selling price of glass packaging, the consumers prefer to buy more PET packaging
for their convenience. As a result, the products in PET bottles seem to gain more popularity, many beverage
producers have intention using PET bottle for market expansion. Furthermore, the overall cost of PET containers is

lower than the glass bottle with more convenience on consumer’s transportation.

As the economy slowdown, the low output of agricultural products so the purchasing power of the consumers
is contracting. That has affected the growth of beverage consumption. The beverages with growth potential are
drinking water but the competition is severe because there are a large number of manufacturers and suppliers so

the profit from sales will depend on its sales volume significantly.

Alcoholic drinks, both beer and spirits have encountered a serious competition. Packaging has been adapted
and modified to comply with the government’s rules and regulations. The new packaging’s purpose is also to serve
the consumer behavior and marketing campaign. Consequently, the competition in the second half of 2015 has

intensified and the monitoring process has to be undertaken continuously.

Chicken essence and bird’s nest beverages which emphasize on customers with high purchasing power have
seen slower growth so the sales promotion has been consistently conducted during major festivals to build the
product image and to reiterate that the product is a proper selection to purchase for the persons with great care.

The plastic cap market in 2015 has grown up over 6 percent with a tendency to grow further. Beverage

manufacturers have undertaken the marketing promotion activities continuously throughout 2015, whether price
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cut, free giveaways or gifts, including seeking alliances for OEM production of new products, expansion of production
base to regional areas throughout the country with proper factory management to ensure production diversity in
the regions to reduce transportation and distribution costs, increase/decrease containing volume to gain access to
every group of consumers, including the use of sport marketing as a public relations tool, particularly, emphasis on
expansion of export market to countries in the region as a step before expansion of the production base in the

future.

2. Competition

The free trade zone and the borderless communication have rapidly facilitated trades and investments in every
region with no exception to the beverage industry. Buyers and sellers are able to quickly communicate, exchange
information and make discussion for trade negotiation. Moreover, the production technology development and
quality control of each manufacturer are nearly in the same standard. Those who could make a quick response
under the competitive price could obtain the larger market share. Such change is both opportunity and restriction
for market expansion in the country and other regions, particularly, countries in Southeast Asian region, which have

become the major export-base of the company in the past.

The company has monitored the market conditions regularly with cooperation from Nippon Closures Co., Ltd.
to become a regional production base for some products to manage cost to maintain its competitive edge against
potential competitors from other countries. In addition, it has conducted a study on penetration of new beverage
industry with support from Nippon Closures Co., Ltd. to develop new products, to enhance competitive edge and

to increase its market share in new markets or to obtain new customers consistently.

3. Business outlook

While the economic slowdown has continued since 2014, the beverage market is not lively as anticipated by
several forecasts. During the first and second quarter of the year, there were movements in response to adjustment
in alcoholic and spirit taxed. Production has been increased to prepare for tax adjustment and for summer. Therefore,
the market looked active shortly. After that the consumption seemed to be stable in the second half of the year
with slight growth in overall for the beverage market. Nonetheless, soy milk, electrolyte drinks, energy drinks, healthy
drinks, juice, herbal drinks or functional drinks are still the products gaining acceptance from the consumers. The
bottled tea drinks have to rely on sale promotion to maintain their market share while the manufacturers have given

priority to development of new products as an alternative to the consumers to maintain their market share.

Alcoholic and spirit drinks are affected by the adjustment in excise tax during the first half of the year as the
selling price has been adjusted higher with stricter controls by the public sector with respect to rules and regulations,
restriction on the selling areas and advertising and public relations rules and regulations. Major manufacturers have
expanded the production base into other beverages through investment in additional production line, formation of
alliances for OEM or business merger to rapidly expedite the production base expansion.

The potential manufacturers have anticipated growth in AEC market so they have expanded their production

bases into neighboring countries such as Vietnam, Myanmar, Indonesia and Laos. Therefore the company has planned
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to increase its production capacities in plastic caps and aluminum pilfer proof caps to facilitate every seement of
beverage products, including market expansion to cover Southeast Asian region where the beverage industry is

growing in the same direction.

4. Barriers to New Entrants

Emergence of the Asean Economic Community (AEC) has gained this region more attraction from other countries
which have seen the potential in expansion of the production, service, distribution bases with enormous purchasing
power. Thus the beverage market in this region has attracted a number of manufacturers from Europe, US, Asia like
Korea, Japan, China and India, which are looking for the production bases for regional distribution and exports to
other regions. Several manufacturers have increased their production capacities with interest to invest in production
of the packaging containers to control costs, to reduce risks and to build up business strength. While potential
business alliance is being sought on a basis of proper cooperation to build a strong supply chain. The competition
is not restricted to new competitors but it may form a trading alliance based on mutual cooperation, good customer

relations and continued and suitable communication. That is the strong entry barrier to new competitors.

The company is provided with a technical support from Nippon Closures Co., Ltd. (an affiliate of Toyo Seikan
Group Holdings Co., Ltd., the leader in packaging containers in Japan) as the major shareholder and provider of
modern production technologies, including new product development in accordance with the need of the company,
through exchange and learning by personnel of both companies to enhance potential of the sales team, production
team, quality assurance team and technical team for efficient communication and up-to-date information on the

changes inside and outside the country.

5. Possibility of Substitutes

Plastic and flexible packaging containers are gaining continued popularity. To satisfy the consumers’ behavior
of different ranges of age, whether it is the beverage market or consumer market, including instant beverages which
are having more market share in some groups of consumers, the company has realized the potential and growth of
plastic and flexible packaging containers so it has made a study on production expansion to cover other beverage
market. It has made an investment in plastic cap manufacturing machines, both compression mold and injection
mold to enhance the production and distribution capacities for various products to satisfy the need of the market
in time and to expand the market to cover the targeted customers in the future.

The beverages contained in glass bottle are still gaining favor in the market with continued growth for some
products. The company has cooperated with the customers to develop the products in several areas in a consistent
manner to ensure modernization and suitability for multi-purpose employment with consideration on quality,

utilization and competitive cost in the slowing economy and highly competitive conditions.
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Sales and Sales Percentage of Major Customers
Details of the past 3 years of sales to top ten major customers and sales percentage when compared to total

sales are given as follows:
Unit: Million Baht

Total Sales Sales to Top Ten Customers % of Total Sales

2013 2,784 2,008 72.1
2014 2,781 1,863 67.0
2015 2,843 1,879 66.1

Among the top ten customers, two were shareholders of the Company, namely:
1) Group of Boon Rawd Brewery Company Limited
2) ThaiNamthip Company Limited

In the past three years, The Company did not sell to any customer in excess of 30% of its total sales.

Ratio of Domestic and Export Sales

Unit: Million Baht

Year Domestic Sales Export Sales Total Sales
2013 2,163 621 2,784
(%) 77.69 22.31 100
2014 2,079 702 2,781
(%) 74.76 25.24 100
2015 2,156 687 2,843
(%) 75.84 24.16 100

Major countries for exports are Indonesia, Myanmar, Vietnam, Australia, New Zealand, Taiwan, Laos, Philippines,

Cambodia, Malaysia and India.

Right and Restrictive on Business Practice
The company entered into technical licenses agreement with Nippon Closures Co.,Ltd., whereby the company

receives technical support services for the manufacture of caps. Compensation is payable at a percentage of net

sales of products stipulated in the agreement.
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Production Capacity and Quantity

Year 2015 Year 2014 Year 2013

Total Quantity Capacity Total Quantity Capacity Total Quantity Capacity

(Million pcs.) Utilization (Million pcs.) Utilization (Million pcs.) Utilization
Rate (%) Rate (%) Rate (%)

Caps 16,161 62 14,500 53 14,180 58

Raw Materials and Raw Materials Suppliers

The policy of the company is to promote and support domestic industries so if the raw materials have the
suitable quality, standard and cost not more than that of the imports, the company will make a purchase domestically.
The purchasing policy is to procure raw materials from more than one supplier to ensure quality of the products in

accordance with the standard at the suitable price and timely delivery.

To select the raw material suppliers, the priority is given to quality of the raw materials employed in the
production first with clear inspection criteria and consistent examination on the raw material suppliers of the
company to ensure that the raw materials employed would not affect the quality of the products. New raw material
suppliers will be searched systematically each year through separation of raw material suppliers by type of raw
materials, test of raw materials by the Quality Assurance Division in accordance with the international assessment
standards such as 1SO, GMP, HACCP, OHSAS and FSSC 22000 to prevent shortage of raw materials for the production

of the company.

Product Major Raw Materials % to domestic procure
Metal caps Tinplate / Aluminum plate Tinplate 100/ Aluminum plate 80
Plastic caps Polypropylene 95

The company does not have any supplier held more than 30% of the total raw material purchase amount.
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Risk Factors

During the normal operation of the company, there are some factors that could widely affect the performance.
These factors could be both internal and external factors that the company cannot control. Therefore, the company
shall prepare for the unexpected situation which may happen in order to reduce any risk of which may effect to
the company’s goal and operation. The company has established the Risk Management Committee comprising of
Senior Executive Officers and Executive Officers from various departments and the President serves as the Chairman
to evaluate and analyze risks including the trend of potential event that may occur and affect the company. Details

of risks are as follows:

1. Risk from trade liberalization and entry into ASEAN Economic Community with possible impacts

on sales

The trade liberalization policy of ASEAN Economic Community (AEC) which will lead to a single production zone
and single market with free movement of labors and finished products will intensify the competition in the domestic
market through entry of foreign competitors, including local competitors which have expanded their production
base into the country of their trading partners. However, the company is ready to cope with such impact through
product quality improvement and close production process controls, increase in production efficiency and cost
reduction, product development and more participation with customers to undertake the activities for better trade
relationship and wider export bases. Besides the company has registered its patent on new product to prevent
infringement by competitors which may want to manufacture the same products, monitored movements of beverage
manufacturers in the country and overseas as trade liberalization will result in relocation of the production base to
other countries in ASEAN where costs of production are cheaper. The company has jointly invested in its affiliated
company together with two other investors to form a new company in Republic of Indonesia to manufacture and
sell caps and closures. Regarding the quality of the packaging containers, the quality management control system
has been employed to supervise the production with international standard certification like Quality Management
System, 1ISO 9001:2008, Environmental Management System, ISO 14001:2004, Good Manufacturing Practice (GMP) at
the premise, Occupational Health and Safety Management System and TIS18001 as well as Food Safety System

Certification to maintain confidence of the customers.

2. Risk from fluctuation of exchange rates

The company has imported raw materials, machines and equipment from overseas and exported finished
products overseas with credit term about 30-90 days so fluctuation in exchange rates may affect its operating results.
Moreover, the company has incomes and purchased raw materials with foreign currency about 24% of sales and
15% of the cost of sales, respectively. The company is able to reduce risk from natural hedge partially through
arrangement of payment in the currency similar to its incomes and preparation of forward contracts to buy and sell
foreign currency. That will help reducing such impact at the suitable period. In addition the company has monitored
the exchange rates closely. Every increase or decrease of 0.5 Baht in the exchange rate of US dollar to Thai Baht

will result in an increase or decrease in expenses or incomes of 800,000 Baht a year.

3. Risk from shortage of key raw materials and global price fluctuation
Major raw materials of the company are steel sheets, aluminum sheets and plastic pellets of which the price

has changed due to global price fluctuation in accordance with the market demand at the time. Such factor is not
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controllable by the company. To reduce the price fluctuation risk and shortage of raw materials in the future, the
company has closely monitored movement of the price of raw materials in oversea and domestic market to look
for supporting measures of the purchasing plan in congruence with demands from customers of the company,
including coordination with manufacturers of raw materials for timely production and delivery of raw materials and
to manage and maintain its inventory to the suitable level without risk of shortage of raw materials and to maintain
a good relationship with suppliers of steel , aluminum and plastic pellets, including procurement of additional
suppliers of raw materials and substitutes at the lower price. Moreover, if the cap selling price is determined with
reference to the price of raw materials at the time, it will reduce the risk from fluctuation of global price of raw
materials.

The quality of raw materials is another major concern. The raw materials delivered by the suppliers to the
company are required to be examined on quality in accordance with the standard before they are employed in the
production process every time to reduce risk of production loss due to poor finished product quality caused by the

raw materials.

4. Risk from finished products quality controls

The company has controlled its production of finished products in every step through quality inspection since
acceptance of raw materials into the production, packing and delivery process. However, the company still incurs
risk from claims against the quality by the customers sometimes because the acceptable quality level of the company
and the customer is not clear and the quality inspection on the finished products is made through vision. Therefore,
the company has arranged measures to reduce this risk through preparation of acceptable quality requirement
between the company and each customer, installation of equipment and improvement of cap quality inspection
system with highly qualified camera to ensure precision, arrangement of training programs for employees in the
production line, training on finished product production and concept on quality improvement because such measures

will help greatly reduce the risk.

5. Risk from accident and fire casualty

To manufacture the finished products, the company has employed machines and equipment in the production
process and loading and unloading of raw materials and inished products at all times, therefore, work safety is critical
to both employees and the company. An accident incurred during the working process may result in physical loss
of the employees and loss of properties of the company. To prevent and reduce such loss, the company has
appointed the Occupational Health and Environmental Safety Committee and has introduced the Occupational
Health and Safety Management System (OHSAS18000) to manage the work with identification of hazard and risk
assessment in the production process, working procedure and risk area to determine preventive measures against
possible hazard and to arrange a campaign to keep the employees aware of safety and to assist reduction or removal
of the origin of hazard through inspection of machines, tools, equipment and environment surrounding the working
area for improvement and corrective measures. To prevent fire casualty, the company has arranged a plan to
prevent fire casualty with determination of risk area, including established the control and inspection measures
strictly in accordance with the plan, arrangement of fire drill and evacuation annually to ensure that the employees
have understood and undertaken the correct measures. In addition, the company has made the all-risk insurance

against its properties and business interruption insurance as well.
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Securities and Shareholders

1

The Company’s Securities
¢ Registered Capital and Paid-up Capital

As of 31 December 2015, the company accounted for the registered capital of 528,000,000 Baht which had
been paid up in the amount of 528,000,000 Baht, divided into 52,000,012 ordinary shares and 799,988 preferred
shares with par value of 10 Baht each. After the 2007 Annual General Shareholders Meeting, held on 23 April
2007 had a resolution to increase the registered capital of the company of another 800,000 Baht from the existing
registered capital and paid up as of 31 December 2006 of 520,000,000 Baht by offering the allocation of 800,000
new preferred shares to the existing shareholders and in case any shareholders waived their subscription right,
the company reserved the right to allocate such shares to Japan Crown Cork Co., Ltd. at the offering price of 76
Baht each totaling 60,800,000 Baht. The proceeds from the offer of new preferred shares were used for investment

project to expand production capacities and being the company’s working capital.

» Preferred shares
In addition to the above rights, the preferred shares shall have the same rights and benefits as the ordinary
shares. The preferential rights of the preferred shares are as follows:
1. Each preferred share is entitled to dividends at the same rate as each ordinary share is, plus Baht 1.50 for
each preferred share. Dividends on the preferred shares are non-cumulative.
2. Each preferred share has one vote.
Each preferred share is convertible into an ordinary share at the ratio of 1:1. A holder may exercise the right
to convert the preferred shares to ordinary shared on the last business day of each month. If that day in

a non-business day, the exercise must be postponed to the next business day.
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2. Shareholders

Details of top ten shareholders as listed in the share registered as of December 31, 2015 are as follows:

Share Amount
*%

Name of Shareholders Nationality Type of business
‘ Ordinary share | Preferred share total ‘ % to Total ‘

1. Nippon Closures Co., Ltd.! Japanese 19,071,292 772,046 19,843,338 37.582 Packaging
2. Toyo Seikan Co., Ltd. * Japanese 5,280,000 - 5,280,000 10.000 Packaging
3. Boon Rawd Brewery Co., Ltd.? Thai 3,934,488 - 3,934,488 7.452 Beverages
4. ThaiNamthip Co., Ltd.* Thai 3,768,316 - 3,768,316 7.137 Beverages
5. Sermsuk Plc.’ Thai 1,057,742 - 1,057,742 2.003 Beverages
6. Green Spot Co., Ltd.* Thai 1,000,000 11,230 1,011,230 1.915 Beverages
7. Mr. Supachai Suthipongchai Thai 890,000 - 890,000 1.686

8. Bangkok Insurance Plc.’ Thai 799,948 - 799,948 1.515 Insurance

Investment in
9. Best Fortune Property and Loan

. Thai 773,200 - 773,200 1.464 another
Fund
company
Investment in
10. C.S. Capital Co., Ltd.” Thai 735,000 - 735,000 1.392 another
company
Remarks :

1. The major shareholder of Nippon Closures Co., Ltd. is Toyo Seikan Group Holdings, Ltd. (100%)

2. The major shareholder of Toyo Seikan Co., Ltd. is Toyo Seikan Group Holdings, Ltd. (100%)

3. The major shareholders of Boon Rawd Brewery Co., Ltd. are Mr. Piya Bhirombhakdi (13.15%),
Mr. Naiyanop Bhirombhakdi (12.63%), and Mr. Santi Bhirombhakdi (12.27%)

4. The major shareholders of ThaiNamthip Co., Ltd. are Coco-Cola Export Corporation (40.8%) and Jootee
Tin Dredging Co., Ltd. (10.2%)

5. The major shareholders of Sermsuk Plc. are So Water Company Limited (64.66%) and SS National

Logistics Co., Ltd. (21.14%) (The information as of March 10, 2016)

The major shareholder of Green Spot Co., Ltd. is Wattana Sophonpanich Co., Ltd. (56.58%)

The major shareholder of Bangkok Insurance Plc. is Bangkok Bank Plc. (9.97%)

Best Fortune Property and Loan Fund managed by Krung Thai Asset Management PCL.

The major shareholder of C.S.Capital Co.,Ltd. is Smart Investment Holdings Co., Ltd.(48.96%)

0 0 N o

**  Excluding shareholders in Thai NVDR Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Stock Exchange of Thailand with the
objective of promoting investor investment, particularly international investors, in order to invest in
common stock of listed companies without being restricted by foreign shareholding limit which does not

have the right to vote at meetings of listed companies.

3. Other securities

- None
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Dividend Payout Policy

The dividend policy of the company is to pay not more than 50 percent of annual net profit. Each preferred
share is entitled to dividend at the same rate as each ordinary share is, plus Baht 1.50 for each preferred share.
However, the dividend payment will be subject to net profit, cash flow and the company investment responsibility

including the legal obligation and other necessities. The past dividend payments of the company are as follows:

Operation Results

Net Profit (Million Baht) 210.69 289.74 337.72 326.40 325.86
Dividend for ordinary share (Baht) 1.00 1.50 1.75 1.75 1.75
Dividend for preferred share (Baht) 2.50 3.00 3.25 3.25 3.25
Percent of net profit (%) 25.63 27.75 27.72 28.68 28.72

Remark : * Dividend rate for operation results of 2015 will be considered approving by the shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting of 2016.
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Management Structure

The Company’s structure of management comprises of

1. The Board of Directors comprises independent directors, non-executive directors and executive

directors

1.1 The Audit Committee

1.2 The Risk Management Committee

2. The Management

1. The Board of Directors

e The Structure of Board of Directors

The Board of Directors stated in the Company’s Articles of Association consists of at least 7 directors and not

more than 15 directors. Not less than half of the total number of directors must have residence in the Kingdom.

The directors must hold qualifications in accordance with the regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission
(SEQ) and the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET) and not have any characteristics prohibited by the SEC and Public

Company Act. It presently consists of 13 directors which 2 of these members are executive directors

As of December 31, 2015, the Board of Directors comprised of 13 members and Ms. Napaporn Temeesrisuk,

the Company Secretary Manager, was the secretary to the Board, detail as follows:

NAME - SURNAME POSITION

1. Mr. Hirofumi Miki Chairman

2. Mr. Dhep Vongvanich Independent Director and Vice-Chairman

3. Mrs. Pilai Piemphongsarn Independent Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee
4. Mr. Satit Chanjavanakul Independent Director and the Audit Committee
5. Mr. Pongpanu Svetarundra Independent Director and the Audit Committee
6. Prof.Dr. Suwimon Keeratipibul Independent Director

7. Mr. Dhitivute Bulsook Director

8. Mr. Pornwut Sarasin Director

9. Mr. Yasuo Tsujihiro Director

10. Mr. Hisashi Nakajima Director

11. Mr. Akiyoshi Toba Director

12. Mr. Susumu Yamada Director

13. Mr. Yoshihiro Kaitsuka Director

Directors with Signatory Rights on behalf of the Company

Directors with signatory rights on behalf of the Company are Mr. Hirofumi Miki, Mr. Pornwut Sarasin, Mr. Akiyoshi

Toba and Mr.Yoshihiro Kaitsuka. The any two of these four authorized directors must sign jointly with the Company’s

Sea

[ affixed.
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Scope of Authority and Duties of the Board of Directors

1. Supervises and manages company operations in accordance with the company objectives, Articles of
Association, and the resolutions of Shareholders’ Meeting.

2. Establishes or considers and approves vision, missions, strategies, goals and business policies of the Company.
The Board is also responsible for monitoring implementation by management in accordance with the
approved policies, plans and budgets with efficiency and effectiveness.

3. May appoint other persons to operate the Company’s business under the supervision of the Board. The
Board may also appoint such persons with the authority and timeframe as deemed appropriate by the
Board. The Board of Directors reserves the right to cancel, revoke, change or amend such authority.

4. Considers and approves the responsibilities of any Committee and any significant changes made to its
operations as deemed appropriate for the benefit of the Company.

5. Thoroughly considers any conflict of interests .The consideration of the transactions with conflict of interest
are conducted for the best interest of the Company and shareholders .The person who has interest in the
transaction are not be able to participate in decision making process and/or approval of any transactions.

6. Establishes or approves a written corporate governance policy for the Company.

7. Ensures that the Company has effective internal control and internal audit systems.

8. Considers remuneration for the Board within the limit approved by shareholders.

In 2015, the Board of Directors attended the total of 6 meetings and the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
as follows:

BOARD MEETING
ATTENDANCE / THE

POSITION TOTAL
GENERAL
MEETINGS
MEETING
(TIMES)

ATTENDING
2015 ANNUAL

NAME - SURNAME

1. Mr. Pong Sarasin® Chairman X 0/2
2. Mr. Hirofumi Miki** Chairman \/ a/6
3. Mr. Dhep Vongvanich** Independent Director and Vice-Chairman \/ 6/6
4. Mrs. Pilai Piemphongsarn Independent Director and

o Chairpman of the Audit Committee \/ o
5. Mr. Pongpanu Svetarundra Independent Director and the Audit Committee \/ a/6
6. Mr. Satit Chanjavanakul Independent Director and the Audit Committee \/ 5/6
7. Prof.Dr. Suwimon Keeratipibul Independent Director / 5/6
8. Mr. Dhitivute Bulsook Director / 6/6
9. Mr. Pornwut Sarasin®* Director - a/a
10. Mr. Yasuo Tsujihiro Director / 2/6
11. Mr. Hisashi Nakajima*** Director / 1/2
12. Mr. Masutaka Hosono* Director \/ 1/2
13. Mr. Akiyoshi Toba Director \/ 6/6
14. Mr. Susumu Yamada Director \/ 5/6
15. Mr.Yoshihiro Kaitsuka Director / 6/6
16. Mr. Kazuya Harukawa** Director - 2/2
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Notes:
Mr. Pong Sarasin and Mr. Masutaka Hosono resigned from the Company’s directors since June 24, 2015.
**  The Board of Directors Meeting no.3/2015 held on June 24, 2015 had resolved to appoint Mr. Pornwut

Sarasin as the Company’s director in replacement of Mr. Pong Sarasin and appoint Mr. Kazuya Harukawa
as theCompany'’s director in replacement of Mr.Masutaka Hosono who resigned and appoint Mr. Hirofumi
Miki, Mr. Dhep Vongvanish as Chairman, and Vice-chairman respectively.

***  The Board of Directors Meeting no.5/2015 held on November 4, 2015 had resolved to appoint Mr. Hisashi
Nakajima as the Company'’s director in replacement of Mr. Kazuya Harukawa who resigned.

***% The Board meeting attendance / the total meetings was presented either in amount of times each

memberattended the meetings in 2015 or since the members have been in the position of the Board

during the year as the case maybe comparing to the total of meetings that was held in 2015.

The current number and position of the Company’s Directors reflects the suitability and equity of each shareholder
groups’ investment stake. The majority of the Directors are not executives, in order to preserve a balance of power

and encourage management credibility.
Directors Representing from Major Shareholders Listed as Follows:

Toyo Seikan Group Holdings Company Limited*
1. Mr. Hirofumi  Miki

Nippon Closures Company Limited
1. Mr. Yasuo Tsujihiro

2. Mr. Hisashi Nakajima

3. Mr. Akiyoshi ~ Toba

4. Mr. Yoshihiro  Kaitsuka

Toyo Seikan Company Limited

1. Mr. Susumu  Yamada

Notes: * Toyo Seikan Group Holdings Co., Ltd. is the major shareholder of Nippon Closures Company Limited and
Toyo Seikan Company Limited.

11 The Audit Committee®
As of December 31, 2015, the Company’s Audit Committee comprised of 3 independent directors and the
Internal Audit Office Manager as the secretary. In 2015, a total of 4 Audit Committee’s meetings were convened with

the attendance listed as follows:
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THE TOTAL NUMBER
OF ATTENDANCE/

NAME - SURNAME POSITION
THE TOTAL OF

MEETINGS (TIMES)**

1. Mrs. Pilai Piemphongsarn Chairman of the Audit Committee a/4

2. Mr. Satit Chanjavanakul Member of Audit Committee a/4

3. Mr. Pongpanu  Svetarundra Member of Audit Committee 3/4

4. Ms. Wannapa  Somprasit Secretary to the Audit Committee a/4
Notes;

*  The Audit Committee has their term for three years, started from November 8, 2014-2016.
** The Audit Committee meeting attendance / the total meetings were presented in amount of times each

member attended the meetings in 2015 comparing to the total of meetings that was held in 2015.

Scope of Authority and Duties of the Audit Committee
The Board of Directors has approved and scoped the authority and duties of the Audit Committee as follows:

1. To review the Company’s financial reporting process to ensure that it is accurate and adequate by coordinating
with auditor, the internal audit office and the relevant management.

2. To review the Company’s internal control system and internal audit system to be suitable and efficient, to
determine the internal audit unit’s independence, as well as to approve the appointment, transfer, dismissal,
develop and performance appraisal of internal audit manager.

3. To review the Company’s compliance with the laws and regulations of Securities and Exchange Commission
concerning, the Stock Exchange of Thailand and the Public Company Act.

4. To review the Connected Transactions, or the transactions that may lead to conflicts of interests, to ensure
that they are in compliance with the laws and the Exchange’s regulations, and are reasonable, accurate,
complete, transparent and for the highest benefit of the Company.

5. To consider, select and nominate an independent person to be the Company’s auditor, and to propose the
remuneration of Company’s auditor to the Board of Directors, to attend a non-management meeting with an
auditor at least once a year.

6. To review and follow the appropriateness and effectiveness of the Company’s risk management.

7. To approve the Audit Committee’s regulation before proposing the approved regulation to the Board of
Directors for approval.

8. To review the undertaking of the internal audit office as follows:

8.1 Independence

8.2 Appropriateness of its duties and responsibilities
8.3 Approve the audit plan, budget and manpower
8.4 Report the audit result

8.5 Problem or limit in audit process

9. To prepare a report of Audit Committee’s Corporate Governance, and to report in the Company’s annual report.

10. To report the performance of the Audit Committee to the Board of Directors of the Company by a quarterly basis.

11.To perform any other duties assigned by the Board of Directors of the Company with approval from the Audit

Committee thereto.
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The report of Suspicious Circumstance And Significance
Apart from the mentioned Authority and Duties, the Audit Committee also reports the suspicious circumstance
which has significance as follows:

1. Inspect the matter informed by the Company’s auditor in case of the auditor found the suspicious circumstance
that director, management or any person responsible for the Company’s operation commits an offence
under the rules of Securities and Exchange Act (No.4) B.E.2551 and report the result of preliminary inspection
to Securities and Exchange Commission Office and the auditor within thirty days after receiving by the auditor.

2. During undertaking the duties, if the Audit Committee find the suspicious act or transaction which has significant
effect on the Company’s financial position and operation result, the Audit Committee shall report to the
Company’s Board of Directors to remedy the matter under the period of time accepted by the Audit Committee
as follows:

1. A conflict of interest transaction
2. A corruption or an important unusual matter or a fault in the internal audit system
3. An infringement of laws and regulations of Securities and Exchange Commission concerning, the Stock

Exchange of Thailand and the Public Company Act

In case that the Board of Directors or the management fails to remedy aforesaid matters, any audit committee

member shall report to the Securities and Exchange Commission Thailand or the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

The responsibility of the Audit Committee
The Audit Committee is responsible to the Board of Directors in carrying duties and responsibilities assigned

by the Board of Directors while the whole Board of Directors is responsible to all of activities participating outsiders

12 Risk Management Committee
The Company has established the Risk Management Committee as a sub-committee of the Management
comprised of Senior executive officers and executive officers from various departments and the President served as
the Chairman in order to ensure that the Company has managed efficiently and shall achieve the objectives as well

as to prepare for the incident which may occur in the future and affect to the Company’s operation.

Scope of Duties of the Risk Management Committee
1. To determine policies, objectives, frameworks and strategies concerning risk management.
2. To set content and criteria in considering all types of the Company’s risks.
3. To communicate with all departments regarding the policies or specified measures which need to be
implemented.
4. To analyze and assess all risks, trends, or incidents which may occur and has influence to the Company.
To approve risk management plan, supervise, monitor and also evaluate outcomes.

6. To periodically report outcomes for acknowledgment risk situations

2. The Management

The Executive of the Company as of December 31, 2015 comprises of 6 members presented as follows:
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NAME - SURNAME POSITION

1. Mr. Akiyoshi Toba President
Vice President — Technical
2. Mr. Yoshihiro Kaitsuka ) ) ) )
and Acting Vice President - Quality Assurance
3. Mrs. Suphasri Sutanadhan Vice President - Finance and Accounting
4. Mr. Ruj Tantsetthi Vice President - Plant
5. Mrs. Siriporn Lawattanatrakul Vice President - Administration
6. Mr. Thongchai Srisuk Personnel Manager

The Duties of the Management
1. Manages the operations according to the vision, mission, strategies, policies, plans and goals approved by
the Board of Directors, the Articles of Association of the Company, and resolutions passed by the Boardof
Directors’” Meetings and Shareholders’ Meeting.
2. Manages the operations according to the Corporate Governance Policy approved by the Board of Directors.
3. Prepares annual plan and budget for approval form the Board of Directors and strictly controls the operations
and budget expenditure according to the approved plans and report progresses and operating results of

the Company to the Board of Directors’ Meeting regularly.

The Board of Directors and the management has no illegal records in the past 10 years before submitting Form

56-1 concerning information disclosure.

3. The Company Secretary and The Secretary to the Board of Directors

The Company has established the Company Secretary Office comprising of qualified staff with appropriate
experience to give information, legal suggestions and related regulations to the Board of Directors to perform its
duty, and also coordinate all departments to conform with the resolution passed by the Board in order to comply
with Good Corporate Governance principle. The Board of Directors Meeting No.4/2008 as of June 24, 2008 passed
the resolution to appoint Ms. Napaporn Temeesrisuk, the Company Secretary Office Manager as the Company

Secretary and also appointed as the Secretary to the Board of Directors on August 26, 2008.

The Duties of the Company Secretary and the Secretary to the Board of the Directors are as follows:

1. To coordinate the schedule for the Board of Directors’ meeting all year round and the date for Annual
General Meeting of shareholders as well as inform the Board in advance.

2. To prepare the Meeting agenda, documents and deliver to the Board of Directors together with the
meeting notice.

3. To prepare the Shareholders’ meeting, agenda, documents and to deliver to the shareholders together
with the meeting notice. In addition, to manage the meeting smoothly and to comply with laws.

4.  To attend the meeting and prepare minutes of the Board of Directors’ and the Shareholders” meeting,

taking important matter, questions and useful suggestions during the meeting.
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5. Tofollow up the operation to conform with the resolutions of the Board of Directors” and the Shareholders’
meeting and report to the Board periodically.

6. To give information or suggestions to the Board of Directors and the management to perform their
duties in compliance with the laws and regulations of the Securities Exchange Commission and the Stock
Exchange of Thailand including the best practice of the Listed Company concerning the good governance.

7. To prepare Form 56-1 concerning the information disclosure and the annual report with the correct and
complete information complying with the regulations of the Securities Exchange Commission and the
Stock Exchange of Thailand as well as to deliver to all related organizations and shareholders (The annual
report only).

8. To prepare the Directors’ profile and registration which have been corrected and updated.

9. To submit a copy of the report concerning the interest related the Board of the Directors, the Executives,
and other related persons to the Chairman and the Chairman of the Audit Committee within 7 days since
the report has been received.

10. To keep the documents as follow in complete, systematic, and simple- to-examine manner
- Meeting notices and minutes of the Board of Directors’ meeting and the Shareholders” meeting including

all meeting documents

- Annual report

Director registration

Report of Information concerning the interest related to the Board of Directors, the Executives, and
other related person.

11. To give the Company’s information to shareholders, investors, and analysts. To coordinate or set up
the meeting for all related parties periodically.

12. To perform any other acts as specified in the notification of the Capital Market Supervisory Board.

4. Directors and Management Remuneration

Monetary Remuneration
1) The Board of Directors’ Remuneration
In 2015, the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, held on April 27, 2015, has approved the
remuneration of the total 13 directors in amount of Baht 3,500,000 for the retainer fee and meeting attendance fee
of the Board and the Audit Committee. Year of 2015, the retainer fee and meeting allowances of the Board of
Directors for 13 directors amounted of Baht 2,480,000 described as follows:
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Name of Directors

Position

Retainer Fee
(Baht/Year)

Attendance Fee
(Baht/Year)**

1. Mr. Pong Sarasin* Chairman 180,000 -

2. Mr. Hirofumi Miki Chairman No Receiving No Receiving
3. Mr. Dhep Vongvanich Independent Director and Vice 240,000 120,000

Chairman
4. Mrs. Pilai Piemphongsarn Independent Director and 240,000 120,000
Chairman of the Audit Committee
5. Mr. Pongpanu Svetarundra Independent Director and 240,000 80,000
the Audit Committee
6. Mr. Satit Chanjavanakul Independent Director and 240,000 100,000
the Audit Committee

7. Prof.Dr.Suwimon  Keeratipibul Independent Director 240,000 100,000
8. Mr. Dhitivute Bulsook Director 240,000 120,000
9. Mr. Pornwut Sarasin Director 140,000 80,000
10. Mr. Yasuo Tsujihiro Director No Receiving No Receiving
11. Mr. Hisashi Nakajima Director No Receiving No Receiving
12. Mr. Masutaka Hosono* Director No Receiving No Receiving
13. Mr. Akiyoshi Toba*** Director No Receiving -

14. Mr. Susumu Yamada Director No Receiving No Receiving
15. Mr.Yoshihiro Kaitsuka*** Director No Receiving -

16. Mr. Kazuya Harukawa** Director No Receiving No Receiving
Total 1,760,000 720,000
Remarks

*

Mr. Pong Sarasin / Mr. Masutaka Hosono resigned from the Company’s directors since June 2015.

** Mr. Kazuya Harukawa resigned from the Company’s director since November 2015.

*** The Directors who also reserve the Company’s management will not receive the attendance fee.

2) The Audit Committee’s Remuneration
In 2015, a total of 4 Audit Committee’s meetings were convened. The attendance fee amounted of
Baht 240,000 the details of which can be described as follows:
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THE TOTAL

NUMBER OF
MEETING
ATTENDANCE/
NAME - SURNAME POSITION ATTENDANCE FEE (BAHT)
THE TOTAL OF
MEETINGS
(TIMES)
1. Mrs. Pilai Piemphongsarn Chairman of the Audit a/4 100,000
Committee
2. Mr. Satit Chanjavanakul Member of the Audit a4 80,000
Committee
3. Mr. Pongpanu Svetarundra Member of the Audit 3/4 60,000
Committee

3) The Management's Remuneration

In 2015, the Management‘s remuneration which included 4 executives relatively under the President and

any persons equally assigned to the same rank of those executives, for a total of 6 executives amounted of Baht

17,006,536 the details as follows:

Year 2015

Amount Number of

(EELD)

Number of

Remuneration

Executives Executives

(person)

(person)

Salary, Annual Bonus,

Year 2014

Amount
(Baht)

(person)

Number of
Executives

Year 2013

Amount
(EELD)

and Retirement 6 16,489,054 6 16,181,952 14,895,584
Compensation

Provident Fund 2 517,482 2 486,282 271,044
Total 17,006,536 16,668,234 15,166,628

However, the Company considered the executives as permanent employees and are obliged to be responsible

in their own function and line.

4) Other Remuneration
- None
5.) Employees
As of 31 December 2015, the Company had 885 employees.

In 2015, the Company paid the compensation to employees totaling 401,705,540.87 Baht in the form of

salary, bonus, attendance reward, overtime, and other welfares. The Company had contributed to the Provident

Fund for the year 2015 in the amount of 17,240,813.80 Baht.

Provident Fund of the Company

The Company had founded the provident fund comply with ministerial regulations no.162 B.E. 2526 aim to

promote employee’s long term savings. This fund will help the employee to gather their own savings for use when
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retire or resign from the Company, subsequently the Company had registered the fund to be under Provident Fund
Act. B.E. 2530. For the employee’s cumulative gathering which will deduct from employee’s salary, employee has
a right to choose from ratio percentage to salary depends on year of service. In addition, employee can choose

themselves the proper investment plan while the Company shall contribute to the fund by these details:-

Year of Service Contribution Ratio ( Percentage to Salary )
1-6 5
7-9 7.5
10 years over 10

In case that the employee registers to the fund before Januray 1, 2003, the Company Shall contribute when

complete 7 and 10 years of service.

As of December 31, 2015, the Company’s Provident Fund has a total contribution equal to 315,346,697.79 Baht
which comprised of:
1. Crown Seal Public Company Limited registered fund, having 346 members included management, totaling
130,062,888.44 Baht
2. The registered K-Master Pooled Fund, Crown Seal Public Company Limited only, having 31 members included
management, totaling 14,762,629.30 Baht.
3. The registered K-Master Pooled Fund - share mixed not over 25%, Crown Seal Public Company Limited

only, having 423 members included management, totaling 170,521,180.05 Baht.

Employee Dispute in the Past 3 Years
- None

Personnel Development Policy

Human resources are deemed to be the key factors in carrying on the Company’s operations. The Company
realizes that human resources development is the worthiest and most sustainable investment compared with other
categories of the investments. This is because of the reason that the organizational success relies on the personnel
potentials as the significant matter. Any organization having human resources of high caliber of competency,
righteousness and ethics would certainly be able to create the advantage on the competitiveness and lead the
organization to success in accordance with the required and sustainable goal. The Company has by far set a wish
and given importance on human resources development in order to make the Company’s personnel both good

and smart men and women at all times.

The Company has a policy on the development of all levels of employees in order to enable them to gain knowledge
and skills in systematic and continuous performances by implementing the Annual Training Plan consisting of the
basic training, skills on the executions of a specific work and general knowledge necessary for use in performing
duties: In the year 2015 the company provided 67 training courses, total employees participated in the training of
1,639 persons using the budget of 1,187,030.17 Baht categorized into
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« In-house Training 50 courses, 1,615 employees participated.

« Public Training 17 courses, 24 employees participated

The course outlines for the training conducted in 2015 are:

1. Managerial Skills and Supervisory Skills Total 3 courses, 67 employees participated, such as On
the Job Training course and Supervisory Skill Development course. These courses provided teaching skills
for supervisors, major roles and duties of supervisor knowledge, overseeing subordinates for performance
achievement which enable the employees to get learning and effectively perform abide by the company’s
policy.

2. Essential Knowledge and Skills Total 10 courses, 489 employees participated, such as Product
Knowledge course, Good Organization Culture Building and Sustainability, the Company’s Code of Conduct ,
etc. These courses provided the proper understanding of the company products, the company regulation
to employees which enable them to perform correctly and abide by the company’s policy.

3. Technical Knowledge and Professional Knowledge Total 25 courses, 382 employees participated
such as Machinery Working System like Lubrication System and Cap Inspection System, etc. These courses
provided technical knowledge and international standardization tools and equipment usage which the
employee can apply for working effectively.

4. Productivity Improvement & Efficiency Improvement Total 15 courses, 342 employees participated
such as 7 wastes elimination course, Kaizen Suggestion, 5S etc which showed that the Company gives
precedence to the clean and tidy working environment for ease of operation, and provided systematic
working improvement and effectiveness knowledge which can enhance employees’ knowledge for
their self potential improvement.

5. Health & Safety in Workplace Total 16 courses, 359 employees participated such as Safety Occupational
Health and Working Environment, Chemical Safety, Annual Fire Drill, Fire Fighting and Evacuation Practice

which showed that the company gives precedence mainly to the employees’ health and safety.

The Company also sends some employees to attend the oversea training programs, to coordinate the experience
exchanged with the leading Industrial organizations, and also to attend public seminars and conferences in order to

gather the useful information for the Company regularly.

In addition, the Company has established channel for direct communications with the employees by holding
the Management-Meets-Employees meeting, at least, 3 times a year in order to give the employees the explanations
on the operation results including the ways on the Company’s management as well as the opportunity in exchanging
ideas and opinions between the Management and employees in order to lead to the improvements, developments

and creations of good relations between the Management and all employees within the Organization.

In 2015, the Company organized trainings to give explanations on the Company’s Code of Conduct continuously
in order to enable employees to have correct understanding on and properly observe such Code of Conduct in the
same direction in this respect, which emphasis was placed on the observations in compliance with the Company’s
Code of Ethics in 8 points including the channel in lodging complaints and actions in respondse to the complaints

when received in the case where a performance in violation of the Code of Conduct of the Company has been
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Good Corporate Governance

 Corporate Governance Policy

The Board of Directors is committed to operate the business in accordance with the principles of good
corporate governance and guidelines of the Stock Exchange of Thailand. The Board of Directors believes that corporate
governance is an important factor that will bring not only success to its business, in terms of effectiveness, disclosure
and transparency, but also maximum benefit to its shareholders and fairness to all stakeholders operations , and to
nurture a sustainable growth to the firm. The Board of Directors has established the corporate governance policy
being the guideline of business operation for directors, executives and employees of the company. It has been
disclosed on the company’s website www.crownseal.co.th, at Investor Relations section.

In 2012, The Corporate Governance of Listed Companies Survey Committee has developed the criteria of
the survey to comply with ASEAN CG Scorecard and best practice of international standards. Thus, the Company is
committed to the revised principles of good corporate governance by the Stock Exchange of Thailand, to attain the
highest international standards of good corporate governance, which are stated in 5 categories namely:

1. Rights of Shareholders

2. Equitable Treatment of Shareholders
3. Role of Stakeholders

4. Disclosure and Transparency

5. Responsibilities of the Board

1. Rights of Shareholders

The Board of Directors recognizes shareholders’ rights by encouraging them to exercise their rights and avoid
violating those rights. ; basic rights of shareholders, right to obtain relevant and adequate information on the company
in a timely manner and on a regular basis, right to participate and vote in the shareholders meetings on any transactions
that affect the company. The Board of Directors shall operate not only in accordance with the principles of corporate
governance for listed companies of the Stock Exchange of Thailand, but also realize to other rights of shareholders,
which are more than specified in laws, listed in the company’s website www.crownseal.co.th in the Investor Relations
section.

1.1 Basic Rights of Shareholder

The Board of Directors recognizes the basic rights of shareholders rights. We believe that our best effort

to exercise all policies and practices of the rights of shareholders mentioned herein are strictly complied with fairness
to all stakeholders, and also relevant rules, regulations, shall ensure our shareholders to rely on and be confident

to invest with the company.

The company shall encourage and facilitate all shareholders to exercise their rights as follows:

« Rights to buy or sell shares

+ Rights to receive adequate information in a timely manner and in an appropriate form for making
decisions

« Rights to receive share certificates and rights to transfer shares

« Rights to participate and vote in the shareholders meetings, and make decisions on any changes in
importance policy of the Company or any issues that needed to be approved by shareholdings meetings
such as amendments to the articles of association or memorandum of association of the company,

capital increases or decreases, and the approval of extraordinary transactions, etc.

USGN W13U 971R (UKIBU)
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« Rights to elect or remove members of the Board, appoint the external auditor

« Rights to express their opinions and ask questions related to the company’s operation.

* Rights to vote by proxy

* In case the company’s operation result has profits and carries no accumulated loss, the shareholders

have rights to share in profits of the company.

1.2 Shareholders Meeting
In 2015, the Board of Directors had not only operated in accordance with the basic rights of

shareholders, but also supported the additional acts for shareholders as follows:
« Schedule for shareholders’ meeting

The Board of Directors has a duty to call an Annual general meeting once a year within 4 months from the end
of fiscal year of the company and it may call an Extraordinary meeting to discuss any other important matters, which
affects on the benefit of the shareholders. In 2015, the Company had called the Annual General Meeting on April
27, 2015 at Dusit Thani Hotel, 946 Rama IV Road, Silom Sub District, Bangrak District, Bangkok The meeting place is
considered on basis of the most convenient for transportation, and the size of meeting room is also suitable for the
numbers of shareholders.
«  The Invitation notice to the meeting

The Board of Directors recognizes the rights of shareholders to receive adequate information in a timely basis
and in a form appropriate for making decisions. The invitation notice to the meeting which contains adequate
information, such as, agenda which will be clearly defined whether which agenda is for the information or for the
consideration purpose. The supporting documents for each agenda will include the opinions of the Board to facilitate
the decision making as well. In 2015, an invitation of the meeting was sent at least 14 days prior to the meeting.
The invitation notice and supporting documents were posted on the company’s website, announced via the Stock
Exchange of Thailand’s website to inform the shareholders in advance for 30 days before the meeting, and also
announced in the daily newspapers consecutively for 3 days, not less than 3 days prior to the meetings. The
Company’s telephone number was also provided for any enquiry may need.
. Proxy to attend and vote in shareholders meeting

When shareholders could not attend a meeting in person, the Company shall encourage the exercising of
attending and voting rights by shareholders, at least by appointing their proxy or the Company’s Independent
Directors to vote on their behalf. The details of 5 Independent Directors of the Company are entirely attached to
the Notice of Annual General Meeting for their considerations. The shareholders can direct their vote guideline by
fillin the proxy “form KOR” which has been sent to the shareholders as an attached document with the invitation
notice, or the shareholders can download it from the Company’s website.
. Preparation for shareholders meeting and Registration

The Company provides one hour registration prior to convening the meeting, a computerized registration and
vote forms shall be facilitated properly, as well as the revenue stamp shall also be free serviced
. Attending shareholders meeting by the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors recognizes the importance of the shareholder meetings, all directors shall attend every
shareholder meeting. The shareholders shall be given an opportunity to make comments and inquires by the
Chairman. The minutes of shareholder meetings shall be prepared where all enquiry and important comments shall
be recorded. In 2015, 12 directors from the total of 13 directors, all executives, legal representatives and external
auditors attended the annual general meeting of shareholders in order to receive shareholders’” opinion and answer

their questions.
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1.3 An Extraordinary Meeting
Apart from the annual general meeting, the Board of Directors may convene an interim meeting
called “an extraordinary meeting” to discuss any other matter proposed for approval by the shareholders. In addition,
shareholders may request in writing to the Board of Directors to call for an extraordinary meeting by specifying the
matters to be considered. The Board of Directors shall call the extraordinary meeting as requested by shareholders

within 1 month after receiving the notice of shareholders.

2. Equitable Treatment of Shareholders

The company recognizes the equitable treatment of shareholders in order to encourage the confidence of
shareholders to invest in the company.

The company has encouraged equitable treatment of shareholders as follows:

2.1 The right of the votes in the meeting, given by the company depends on the number of company’s
shares- one share one vote.

2.2 The Company’s website has been used for facilitating shareholders to reach the company’s information
thoroughly, adequately and timely. The minor shareholders shall also have an opportunity to propose an agenda
for shareholders meeting and nominate any person to be elected as the Director of the Board in advance, the criteria
and process of which has been publicized on the company’s website. Telephone service with Company Secretary
Officer shall also be provided for shareholders or interested person to call for more information.

2.3 The matters discussed at the shareholders meetings shall be in the sequence as given in the invitation
notice, any matter which is not noticed prior to shareholders, shall not be discussed in the meeting.

2.4 The shareholders have the right to give all of the votes they have to an individual, or a group for an
election of the company’s Directors. The votes of each shareholder could not allocate more or less to nominees.
The score voted shall be put in order from the highest score down to the latest ones, the individuals who get higher
score shall be appointed as directors as per the number of Director(s) to be elected in that time.

2.5 The company encourages voting by use of a polling card for each matter in the agenda. A polling card
especially used when shareholders wish to vote ‘No’, or do not wish to make their votes. This practice also brings
more transparency and be inspected for inspection.

2.6 The company has a preventive measure of unfair using insider information by related persons. The
Directors and executives include their spouses and minor children who have the change in the company’s shares
owner they have to immediately inform to the Company Secretary Officer before the information shall be reported
further to the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission within 3 working days from the date of transaction,
sell-purchase or transfer. In addition, the Directors and executives or insider department, who are closed to the
company’s internal data, are supposed not to make advantage for themselves or their relatives and not to disclose

any information to outsider or unrelated persons before the important information is publicized.

3. Role of Stakeholders

The company recognizes with due care to the rights of stakeholders as well as other concerned parties
including shareholders, customers, trading partners, competitors, creditors, employees and therefore communities
and environment where the company operates and the society at large. The company shall set a clear policy on
fair treatment for each and every stakeholder. The rights of stakeholders that are established by laws or through

mutual agreements are to be respected.
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The company is committed to present itself as a high professional
representative to maximize benefit and satisfaction for our shareholders.
Conducting business efficiently with transparency is able to create trust
and confidence amongst its shareholders by considering the company’s
long term growth and appropriate levels of sustained returns.

The company is committed to maximize satisfaction to our customers with
right to-order, high quality pro ducts at reasonable price and on-time
delivery service. The company shall be a proactive agent who is willing
to give consultation, solve problems and complaint, keep strictly our
customer’s confidential and business contract.

The company shall treat our trading partners equally and honestly in
accordance with the frame of rules and regulations as well as trade law.
The commitment to disclose all necessary information, be transparency
and fair, in all aspects of business transactions including purchasing
procedure.

The company has commitment to play fair game of business competition
in accordance with the frame of rules and regulations as well as trade
law. The company encourages fair and free-trading policies, not monopoly.
The company will not use the illegal information and defame competitors.
The company has commitment to follow the financial contracts we have
with our creditors.

The company realizes the importance of the company’s employees. All
employees shall be treated equally and fairly without discrimination on
race, religious or gender, in accordance with Labor Law, rules and regulations,
receive appropriated compensation as well as the safety work place and
sanitary. In addition, human resources development plan has been invested
for them continuously along with the company’s business development.
The company realizes the importance of natural resources and environment,
thus the policies on environmental control management, has been strictly
conducted to ensure reasonable usage of all resources and comply with
relevant laws, rules and regulations. Pollution prevention is also the
important issue which the company concerned in every step of works, in
order to prevent the effect on all staff and communities. Also, in order to
support the mentioned policy, the company has preceded the Corporate
Social Responsibility activity, CSR DAY, to promote the employee of the

organization about CSR.



4. Disclosure and Transparency

The Board of Directors ensures that all important information relevant to the company, both financial and
non-financial : corporate governance policy and environmental policy are normally publicized via the Stock Exchange
of Thailand and company’s website, annual statements (form 56-1) and annual reports. Furthermore, the company
has designated various media and activities, the shareholders, analyst and investors can aske for the company’s
visit or having a meeting with Executives/Senior Executive Officers timely, to disseminate corporate information to
outsiders such as shareholders and investors. In addition, shareholders are able to reach to information needed
through calling to shareholder-administrated unit concerned in order to help them understand the company and
its business.

The company recognizes that all information, is disclosed accurately, completely, transparently on a timely
basis that are trustworthy and adequately for shareholders to make decision, so the company has appointed the
Company Secretary Office Manager, Company Secretary Office, to be responsible for and perform ‘Investor Relations
function’ with care to communicate with outsiders such as shareholders, investors, and analysts.

Company’s news and information has been communicated via the following channels:
»  The Stock Exchange of Thailand’s website is www.set.or.th
«  Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission’s website is www.sec.or.th

e  The Crown Seal Plc.’s website is www.crownseal.co.th

«  Company and Executives Visit Activity

»  Contact directly via e-mail and telephone

The shareholders and persons who need more information can contact directly to:
Contact Person Company Secretary Office Manager
Address . Crown Seal Public Company Limited
5 Soi Rangsit-Nakornnayok 46, Tumbol Prachatipat,
Amphur Thanyaburi, Pathumtani

Tel. : +66(0) 2533-0450 ext. 638
Fax. © +66(0) 2974-1114
E-mail :  napaporn@crownseal.co.th

Inside Information Control

The company shall determinate for executives and staff especially staff who are data users, not to disclose or
publicize internal information or data for the sake of one’s own benefit, buy or sell shares, transfer data for buying
or selling shares. Internal data control has to be strictly managed to maximize disclosure and transparency, including

fairness of corporate.

Internal Control

The Board of Directors shall ensure an effective and sufficient internal control system that covers every aspect of
its operation; financial operations, corporate performance. The Internal Audit Office is established to ensure that
all operation units of the company are in compliance with operating procedures, in addition, Internal Audit also
assesses the effectiveness and adequateness of the internal control system, since its works independently, it can
provide adequate control, transparent and can be the balanced mechanisms against improper acts that could give
negative impact to the shareholders investments in the company and its assets. The Internal Audit directly report
to the Audit Committee.
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5. Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

1

Sub-Committee

The Structure of The Board of Directors

1.1 The Board of Directors

1.2

The Board of Directors consists of 7 to 15 persons with excellent qualification and experience
relevant to the company’s business. The qualifications of the Board of Directors must comply with the
Act of Public Company Limited, the Regulation of the Security Exchange Commission and Stock
Exchange of Thailand. The Board of Directors of the Company consists of at least 5 Independent
Directors as of December 31, 2015, the Board of Directors of the Company consists of 13 Directors:
(1) 2 Executive Directors
(2) 11 Non-Executive Directors

The Chairman of the Board of Directors is not the President.

The name list of the Board of Directors and its responsibilities are referred in Management Structure

section.

The Committee of the Board of Directors consists of
1.2.1 Audit Committee

The Audit Committee shall consist of 3 Independent Committee members with at least one
member who is knowledgeable in finance and accounting, an Internal Audit Office manager being a
secretary. The qualifications of the Audit Committee shall reflect The Capital Market Supervisory
Board’s requirement on qualifications of independence announcement. As of December 31, 2015, the
Audit Committee consists of 3 Independent Directors who possess high professional and ethical
standards with experience and expertise in internal audit. They are able to be responsible for monitoring
and assessing the adequacy of the internal control, then expressing their opinions with regard to the
benefits of the Company to the Board of Directors. The names of the Audit Committee and its

responsibility are listed and referred in the issue of Management Structure section.

1.2.2 Risk Management Committee
The Risk Management Committee is a sub-committee of management, shall consist of Senior
Executive Officers and Executive Officers, and is chaired by President. The roles and responsibilities of

the Risk Management Committee are listed and referred in the issue of Management Structure section.
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2. Meeting of the Board of Directors

The meeting of the Board of Directors must be held at least 6 times a year and be scheduled through
the year in advance to ensure that all directors shall manage their time to attend the meetings. In case of needed,
a meeting shall be convened. The agenda and attached documents for Board Meetings must be prepared and
determined clearly whether for information or consideration, and shall be submitted to the Board of Directors not
less than 7 days before the meetings to ensure smooth meeting procedure with clear decisions and resolutions. In
addition, related Executives should attend the Board Meetings to present information and express opinions which
is beneficial to the meeting.

All directors shall be allocated appropriate time for free discussion and to express their opinions, with regard
to the benefit and fairness of the company’s shareholders and related persons. In case there are any benefits or
significances related in such agenda for interested directors or executives, they shall not participate in such agenda
unless the meeting goes on to next agenda. The Secretary of the Board of Directors shall take the minutes and must
prepare a draft meeting report within 14 days after a meeting, then presents to the Board of Directors for consideration
before submitting to the Board of Directors in the next Board Meeting for its approval and acknowledgement. The
Chairman of the Board or the Chairman of a meeting and the Secretary of the Board of Directors must sign for
acknowledgement on the minute, then keep filing for further review and inspection when needed.

In 2015, the Board Meetings were held 6 times. The meeting-attendance report of the Board of Directors is

shown in the issue of Management Structure section.

3. Performance Assessment

Performance Assessment on the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors has arranged the performance assessment on the Board of Directors once a year to
allow each Director to jointly make an assessment on overall performance of the Board of Directors and make a
self assessment on individual performance to review the performance, problems and difficulties during the year for
more efficiency.

In 2015, the Secretary of the Board of Directors sent the overall and individual performance assessment on
the Board of Directors forms to every Director and each Director is independent to complete such assessment forms.
When the assessment forms are completed, they will be returned to the Secretary of the Board for collection and
conclusion and preparation of report to the Board of Directors for acknowledgement in the meeting of the Board

of Directors.

« Performance assessment on the Board of Directors as a whole
Performance assessment on the Board of Directors as a whole is made on the criterion divided into 6
following aspects:
1. Structure and Qualification of the Board of Directors
. Roles, duties and responsibilities of the Board of Directors
. Meeting of the Board of Directors

2
3
4. Duties performed by the Board of Directors
5. Relationship with the management

6

. Self-improvement of the Directors and development of the executives
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+ Performance assessment on individual Directors
Performance assessment on individual Director is made on the criterion divided into 4 following aspects:
1. Roles, duties and responsibilities undertaken as the Director
2. Duties performed as the Director
3. Relationship with the management
4

Self-improvement as the Director

Performance Evaluation of the President
The Board of Directors has evaluated the performance of the President every year ended by the criterion
divided into 2 sections :
Section | : Status of Achievements
Section Il : Performance Measures Divided into 10 Following Aspects:
. Leadership
. Strategic planning
. Actions in accordance with the strategy
. Financial planning and performance
. Relationship with the board of directors
. Relationship with third party
. Personnel management and relationship

. Succession plan

O 00 ~N O U1 A W N =

. Product and service understanding

10. Personal gualification

4. Remuneration
The levels of Directors’ remunerations shall be comparable to those of listed companies in the Stock
Exchange of Thailand which have the similar size of business and in the same industrial sector, also consider the
duties and responsibilities of the Directors concerned and the company’s performance. Directors’ remuneration is
approved at an Annual Shareholders Meeting. For Directors who are assigned more works and responsibilities, such

as the Audit Committee, shall receive additional remunerations appropriately.

The executives’ remunerations shall be considered and approved with regard of the policies set by the

Board of Directors. The levels of executives’ remunerations shall be comparable to those of companies in the same

industry taking into consideration of the duties and responsibilities, individual performance, the company’s
performance, with fairness, to motivate the high professional and standard ones to work with us longer.

The remunerations for Directors and executives in 2015 are referred in the issue of Management Structure

section.

Directors and Top Management Nomination and Appointment
(1) Independent Directors
As required by the regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and the Stock Exchange

of Thailand (SET), the company has defined the Board of Directors’ independence as follows:

1. Holding shares not more than 1 percent of the total shares with voting rights of the Company, major

shareholder, or controlling persons including related persons.
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2. Not being or having previously been a Director who takes part in the management, an employee,
a staff or an advisor of the company unless the termination of being in such position had occurred at least 2 years
before an appointment.

3. Not being a person related by blood or registration under laws such as parents, spouse sibling
and child of its executives, its major shareholders, its controlling persons, or such other person who will be nominated
to take up the position of executives or controlling persons of the company or its subsidiary.

4. Not holding business relationship with the company, major shareholders, or persons holding
controlling power of the company, which may hinder the exertion of his/her independent discretion, and not being
or having ever been a shareowner with significant implication, or person holding controlling power of the person
holding business relationship with the company, major shareholders, or person holding controlling power of the
company unless having vacated from said tenure for not less than two years before appointment which value <
50 MB / <3% of the Net Tangible Asset (NTA) up to the greater number.

5. Not being or having previously been an auditor of the company or the major shareholders, or
the controlling persons and not being a shareowner with significant implication, or the controlling persons, or a
managing partner of the audit office which being the auditor of the company unless the termination of being in such
position had occurred at least 2 years before an appointment.

6. Not being or having previously been any professional service provider including legal advisor
and financial advisor who receives more than Baht 2 million annually from the company, major shareholders, or
controlling person and also being a shareowner with significant implication, or the controlling persons, or a managing
partner of such professional service provider unless the termination of being in such position had occurred at least
2 years before an appointment

7. Not being a Director appointed as a representative of the company’s Directors, a major shareholder
or a shareholder who is related to the company’s major shareholders.

8. Not undertaking a business with similar nature or significant competition with the company, or
not being a major partner of a partnership, or a Director who take part in management, an employee, a staff, an
advisor with regular payroll, or owning shares more than 1 percent of all shares with voting right of other companies
with similar business or significant competition with the company.

9. Not having any other characteristics that prevent the exertion of independent opinion and not

having prohibited characteristics as required by the Securities and Exchange Commission’s regulations.

(2) Directors and Top Management Nomination

The selection of Directors

A part of the Board of Directors consists of representatives from major shareholders; Nippon Closures
Company Limited and Toyo Seikan Company Limited who nominate Japanese Directors to be appointed at the
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders which passed the resolution of the Board of Directors. Another part includes
the qualified persons nominated by the group of beverage industry who have regular business with the company
and qualified persons in other fields. All of the Directors are qualified, knowledgeable, and experienced in various
fields which have been useful to the company.

In the nomination and appointment of the Directors, each person must qualify the Public Company Act,
the Securities Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand including the company’s policies and the

principles of the Good Corporate Governance.
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. Having the knowledge, abilities and experience to be beneficial on the company’s businesses.
. Having a honesty, an ethic and responsibilities, decision making on principle and reasonably.
. Having leadership, vision and independence in making decision.

. Able to devote sufficient time to monitor the company’s operation.

U A W N =

. Having the correct qualifications and having no forbidden characteristics according to the law, Limited
Public Company Act, Securities and Exchange Act, and the Principle of Good Corporate Governance of the
Company such as;

(1) be sui juris;
(2) Not a bankrupt, incapable or incompetent person
(3) Not having been imprisoned by the judgment of a court which is final for an offence related to
property committed with dishonest intent;
(4) Have never been dismissed or removed from government service or a government organization
or a government agency in punishment for dishonesty in performing their duties
(5) There shall be no restrictions to prevent a person to become a Director regarding the rules and

regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

In event of a vacancy of the Director other than the retirement by rotation, the Board of Directors will select
a qualified person with no forbidden characteristics as per stated in the announcement of the Securities Exchange
Commission, the Stock Exchange of Thailand, and the legal specification of the Public Company to fill the position
of the Directors for the next Board of Directors’ meeting. The Director appointed to fill a vacant position will only

serve the remaining term of that vacant position.
The Minor Shareholders’ Right in the Appointment of Directors

In order to provide the opportunity to the minor shareholders to propose the Shareholders meeting agendas
and nominate a person to be the Director in advance. Therefore, the company had announced the criteria and
process of which through via the company’s website and informed to the Stock Exchange of Thailand to ensure
that the shareholders have been informed. However, the company gives an opportunity to the shareholders in
inquiry and suggestion prior to the date of the meeting by calling or sending questions to the Company Secretary
Officer at all time.

In 2015, the company had provided the opportunity to shareholders for proposing the shareholders meeting
agendas and nominated persons to be elected as the company’s Directors during October 19, 2015 to December

30, 2015 but no any proposal.
Appointment, Removal, or termination of Directorial positions is summarized as follows:

1. In nomination of Directors to replace Directors who complete their terms, the Board of Directors is
responsible to, recruit a qualified candidate who possesses no prohibited characteristics as stated in the Announcement
of the Securities and Exchange Commission concerning, the Stock Exchange of Thailand, as well as the Law of Public
Company, and propose to the Shareholders’ Meeting. The company gives right and opportunity to all shareholders
to nominate and appoint any person to be a Director at the meeting via through the company’s website, this right

has not been exercised.
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2. The Shareholders Meeting elects Directors by way of a majority vote, according to the following rules:

(1) Each shareholder has one vote for each share held

(2) Each shareholder has a total number of votes equivalent to the total number of
shares held, wherein one share carries one vote

(3) Each shareholder is required to exercise all his votes in voting for one or several persons
as Directors

(4) Candidates receiving the most votes in successively descending order will be appointed
as Directors according to, but not exceeding, the number of Directors to be appointed
on that particular occasion

(5) In the event that two candidates secure an equal number of votes for the final position
of Director, the Chairman of the Meeting will cast the deciding vote

3. Directors may also leave their posts due to fatality; resign prior to the completion of term (effective as
of the date the company has received the Director’s resignation letters), the Court or the Shareholders Meeting
passes a resolution to remove a Director according to Section 76 of the Public Company Act B.E. 2535 (1992); or a
Director lacks the qualifications as specified in the Section 68 of the Public Company Act B.E. 2535 (1992).

4. In case the Director was vacated other than vacating their office by rotation, the remaining Directors will
select a qualified candidate who does not possess any prohibited characteristics as a replacement at the following
Board of Directors’ Meeting with a vote of not less than three quarters of the remaining Directors except the said
Directorial position has a period of less than 2 months to completion of term. The replaced Director may serve only

the period of time remaining to completion of such term.

The Development of Directors and Management.

The company promotes and facilitates training and the continuing education for related persons
with the Corporate Governance system such as, Directors, Management and Corporate Secretary, This enables
continuous improvement to work performance. In addition, in case there is the new director(s), the company will
arrange the orientation and plant visit to educate them on the company business regarding the company’s operation

overview, the development of business and organization, the good corporate governance policy and code of conduct.

Furthermore, the related laws and regulations including the other useful information are prepared

as the manual handbook for the new director to well perform the duty.

In addition, so as to ensure that the capabilities and experience of the Board of Directors can be
contributed maximum benefit for the company, there is no limitation to the number of times a Director may be

re-elected, nor any limitations in terms of a retirement age.

Governance of the Subsidiaries and Associated Companies
The Board of Directors has established the mechanism for overseeing and controlling the administration
of subsidiaries and associated companies by appointing the President and/or Independent Directors to be the
company’s representatives performing as the Director according to its stake in such subsidiaries and associated

companies.

Internal Information Control
The Board of Directors has a preventive measure of unfair using inside information by related persons.

The Directors, management and also employees who are closed to the company’s internal data, are supposed not
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to make advantage for themselves or their relatives and not to disclose any information to outsider or unrelated

persons before the important information is publicized.

Moreover, the Directors and management include their spouses and minor children who have changed in
the company’s shares owner have to inform the Securities and Exchange Commission within three working days
from the date of buying, purchasing, transferring and receiving the company’s shares and inform the Company
soonest. In the case whereby there’s any transaction with the company during the year, the Directors and management
have to inform to the company whether such transaction may lead to conflict of interests or not. These measures
are to ensure the transparency and fairness of the company. Additionally, the Directors and management also realize

the seriousness of penalty for insider trading.

Auditor Remuneration

1.) Audit fee

Audit fee payable to Office of auditor shown as details below:
- Fiscal year 2013 equal to 870,000 Baht
- Fiscal year 2014 equal to 840,000 Baht
- Fiscal year 2015 equal to 840,000 Baht

2.) Non audit fee
Service fee for observe and certify the destruction of registered products which under quality standard

payable to Office of Auditor shown as details below:

- Fiscal year 2013 equal to 10,000 Baht
- Fiscal year 2014 equal to 20,000 Baht
- Fiscal year 2015 equal to 30,000 Baht
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Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company’s Board of Directors adheres to business operation aligned with ethics and the Company’s Codes

of Conduct. Focusing on Fairness, Honesty, Transparency and concern to all stakeholders in order to drive the

Company to the corporate with high social responsibility and develop itself to the sustainable organization covering

8 core subjects as follows:

@ N o R WD

Fair Operating Practices

Anti-Corruption

Respect for Human Rights

Fair Treatment of Employees

Consumer Responsibilities

Environmental Conservation

Community Involvement and Social Development

Research and Development from Social Responsibility Operations

The Company published all relevant data on the company website www.crownseal.co.th on the Environment

& Social page topic of Social Responsibility
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Internal Control and Risk Management

1. Internal Control

The Board of Directors has put its emphasis on the internal control system continuously and has assigned
the Audit Committee consisting of independent directors to review whether the company has the suitable and
effective internal control system while the internal audit office which is independent from the management is
required to directly report to the Audit Committee, to assess the sufficiency of the internal control system of the
company to ensure that the company has the accuracy and credible information system and financial report, and
performed incompliance with rules, regulations, policies and working process of the company, laws and requirements
related to the business operation, and that the properties of the company are actually in existence and they are
controlled, maintained and put under proper care and that the operation of the company is undertaken efficiently
with resources utilized economically and is conducted in accordance with the plan aligning with the objectives and

targets of the company.

In the meeting of the Board of Directors No. 1/2559 on 22 February 2016, with attendance of all three Audit
Committee, the Board of Directors considered the assessment form on adequacy of the internal control system of
the company in accordance with the form provided by the SEC Office adopted from the concept of COSO (Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission) consisting of 5 major components and 17 minor principles
with major content as follows:

1) Control Environment:

« The company specifies the term of the visions, mission, strategy, and plans. in order to reach the
success of company’s goal.

» The company clearly sets up the organization chart according to the proper responsibility. This include
job description, scope of works and qualification in each position.

« The Board of Directors adopts the policy in accordance with the principles of Good Corporate
Governance and corporate ethic.

« The company consistency provides the opportunity to develop knowledge and skill for all employees.

2) Risk Management:

« The company established the Risk Management Committee by having the President as the
Chairman and the management as the committee, which have clearly role in operation.

+ Having the manual in Risk management to clearly set the guidance on practice and the criterion for
risk assessment in each level are established properly through the consideration of the opportunity to
incur (Likelihood) and the impact of the loss in both financial and no financial

+ Giving an approval for the Risk management plans and measures as well as evaluate the efficiency of
Risk management, review, revise plans to cope with the change of risk factors both internal and

external that may cause.

3) Activities Control
« The company has guidelines policy for operation in all departments. There are the action plan, key
performance indicators, and the annual budget to ensure the effectiveness of operation in reaching

the goals.
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e The company is given written procedure and authority manual of each management levels and regularly
review them to be in line with the changing situation. It is to assure that the operation is transparent
and flexible under appropriate and adequacy internal control.

+ In case if a connected transaction with the company’s related person whom may lead to conflict of
interests. That connected transaction shall comply with rules, regulations and related laws as same as

any other transaction.

4) Information and Communication

e The company sets up various channels for coommunications both internal and external. All concerning
parties can access to accurate, updated and adequate information for their operation and decision-
making.

+ The Board of Director’s meetings and the management meetings are regularly meet in order to deploy
the policy, working guidelines and share necessary information to involved officers.

e The company has introduced SAP system to record data and analyze the operating result. Also to
prepare for a financial report by using the Business Objects software which facilitates more accurate
work for the officers. To support the faster and more efficient decision-making for the management.

» The company set to up security system of internet usage securely and sufficiently. Having contingency
plan to reduce the effect of system shut down that may cause damage to the whole system. We also
go over and practice the contingency plan yearly.

» The employees can access data for information via internet, while outsider can receive information

from the company’s website www.crownseal.co.th which has been proved by the responsible

department manager or assigned officers.

5) Monitoring and Evaluation
e The management team meets monthly in order to monitor the performance of employees in all
levels by their key performance indicator. To ensure the operation is following the plan and reaching
the goal, by regularly reporting to the Board of Directors. When the results appear differently from
the goal, the committee will have some questions, suggestions and assign the management to resolve
the problem. Then report for the up-coming meeting.
+ Established the internal audit office to support the Audit Committee performing duty on supervision

of the internal control

The Board of Directors has considered the assessment form prepared by the management and the internal
audit office and reviewed by the Audit Committee. It was of opinion that the company has sufficient internal control
for the business which encouraged the company’s business smooth operation, and helped the company to look
after its properties and to use its resources efficiently. They found no significant non-conforming matter related to

the internal control system.

In addition, the external auditor of the company, E.Y Office Co., Ltd. which is the certified public accountant
for the financial statements for the year 2015 has found no significant non-conforming matter related to the internal

control system on accounting and finance of the company.
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2. Internal Audit

The Audit Committee assigned to supervise the internal audit office is independent, fair and competent in
accordance with the internal audit professional standard and to maintain the independence of the internal audit
office to conduct examination and check-and-balance duties so it is assigned to directly report to the Audit Committee
and make a report related to management to achieve the objectives and strategies of the company directly to the
President.

The Audit Committee of the company has approved the appointment, rotation and termination of employment
of the internal audit manager, developed to possess adequate education and experience, and provided proper
training courses related to internal audit work of the company. The Audit Committee has appointed Ms. Wannapa
Somprasit the internal audit manager since 2007 with educational background, related certificates and working
experience provided in Attachment 3.

The internal audit office of the company has undertaken the audit activities in accordance with the annual
audit plan approved by the Audit Committee through examination on performance of various departments with
respect to internal control system, compliance with rules, regulations, requirements, Article of Association of the
company or related laws and has provided recommendations to the management and the person in charge for
better performance. Also, to follow up on the result of improvement according to the recommendations of the

internal auditor and external auditor, then directly report to the Audit Committee on quarterly basis.

3. Risk Management

The Board of Directors has put priority on risk management through formation of the Risk Management
Committee to determine the policy, objective, risk management framework, to assess possible risks incurred from
internal and external factors and to determine measures to manage the risk to be at acceptable level while the
management of each department is responsible for risk assessment and management to ensure that the operation
of the company is undertaken and achieved as the target.

The internal audit office is assigned to monitor the performance in accordance with the risk management
plan periodically and make a report to the Audit Committee for comments before submission of a report to the

Board of Directors for consideration and acknowledeement.
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Related Party Transactions

1. As of 31 December 2015, the Company’s transactions with related companies are as follows:

1. Ordinary and usual
courses of business
transaction

Parties Involved

Relationship of

Contract

Basis of

Value (Million Baht)
Term
2014

Consideration Value

Determination

parts, raw materials
and machinery

Kanagata (Thailand) Co., Ltd. ®

the same partial group
of directors

The same major
shareholder

1.1 Sales of Crown Caps, Group of Boon Rawd Brewery Co., Shareholder and the - 72517 661.11 Monthly payment / with
Pilfer-Proof Caps, Ltd.! same partial group of reference to market
Maxi-Series and Plastic ~ ThaiNamthip Ltd.” directors price which are the same
Caps Sermsuk Plc.” rate as others

Toyo Seikan (Thailand) Co., Ltd. ¢ The same major
shareholder and the
same partial group of
directors

Nippon Closures Co., Ltd. (NCC) ® Major shareholder and
the same partial group
of directors

1.2 Sales of equipments Group of Boon Rawd Brewery Co., Shareholder and the - 1.36 1.53 Monthly payment /
and spare parts Ltd. same partial group of with reference to

Sermsuk Plc. directors market price which are

Nippon Closures Co., Ltd. (NCC) Major shareholder and the same rate as others
the same partial group
of directors

2. Transactions that

support ordinary and

usual course of business

2.1 Printing and related Bangkok Can Manufacturing Co., Ltd.®  The same major - 159.59 154.76 Monthly payment / with
- Printing and coating Next Can Innovation Co., Ltd. shareholder and the reference to market

metal sheet services same partial group of price which are the same
- Printing artworks directors rate as others
- Printing of sample
printed sheet
2.2 License agreement Nippon Closures Co., Ltd. (NCC) Major shareholder and 5 years 22.31 22.44 Half - yearly payment /
the same partial group royalty fee is set as a
of directors percentage rate of sales
volume of caps. And rate
charged by NCC is not
higher than others.
2.3 Purchase of spare Nippon Closures Co., Ltd. (NCC) Major shareholder and - 33.65 22.83 Monthly payment / with

reference to market
price which are the same
rate as others.

USGN W13U 971R (UKIBU)
Crown Seal Public Company Limited



Parties Involved

Relationship of

Contract

Basis of
Consideration Value
Determination

3. Short-term
property rental
contract which is
no longer than 3

years
3.1 Land lease Bangkok Can Manufacturing The same major 1 year 0.28 0.28 Yearly payment and
(3,626 Sgqm.) Co., Ltd. shareholder and the (1 Sep.14 - 31 Aug.15) lease rate is set by fair
(The Excise same partial group value appraised by
office and of directors independent appraiser.
Carpark)
3.2 Office rental Toyo Seikan (Thailand) Co., The same major 1 year 0.78 0.78 Yearly payment and
(360 Sqm.) Ltd. shareholder and the (1 Jan.15 - 31 Dec.15) rental rate is set by fair
same partial group value appraised by
of directors independent appraiser.
4. Asset and service
transactions
4.1 Administrative Bangkok Can Manufacturing ~ The same major 1 year 2.80 2.82 Monthly payment/ service
Service for Co., Ltd. shareholder and (1 Jan.15 - 31 Dec.15) fee is set by proportion of
Computer partial group of workload plus margin 4%
Software and directors
Hardware, SAP
and Personnel  Toyo Seikan (Thailand) Co.,  The same major 1 year 3.68 3.62 Monthly payment /
systems Ltd. shareholder and the (1 Jan.15 - 31 Dec.15) service fee is set by
same partial group proportion of workload
of directors plus margin 4%
Toyo Filling International The same major 1 year 0.98 0.89 Monthly payment /
Co., Ltd.9 shareholder (1 Jan.15 - 31 Dec.15) service fee is set by
proportion of workload
plus margin 4%
4.2 IT infrastructure  Bangkok Can Manufacturing The same major 1 year 0.97 1.16 Paying on due date /
Services Co., Ltd. shareholder and the (1 Jan.15 - 31 Dec.15) with reference to market
same partial group price as service provider
of directors charged.
Toyo Seikan (Thailand) Co.,, ~ The same major 1 year 0.05 0.30 Paying on due date / with
Ltd. shareholder (1 Jan.15 - 31 Dec.15) reference to market price
as service provider
charged.
Toyo Filling International The same major 1 year 0.01 0.08 Paying on due date / with

Co., Ltd.

shareholder

(1 Jan.15 - 31 Dec.15)

reference to market price
as service provider
charged.
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Parties Involved

Relationship of

Contract

Basis of
Consideration Value
Determination

4.3 Server Rental Bangkok Can The same major 4 years - 0.21 Yearly payment / rental
Manufacturing Co., Ltd shareholder and the (1 Jan.11 - 31 Dec.14) service fee is set by
same partial group proportion of number of

of directors users plus margin 4%

4 years

Toyo Seikan (Thailand) The same major (1 Jan.11 - 31 Dec.14) - 0.42 Yearly payment / rental
Co., Ltd. shareholder and the service fee is set by
same partial group proportion of number of

of directors users plus margin 4%
Toyo Filling International The same major 4 years - 0.07 Yearly payment / rental
Co., Ltd. shareholder (1 Jan.11 - 31 Dec.14) service fee is set by
proportion of number of

users plus margin 4%

4.4 Setup Service Next Can Innovation Co., The same major 4 months 3.62 - Service payment after
for Computer Ltd shareholder and the (15 Sep.14 - 15 Jan.16) completed work and
Software and same partial group service fee is set by
Hardware and of directors proportion of workload.
SAP

4.5 Machine Nippon Closures Co., Ltd. Major shareholder 1 year 2.04 2.04 Half - yearly payment /
Rental for Plastic (NCQO) and the same partial (15 Feb.15 - 14 Feb.16) rental fee is set by the
cap group of directors machinery depreciation

5% plus overhaul
expense 12.5%
4.6 Central Utility Toyo Seikan (Thailand) The same major 1 year 0.29 0.28 Monthly payment /
Service Co., Ltd shareholder and (1 Jan.15 - 31 Dec.15) service fee is set by
the same partial proportion of area and
group of directors number of staff plus
margin 4%

4.7 Land lease Bangkok Can The same major 30 Years 0.50 0.50 One - time payment
20-1-87 rai (Office  Manufacturing Co., Ltd shareholder and (2 Jul.01 - 1 Jul. 31) totally THB 15 million on
and 2-piece can the same partial contract date. Price of
plant) group of directors land is equal to base price

that company bought
from BCM. Rental rate is
1.5% per year of land
price at present value and
discount by 89%.

4.8 Land lease Bangkok Can The same major 30 Years 0.49 0.49 One time payment totally

8-3-80 rai
(Building no.
3,4 scrap
baler and
loading area)

Manufacturing Co., Ltd

shareholder and
the same partial
group of directors

(2 Jul.01 - 1 Jul. 31)

THB 14.78 million on
contract date/fair value of
land is appraised by
independent appraiser.
Rental rate is 1.5 % per
year of land price at
present value and
discount by 8%

USGN W13U 971R (UKIBU)
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Note :

Group of Boon Rawd Brewery Co., Ltd: Manufacturer and distributor of beverages.
ThaiNamthip Co., Ltd.; Manufacturer and distributor of beverages.

Sermsuk Plc.; Manufacturer and distributor of beverages.

Toyo Seikan (Thailand) Co., Ltd. ; Manufacturer and distributor of plastic bottles.
Nippon Closures Co., Ltd. ; Manufacturer and distributor of packaging.

S

Bangkok Can Manufacturing Co., Ltd.; Manufacturer and distributor of easy open end, 2-piece cans,

and 3-piece cans.

-

Next Can Innovation Co., Ltd ; Manufacturer and distributor of 2-piece cans

8. Kanagata (Thailand) Co., Ltd.; Manufacturer of injection moldings and plastic moldings.

\O

. Toyo Filling International Co., Ltd.: Containing and distributor of aerosol cans for body and hair products.

2. Necessities and Reasons for Entering into the Transactions

In 2015, the Company had transactions with related persons which can be categorized to 4 types (as disclosed
in article 1) as follows:

1. An ordinary business transaction

2. A supporting ordinary business transaction

3. A property rent and lease with no more than 3 years transaction

4. An asset or service transaction

The entering into above transactions, the Company had considered its reasons and necessities, conditions
and the fair price to gain the highest benefit for the Company. In case that ordinary business and supporting ordinary
business transactions, the Company proceeded with normal commercial terms of the ordinary and usual course of
business which is the same criteria as an external person. For the property rent and lease transactions with no more
than 3 years and the transaction related to the assets or services, the Company determined the rent and service
fee according to the fair value from the independent appraiser and using sharing cost basis according to the
proportion of workload plus the profit comparing with the market price.

The agreement in any transactions/contracts with any other persons who have conflicts of interest with the
Company, the necessities and reasons will be considered including all criteria and fair value to prevent the conflicts

of interest and gain the highest benefit for the Company.

s1u91uUs:9U 2558
Annual Report 2015



SIEVIUADIISUNQBOUUODATUENSSIINISODSIEDIUNIDNISIDU

AnuzNTTINISUTIN ugfulinreudesun1siuresuing duintunusnnsgiunsmenumnsduiitmun
Tunsesvudya v Tndnyd wa2507 lnsuansmenmslusunmsiunutedmuslulszmansuimungsianisasiud 28
fugneu 2554 senmueulunszswsydinnsUyagRnistad we. 2543 egldRnsandonliulouieTyiiuuvay
wazdeufifesuaiaue suidnaliamedeyaddyedafiismelumnomeusznavsumsiu TnefaeutyTues Ui
fin UM dineu 9218 ia léfmwaamumiﬁuLLazLLammmLﬁuiuiwmuﬁumé’aauﬂ’iy%aEJ'N"LJJﬁLE"aulﬁu

AnTIINIUTENY Soliitluazinselifassuunmsuivnsaudeauasnisauauaelu e liiulalfegnsdivama
Instufindeyanedadfinnugnies asudiu uazifleametiazissidmindau uasilelimmuanseuiietosiudlifn
syt unsiiaunfegiedianssddny Insamenssunisuine Tduiirnenssunsasaaoy desznaude
n3sUNSBATE S 3 i vihmthitdAuguasieanuyansiy asumuszuumsmuaunely waznsasvaeunely
TflanuumnzauiasiivszdnSam lneauiuresnnenssunismnsivaeulsnngegluseureinanssunIsnTaaey
Fauansllusenudseddudn

AMZNTIUNITUSEN® Tiannuiuinssuunisaiuaunislukaznisnsavaeuneluvesuisnm daunsnasniy
WeuagelilvnnaInaun1siuYeeUTE v 9110 (Wvnvw) sl Tui 31 Sunnau 2558 drnugndeswnuiinisluansdfay
PNUNIATFIUNNTIIBNUNNITRY

Ll A K.

(Bl &R) (genAled lnug)
Us¥51UnNIIUNIS n3suN1IuAzHAnNTsIvgy
USGN W13U 971R (UKIBU)

Crown Seal Public Company Limited



Report on the Board of Directors’ Responsibility for
the Company’s Financial Statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the Company’s financial statements which have been prepared
in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards enunciated under the Accounting Professions Act B.E. 2547
and their presentation has been made in compliance with the stipulations of the Notification of the Department
of Business Development dated 28 September 2011, issued under the Accounting Act B.E.2543.The Board considered
the accounting policies pursued to be appropriate, and they have been applied consistently with adequate
disclosure of important information in the notes to the financial statements. EY Office Limited, the Company’s
external auditor, has audited the financial statements and expressed an unqualified opinion in the auditor’s report.

The Board establishes and maintains the risk management and internal control system to obtain reasonable
assurance that accounting records are accurate, completely and enough to maintain the Company’s assets and
be aware of weak point in order to prevent fraud or significant operational irregularities. The Board has appointed
the Audit Committee consisting of 3 independent directors to provide appropriate and effective oversight of the
financial statements, internal control system and internal audit. The opinion of the Audit Committee has already
been disclosed in its report in the Company’s annual report.

The Board is of opinion that the Company’s internal control system and internal audit that was sufficient

to obtain reasonable assurance in the Company’s financial statements as of December 31, 2015, which present
fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards.

2L Ml K.

( Mr. Hirofumi Miki) (Mr. Akiyoshi Toba)
Chairman Director and President
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Audit Committee Report

To The Shareholders

The Audit Committee of Crown Seal Company Limited consists of three knowledgeable Independent
Directors, with experience in economics, business, accounting and auditing. These members have appropriate
qualifications as requirements of the Securities Exchange Commission (SEC) which are consisting Mrs. Pilai
Piemphongsarn as the Chairman of the Committee, Mr. Satit Chanjavanakul and Mr.Pongpanu Svetarundra as
Committee Members and Ms. Wannapa Somprasit as Secretary.

The Audit Committee has independently performed according to its assignment from the Board of Directors
in accordance with the Stock Exchange of Thailand’s regulations. For the year 2015, the Audit Committee held 4
meetings with the external auditor, senior executives, and internal audit manager. In addition, the Committee held
a private meeting with the external auditor to know that they had performed independently and cooperated with
the company’s management as well. The significant matters are summarized as follows;

1. The Audit Committee reviewed the company’s quarterly and annual financial statements for Year 2015
and discussed with the external auditor, in all material respects, regarding the accuracy, completeness, reliability
of the financial statements and the sufficient disclosure. The Audit Committee is of the opinion that the financial
statements have been presented fairly in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards, including the disclosure
sufficiently to stakeholders’ benefit.

2. The Audit Committee reviewed the evaluation results for the company’s internal control system, which
had been prepared by the managements using guideline from the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission
(SEQ). In addition, the Committee reviewed internal audit reports as the approved audit plan. The Audit Committee
has opinion that the internal control system of the company has sufficiency and appropriately control for operational
business.

3. The Audit Committee reviewed the risk management system, including the actions taken to mitigate
significant risks. And has an opinion that sufficient management. The Audit Committee also assigned the Internal
Audit Office to follow up the results of significant risk management regularly.

4. The Audit Committee approved the internal audit plan for 2016 which emphasizes the effectiveness in
operation, the evaluation of internal control and risk management in business operations.

5. The Audit Committee reviewed the compliance with law on the Securities and Stock Exchange, the Stock
Exchange of Thailand’s regulation and other laws relating to the company’s business. The company has performed
in compliance with law, regulation and relevant requirements continuously.

6. The Audit Committee reviewed the company’s connected transactions or the transactions may lead to
conflict of interest to ensure accuracy and complied with the Stock Exchange of Thailand’s regulations which have
been considered natures of transactions, reason and necessity. The Committee is of opinion that it has reasonability,
fairness and adequate disclosure of information completely.

7. The Audit Committee considered the company’s external auditors for 2016 that the independence,
performance, experience and qualification with the appropriateness of audit fee. The Audit Committee consequently
recommended that the Board of Directors propose the appointment of EY Office Ltd.
Mr. Chayapol Suppasedtanon C.P.A. Registration No. 3972 or Ms. Pimjai Manitkajohnki C.P.A. Registration No.4521 or
Ms. Rosaporn Decharkom C.P.A. Registration No. 5659, as the company’s external auditor for 2016 at the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders.

On behalf of the Audit Committee

P R
Mrs. Pilai Piemphongsarn

Chairman of the Audit Committee
February 16, 2016
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The Explanation and Analysis of operating results for the year
2015 compared to 2014

In year 2015, the Company had earnings before tax for the amount of 409 million Baht, deducted the corporate
income tax for the amount of 84 million Baht, the Company had net profit of 325 million Baht. The earnings per
share were 6.3 Baht, which was nearly to the previous year. The net profit ratio was 10.9% and the return on equity
was 12.6%.

The Company had net profit by equity method for the year 2015 for the amount of 323 million Baht, which
had decreased from previous year for 4 million Baht or equivalent to 1.5%.

The Company had comprehensive income for the year 2015 for the amount of 320 million Baht, which had

decreased from previous year 21 million Baht or equivalent to 6.2%. Unit : Million Baht
Different
Year 2015 | Year 2014
)

Earnings before tax 408
Less Corporate income tax 84 82 2) 0.1
Net Profit — Cost Method 325 326 (1) (0.2)
Share of profit (Loss) from
. . : 2) 2 (4) 200.0
investment in associated company
Net Profit — Equity Method 323 328 (5) (1.2)
Exchange differences on translation

. . : (3) 1 (4) (400.0)
of financial statements in foreign currency
Unrealized gain on revaluation of land - 15 (15) N/A
Income tax effect - (3) 3 N/A
Total comprehensive income 320 341 (21) (6.2)

For the overall picture of year 2015, the Company had Sale and services income for the amount of 2,843
million Baht, which had increased from previous year for the amount of 62 million Baht or equivalent to
2.2%. The gross profit had the amount of 470 million Baht, which had increased from the previous year for
the amount of 55 million Baht or equivalent to 13.2%. Other incomes for the amount of 160 million Baht,
which had decreased from previous year for the amount of 43 million Baht or equivalent to 21.5%, resulting
to the Company had profit from the Separate financial statement for the amount of 325 million Baht, which
was nearly to the previous year.

The Company had invested with the under-construction Associated Company that had not yet started any
operation. The Company had the share of loss for investment in associated company for the amount of 2 million
Baht. As the result the Company had the net profit by equity method for the year 2015 for the amount of 323
million Baht, which had decreased from previous year for the amount of 5 million Baht or equivalent to 1.5%.

The Company had loss from the exchange differences on translation of financial statement in foreign
currency for the amount of 3 million Baht and there was no unrealized gain on revaluation of land compared
from previous year. Resulting to the comprehensive income had the year 2015 for the amount of 320 million
Baht, which had decreased from previous year 21 million Baht or equivalent to 6.2%.
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«  Revenues

In year 2015, the Company had the total revenues of 3,003 million Baht consisted of sales and service income
for the amount of 2,843 million Baht or equivalent to 94.7% of total revenues. Other incomes consisted of income
from sales of scrap metal, administrative income, rental income, and interest income for the total of 160 million
Baht or equivalent to 5.3% of total revenues.

The Company had the total revenues increased from the previous year for the amount of 19 million Baht or
equivalent to 0.6%. It came from the gain for the increase of sales and service income for the amount of 62 million
Baht or equivalent to 2.2% and the decrease of other income for the amount of 43 million Baht or equivalent to 21.5%.
It was due to the fact that in the year 2015 there was no gain on change in the value of investment property. For the

year 2014 there was gained on change in the value of investment property for the amount of 49 million Baht.

Unit : Million Baht

Year 2015 Year 2014 Different

Amount Amount Amount

Revenues
Sales 2,681 89.3 2,624 87.9 57 2.2
Service income 162 54 157 53 5 3.1

Total sales and

o 2,843 94.7 2,781 93.2 62 2.2
service income
Other income 160 53 203 6.8 (43) (21.2)
Total revenues 3,003 100.0 2,984 100.0 19 0.6

USGN W13U 971R (UKIBU)
Crown Seal Public Company Limited



e Sales, Cost of Sales and Gross Profit

In 2015 the Company had sales and printing services incomes for the amount of 2,843 million Baht, which was
higher than previous year for the amount of 62 million Baht or equivalent to 2.2%. The cost of sales and services
were 2,373 million Baht or equivalent to 83.5% of sales. The Company had gross profit for the amount of 470
million Baht or equivalent to 16.5% of sales, which had increased from the year 2014 for the amount of 55 million
Baht or equivalent to 13.2%. Mainly, it was due to the increase in proportion of sale quantity and new cap product,
which had the quality of rust resistances including the sale of the high profit products. In addition, the Company

had decreased the cost of sale from the lower raw material price.

Unit : Million Baht

Year 2015 Year 2014 Different

Sales and Service income 2,843 100.0 2,781 100.0 62 2.2
Cost of sales and Service 2,373 83.5 2,366 85.1 7 0.3
Gross profit 470 16.5 415 14.9 55 13.2

« Selling & Administrative Expenses

In the year 2015, the Company had selling and administrative expenses for the amount of 221 million Baht or
equivalent to 7.3% of total revenues. It was consisted of selling expenses for the amount of 66 million Baht or
equivalent to 2.2% of total revenues. The administrative expenses were amounting 155 million Baht or equivalent

to 5.1% of total revenues.

The Company’s selling expenses had decreased from the previous year for the amount of 4 million Baht or
equivalent of 5.7%. In the year 2015 the expenses for the compensation for the under standard products of the

Company had been decreased.

The Company had increased the administrative expenses for the amount of 15 million Baht or equivalent to
10.7%. The main reasons were in the year 2015 the personnel expenses of the Company had been increased for
the amount of 5 million Baht or equivalent to 5.2%, loss from written off machinery equipment from replacement
for the amount of 5 million Baht or equivalent to 3.5 times, and the increase of other administrative expenses
including the travelling expenses and the repair and maintenance of building and entertained expenses for the

amount of 3 million Baht.

Unit : Million Baht

Year 2015 Year 2014 Different

% of total % of total
Amount Amount Amount
revenues revenues

Selling & administrative expenses

Selling expenses 66 2.2 70 2.4 (4) (5.7)
Administrative expenses 155 5.1 140 a.7 15 10.7
Total expenses 221 7.3 210 7.1 11 52
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« Corporate Income Tax

In the year 2015, the Company had the corporate income tax for the amount of 84 million Baht, which had

increased from the previous year for the amount of 2 million Baht or equivalent to 2.4%.

The current income tax for 2015 had the amount of 85 million Baht, which had increased for the amount of
12 million Baht from the previous year. It was due to the Company had the earning before tax had increased for

the amount of 51 million Baht or equivalent to 14.49%.

The Company had the deferred tax reversal for the amount of one million Baht, coming from the increase of
allowance for diminution in value of inventories from the previous year. In the year 2015, the deferred tax had
been decreased for the amount of 10 million Baht or equivalent to 11 times from previous year due to the deferred
tax liabilities of the Company had the amount of 9 million Baht in year 2014. Mainly, it came from the gain on

change in the value of investment properties and gain on revaluation surplus on land.

Unit : Million Baht

Different

Year 2015 Year 2014

Income Tax
Current income tax 85 73 12 16.4
Deferred tax expenses (1) 9 10 111.1

Total 84 82 2 24

« (Capital Expenditures

In the year 2015, the Company had the capital expenditures for the amount of 254 million Baht. The main
portion of the investment was the machinery for new product and increasing the efficiency. Moreover, the Company

had increased the capacity of production according to the demand of markets.

Financial Status

o Assets

The total assets of the Company at the year-end of 2015 were 3,327 million Baht, which had increased from
2014 for the amount of 216 million Baht or equivalent to 6.9%. It consisted of the current assets, investment in
associated company, long-term investment, investment properties, property plants & equipment and other non-
current assets in the ratio of 47.1%, 1.3%, 1.4%, 14.2%, 35.6% and 0.4% respectively. Assets categories were as

follows:

USGN W13U 971R (UKIBU)
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Unit : Million Baht

Financial statements in which equity method

31 December 2015 31 December 2014 Different
Current assets 1,567 47.1 1,436 46.2 131 9.1

Non-Current assets :

Investment in

associated 43 1.3 49 1.6 (6) (12.2)
company
Long-term
45 1.4 45 1.4 - -
investment
Investment
474 14.2 474 15.2 - -
properties
Property Plants and
) 1,186 35.6 1,069 34.4 117 10.9
Equipments
Other non-current
12 0.4 38 1.2 (26) (68.4)
assets
Total Assets 3,327 100.0 3,111 100.0 216 6.9

Total current asset was 1,567 million Baht had increased from 2014 for the amount of 131 million Baht or
equivalent to 9.1%. There were cash for the amount of 499 million Baht, which had increased for the amount of
44 million Baht or equivalent to 9% from previous year, coming from the surplus cash of the operating activities.
The current investment from fixed deposit for the amount of 210 million Baht, which had increased for the amount
of 170 million Baht or equivalent of 4 times.  The account receivable was 406 million Baht, which had been
decreased for the amount of 31 million Baht or equivalent to 7% from previous year due to decrease seasoning
sale at year-end and better mixed payment terms for credit. The inventory had the amount of 442 million Baht,
which had decreased for the amount of 46 million Baht or equivalent to 10% from previous year due to the

management of reduction of production at year-end.

Investment in the associated company by equity method had the amount of 43 million Baht had decreased
from previous year for the amount of 6 million Baht or equivalent to 12%. It was due to the Company recognized
the share of profit from investment in associated company for the amount of 2 million Baht and the exchange

differences on translation of financial statement in foreign currency for the amount of 4 million Baht.

Property, plant and equipments amounted of 1,186 million Baht, which had increased from 2014 for the
amount of 117 million Baht or equivalent to 10.9%. The main reason was the Company had increased the
investment in new machinery including capacity expansion and new product for the amount of 278 million Baht.
The calculation of the depreciation of total assets was 154 million Baht and written off the asset for the amount of
7 million Baht.
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Other non-current assets had the amount of 12 million Baht, which had decreased from the year 2014 for the
amount of 26 million Baht or equivalent to 68.4%. It was due to the year 2015 the Company had decreased the

asset of down payment for the purchase of machinery at year-end.

- Liabilities

The total liabilities of the Company at the year-end of 2015 were 618 million Baht, which had decreased from
year 2014 for the amount of 11 million Baht or equivalent to 1.7%. It consisted of current liabilities, deferred tax
liabilities, and non-current liabilities, for the ratio of 69.7%, 5.0% and 25.3% respectively. Liabilities categories were

as follows:

31 December 2015 31 December 2014 Different

Current Liabilities 431 69.7 aaq 70.6 (13) (2.9)
Deferred Tax Liabilities 31 5.0 32 5.1 (1) (3.1)
Non-Current Liabilities 156 25.3 153 24.3 3 2.0

Total Liabilities 618 100.0 629 100.0 (11 (1.7

Current liabilities amounted of 431 million Baht, which had decreased for the amount of 13 million Baht or
equivalent to 2.9%. The trade and other payable had the amount of 374 million Baht, which had decreased for
the amount 20 million Baht or equivalent to 5% from previous year. It was due to the decrease price of raw
materials. The corporate income tax payable had the amount of 41 million Baht, which had increased for the
amount of 8 million Baht or equivalent to 24.6%. It was due to the earning from operation had increased from

previous year.

Deferred tax liabilities amounted of 31 million Baht, which had decreased for the amount of one million Baht
or equivalent to 3.1%. It was consisted of the deferred tax assets, which came from the allowance for diminution
in value of inventory had increased for the amount of 0.7 million Baht and deferred tax liabilities, which came from

the temporary difference of depreciation had decreased for the amount of 0.3 million Baht.

Non-current liabilities had the amount of 156 million Baht, which had increased from year 2014 for the amount
of 3 million Baht or equivalent to 2.0%. It came from the provision for long-term employees’ benefits for the
amount of 142 million Baht, which had increased from previous year for the amount of 4 million Baht or equivalent
to 2.7% and the rental received in advance for the amount of 14 million Baht, which had decreased for the amount

of one million Baht or equivalent to 6.7%.

USGN W13U 971R (UKIBU)
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+  Shareholders’ Equity

As of 31° December 2015, the shareholders’ equity by equity method amounted of 2,708 million Baht, which

had increased from the previous year for the amount of 226 million Baht or equivalent to 9.1%. It was due to the

Company had the retained earnings as of 31* December 2015 amounted of 1,717 million Baht, which had increased

from previous year for the amount of 230 million Baht or equivalent to 15.5%. During the year of 2015, the

Company had paid the dividends for 2014 for the amount of 94 million Baht and other components of shareholders'

equity for the amount 24 million Baht. The other components of shareholders' equity consisted of surplus on land

for the amount of 26 million Baht and loss the exchange different on translation of financial statement in foreign

currency for the amount of 2 million Baht.

 Liquidity and Source of funds & Used of funds

Liquidity in 2015, the Company had cash and cash equivalent for the amount of 499 million Baht, which
had increased from the year 2014 for the amount of 44 million Baht. Mainly, It was the use from the

operating activities.
As of 31st December 2015, the Company current ratio was 3.63 times which had increased from the
previous year, of which the current ratio was 3.24 times. The debt to equity ratio was 0.25 times had

better than the previous year, which was 0.27 times.

Source of funds & Used of funds for 2015 consisted of

Cash flows from operating activities amounted 550 million Baht, which was the income from operating
activities before changes in operating assets and liabilities amounted 555 million Baht. The Company
had decreased the change of operating assets for the amount of 98 million Baht, coming from
account receivable and the inventories. The change of operating liabilities had decreased for the
amount of 26 million Baht, coming from trade and other payable and other current liabilities. In

addition, the Company had paid the corporate income tax for the amount of 77 million Baht.

Cash used in investing activities had the amount of 413 million Baht. It was mainly from the investment
for the purchase of new machinery for the amount of 254 million Baht and current investment from
fixed deposit for the amount of 170 million Baht. In addition the Company had interest income for

the amount of 11 million Baht.

Cash flows from financial activities had the amount of 94 million Baht. It was mainly from the

company paid dividend to common shares and preferred shares.
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(Wihs: um)
UMsEUdauans
RuaayuanuiSanlade UMIEURMEAINg
B 2558 2557 2558 2557

Funind
Aunsndnyuieu
Ruaauazsen1siisumintuan 7 498,774,412 454,750,901 498,774,412 454,750,901
ﬁuamusz?mm 210,289,460 40,289,460 210,289,460 40,289,460
gnmﬁmiﬁmazqnwﬁ%u 6,8 406,306,624 437,060,399 406,306,624 437,060,399
AuAAunae 9 442,310,110 489,122,464 442,310,110 489,122,464
dunindvauioudu 9,005,838 15,114,970 9,005,838 15,114,970
FFunITndnyu I 1,566,686,444  1,436,338,194  1,566,686,444  1,436,338,194
Aunsndlinyuisu
Ruasuluuignsu 10 43,315,499 49,016,701 46,341,825 46,341,825
RuamuITYLeN) 11 45,296,738 45,296,738 45,296,738 45,296,738
sdFumindiitonisasmu 12 474,000,000 474,000,000 474,000,000 474,000,000
iy o1AsuazgUnsal 13 1,185,665000  1,068,532,823  1,185,665,000  1,068,532,823
Funsndlifidnu 14 2,902,932 5,528,659 2,902,932 5,528,659
auw%fwsihjmuﬁau?ju 8,948,080 32,110,207 8,948,080 32,110,207
sadunindlinyuieu 1,760,128,249  1,674,485128  1,763,154,575  1,671,810,252
SUAUNING 3,326,814,693  3,110,823,322  3,329,841,019  3,108,148,446
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Wwilnsiuasdmiibu 6 16 370,432,084 394,113,007 374432084 394,113,007
Afudimihiiasutmunduinelunidd 6 992,608 1,179,275 992,608 1,179,275
MERuUlATRYARaA1T1Y 40,785,420 32,745,957 40,785,420 32,745,957
wildumudoudu 15,131,764 15,566,821 15,131,764 15,566,821
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mwﬁau‘lﬁwguﬁau 187,160,772 185,461,783 187,160,772 185,461,783
srumiiay 618,502,648 629,066,843 618,502,648 629,066,843
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23,932,495 27,305,892 26,234,263 26,234,263
2,708,312,045 2,481,756,479 2,711,338,371 2,479,081,603
3,326,814,693 3,110,823,322 3,329,841,019 3,108,148,446
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(Wihe: um)
MU
Ruaayuauisanlide WNMsRUANZAINTS
e 2558 2557 2558 2557

s1elé
swlsannisue 6 2,680,650,215  2,623,782,857  2,680,650,215  2,623,782,857
swldanmsliusms 6 162,035,633 157,120,193 162,035,633 157,120,193
selddu 21 159,842,722 203,479,367 159,842,722 203,479,367
sauseld 3,002,528,570  2,984,382,417  3,002,528,570  2,984,382,417
Anldae
AU 2,233,424,181  2,237,031,374  2,233,424,181  2,237,031,374
fuyunstiuinig 139,189,492 128,735,237 139,189,492 128,735,237
Alganelunisve 65,987,687 70,456,630 65,987,687 70,456,630
Alganalunisuimg 154,526,611 139,518,054 154,526,611 139,518,054
sauAldane 2,593,127,971  2,575,741,295  2,593,127,971  2,575,741,295
mlsnaudauusilsaniduauluuiensay

wazA e 8Ruld 409,400,599 408,641,122 409,400,599 408,641,122
dnuiamly @ianw) ntuamuluuignsu 10 (2,327,805) 1,603,247 - -
AlsneuAldinen@tuld 407,072,794 410,244,369 409,400,599 408,641,122
AldanEdule 23 (83,544,899) (82,238,513) (83,544,899) (82,238,513)
Alsdmsud 323,527,895 328,005,856 325,855,700 326,402,609
filssiaiu 24
flsseruduiug

Mlsdnsul 6.22 6.31 6.27 6.28
lsreruuiuan

Mlsdnsul 6.13 6.21 6.17 6.18

wmsuw;ﬂssna‘uwmiﬁuLfludawﬁwawumsﬁuﬁ
USGN thdu $9Am (UKIBU) 131

Crown Seal Public Company Limited



sumlsynanuldialas

n Wadu 9Na (UKIBU)
Suddugadun 31 suoTAY 2558
(wdqe: um)
UNMsRuTauans
Ruasuaudsdlide UMIEUaNEiang
NUELNG) 2558 2557 2558 2557
Alsdwnsudl 323,527,895 328,005,856 325,855,700 326,402,609
Alsvanuidaaiadu:
semsitoslaignuiiinlugivearalsnse
PIayulunevas
KasnavessaTIanUABuaINnITuUAAn
aumMsiuiifudunsessema (3,373,397) 1,071,629 ) )
watlsAgsliRntuannisiisiaiu 13,20 - 14,598,324 - 14,598,324
NANSENUVIN SRl 23 _ (2,919,665) _ (2,919,665)
‘nEJm317ﬁ]zhjg‘]ﬂﬂuﬁﬂuduuﬁumﬁﬂw’%a
vianulunends - grsann il (3373397) 12,750,288 - 11,678,659
lsvauidaiodudmivl (3,373,397) 12,750,288 - 11,678,659
ilsvnnuidaasasaudmiul 320,154,498 340,756,144 325,855,700 338,081,268

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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flsneund 407,072,794 410,244,369 409,400,599 408,641,122
sremsuunsenuseamlsnounmdiiutuansu @1e)
NAINTIUAWTUIY
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2558 2557 2558 2557
(170,000,000) (40,289,460) (170,000,000) (40,289,460)
- (46,341,825) - (46,341,825)
(277,646,987) (228,803,381) (277,646,987) (228,803,381)
171,474 750,641 171,474 750,641
(38,080) (4,482,448) (38,080) (4,482,448)
24,089,640 (28,603,640) 24,089,640 (28,603,640)
10,811,630 12,967,876 10,811,630 12,967,876
- 14,100 - 14,100
(412,612,323) (334,788,137) (412,612,323) (334,788,137)
(93,598,932) (93,598,932) (93,598,932) (93,598,932)
(93,598,932) (93,598,932) (93,598,932) (93,598,932)
43,870,736 (34,688,176) 43,870,736 (34,688,176)
152,775 192,986 152,775 192,986
454,750,901 489,246,091 454,750,901 489,246,091
498,774,412 454,750,901 498,774,412 454,750,901
- 14,598,324 - 14,598,324
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180 191
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498,774 454,751

a4 JUT 31 SunAn 2558 RurnesunsnduasRurinUsyandonsinendeseninadasay 0.10 519 2.03 aal (2557: Seuay
0.10 14 2.65 wat)

~
)

8.  ankMsmua:gankddu
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AUNTRUTIARIRIUAINU
paisaulaLEy /
JUNNTHEULERNIZAINTT
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anuiinisdn - Aamsiiieadosiy
awquﬁmﬁ”wﬁ’umﬂi’uﬁﬁﬁﬁmumﬁiz
galaifamnuntise 70,978 74,863
ANNTITY
TaliAu3 wwou 29,721 33,441
sagnuiiniedn - Aansfieatostu 100,699 108,304
anuiinsén - Aamsitlidndasiu
prgninsaTun Ui mundisy
galyfarimungise 238,169 255,222
ANNTTY
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3- 6 ipiou 256 10
6 - 12 o 15 -
mugﬂuﬁmié’ﬂ - Aansiildifendeetu 293,726 314,291
Qﬂwﬁ%u - famsfiieadesiy
RUNATHY 93 2,743
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KIVIOERR 1,945 887
anniinnsueiayTan 694 1,048
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AUAIENINN 11,673 - 11,673 20,370 - 20,370
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RRLY 475,170 (32,860) 442,310 517,853 (28,731) 489,122
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(2557:28 duum) lnewansdudimiesiuyuig waslinandusenisuivanyamdudasndadudiuim

12 duum (2557: 22 duum) Ineluinannyadvesdudiauviensuiidueldineluseningg

10. BuavnuluusGnsoU

10.1 $79aLLDNVBIUITENTIY

(W2g: NUUm)

JUMIRUTILAR WMTRUWRNE
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PTIndonesiaCapsand ~ REPUERA LY &5190035 25 43,315 49,017 46,342 46,342
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dndu

Ruamu
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USEN UenanLAY LLEJ‘IJHLLW?WL%E]%J 9109 1.61 9,494 9,494
UTEN LWgsne 9119 10.00 35,000 35,000
USEN auuneaviiissen 1in 0.08 180 180
USEN Wwwsiingnn 91in 0.03 273 273
UM Wesendasneanaesa 3100 0.06 350 350
TN 55,297 55,297
n: ﬁi%ﬁamiamawaagam (10,000) (10,000)
RUAMUITYEYET - N0 45,297 45,297

odvKISUNSWEIWONSaNU
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WM IRUBManIiuamuIITdmlads Aumsduamsians

2558
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Pawdieliagn  Aweads e 57U
gonRUUYTAUY 172,000 158,400 143,600 474,000
gannuUyTUatel 172,000 158,400 143,600 474,000
srelaandgnsud 1,273 - - 1,273
Al - - - -
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I3 @ o v = & v a a v a q vaa \ A oA =
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UM IRUBUAnIRuAMUAsd by AunmsRuanzianis
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finudnassuay
fRwdiolian  Feeads e 7

BoAn U TAUY 143,498 159,800 121,934 425,232
raflsansannsisialuyad
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Algane - - - -
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UNsRUTUanIRuaunIsaulade / sunsRuanieianig

2558
ASNETa
WEAI SR 1R3!
eyl Funinddauansyarmusnmu
RN
DIATTUAE Aasaededd  aunind
duvfuln  wRewns  dninmuer  sewing
iy 9115 dewaumsal e findta 53

A9 / Al
1 uns1Au 2558 99,000 443912 2,161,785 82,046 148,270 2,935,013
‘%E)L‘WIN - - 21,402 2,022 254,223 277,647
WY - (Ta7)  (43,898) (1,472) - (46,117)
Touit (99n) - 6,93¢ 285,671 8,660  (301,265) -
31 §171AN2558 99,000 450,099 2,424,960 91256 101,228 3,166,543
Andeusaazay
1 uns1Ay 2558 - 275916 1,534,096 56,468 - 1,866,480
Andousnandnud - 16,443 128,649 9,152 - 154,244
Adeusadmiudd
RNV Vetd - (844)  (37,532) (1,470) - (39,846)
31 §uAY 2558 - 291,515 1,625,213 64,150 - 1,980,878
yaA1gNEANUYY
31 §unAY 2558 99,000 158,584 799,747 27,106 101,228 1,185,665
Adousiandmiud 2558
(150 a1uum TaueglusununInEn dauﬁmﬁEmmaeﬂuﬁﬂ%’«jwﬂumiﬁmi) 154,244
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WEIRS A WL
STl ﬁuw%’w&ﬁaLLam;‘Jjaﬁhmmﬂmvlu
PR DNt
DI Aodariedd  Aunind
duliuup whednuee dinmuee  sewing
iy 2PN gUnnl  onwmr Aes 534

MU / IAiiaivel
1 unsiAu 2557 84,402 389,196 1,948,030 65,445 223,805 2,710,878
%@Lﬁm - - 23,313 2,524 202,967 228,804
As1Adiy 14,598 - - - - 14,598
g - (2,100)  (16,248) (919) - (19,267)
Toultn (a8n) - 56,816 206,690 14,996 (278,502) -
31 5UNAN2557 99,000 443912 2,161,785 82,046 148,270 2,935,013
AndausAnazey
1 4ns1Ad 2557 - 262,075 1,443,114 49,077 - 1,754,266
Andousiandnsud - 15,942 104,504 8,282 - 128,728
Andeusimdnsudni
MUY - (2,101)  (13,522) (891) - (16,514)
31 5uAN 2557 - 275,916 1,534,096 56,468 - 1,866,480
UARENSANUYY
31 SuMAN 2557 99,000 167,996 627,689 25,578 148,270 1,068,533
Andeusandmiul 2557
(123 &uum Tueglusuyumsdn duiivderaegluaidaelumasmg) 128,728

Usemlidalitinisuszidiusmnfuasiagaluiiousuinau 2557 lneu3en audiu udmnsda (Usznelng)
$iin IngldiaSeudioummeaadunasilunsivunyasgiisssy useng Gufinnailsidaliiatuann
MsfsAARusIw 15 auum Wumlsuaudaededulusuilsuaudnasadmsul 2557

v A o a

MNUIENIUAAILAAIvDINRURINATIMETS AL YaranSaudnd o Tufl 31 Sunau 2558 uag 2557 10
IR 66 S1UUm

o o A v o« ¢ o e v Lo v \ !
ad UM 31 5UAU 2558 ‘Ui‘tsz“mmmiLLaquﬂimmmuwmmmmLaam’lﬂ’mmLLa’JLLMEJQmSL‘Uﬂmag aﬂam
CY a C% 1 lﬁl a U 6 U a o a v ¥
AINVYTNDUNNANADNINANFSAUVDIAUN INYAINATINITUIULU 1,251a7UuU (2557: 1,037@714‘U'W|)

91ANTUATLATEITNTUNEAIURDNTINANTTINAUTENINUTINY AUUTE venenuAY LuuyLnALRe3s 11 lny
Uit Juiinermsuaziasosdnsdenanimudndiniiluvesion Tadlyaraudalo Suil 31 Sunau 2558
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I @ o 1

AFINUNYEINS U

AvnIUearaLUatsl

Aunndlifidmu - gvs

1AM UAUT

Fouiu

ulaed
ARAIeE ALY
AFRUNEENS U
ARnIazanUaet

Aunndlifidm - gvs

(W38 WUUN)

UNMIRUTERIIUaIUNLIBdUlAde /
UNSRUWANIZAINTSG

2558
YONAUIS
ADUNLADS ansnsuan EieH

44,966 1,260 46,226

38 - 38

45,004 1,260 46,264
40,067 630 40,697
2,349 315 2,664
42,416 945 43,361
2,588 315 2,903

(W28 WUUI)

UNIRUBMaRIRUaMUAATElAEY /
WMIRWANIZAINTSG

2557
YONGLIT
ADUNLADS AnsnsHan EieH
40,483 1,889 42,372
4,483 - 4,483
44,966 1,889 46,855
37,955 945 38,900
2,111 315 2,426
40,066 1,260 41,326
4,900 629 5,529
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Shareholders of Crown Seal Public Company Limited

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of Crown Seal Public Company Limited, which comprise the
statement of financial position, in which the equity method is appliedas at 31 December 2015, and the related statement of
income, in which the equity method is applied, the statement of comprehensive income, in which the equity method is applied,
the statement of changes in shareholders’ equity, in which the equity method is applied and the statement ofcash flows, in
which the equity method is applied for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information, and have also audited the separate financial statements of Crown Seal Public Company Limited for

the same year.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
Thai Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. | conducted my audit in
accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion
In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Crown Seal Public Company Limited as at 31 December 2015, its financial performance and cash flows for the year then

@MLW

Pimjai Manitkajohnkit
Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 4521

ended, in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards.

EY Office Limited
Bangkok: 22 February 2016
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Statement of financial position

Crown Seal Public Company Limited
As at 31 December 2015

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements in which

equity method is applied Separate financial statements

Note 2015 2014 2015 2014
Assets o
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 7 498,774,412 454,750,901 498,774,412 454,750,901
Current investments 210,289,460 40,289,460 210,289,460 40,289,460
Trade and other receivables 68 406,306,624 437,060,399 406,306,624 437,060,399
Inventories 9 442,310,110 489,122,464 442,310,110 489,122,464
Other current assets 9,005,838 15,114,970 9,005,838 15,114,970
Total current assets 1,566,686,444 1,436,338,194 1,566,686,444 1,436,338,194
Non-current assets
Investment in associated company 70 43,315,499 49,016,701 46,341,825 46,341,825
Long-term investments 77 45,296,738 45,296,738 45,296,738 45,296,738
Investment properties 72 474,000,000 474,000,000 474,000,000 474,000,000
Property, plant and equipment 13 1,185,665,000 1,068,532,823 1,185,665,000 1,068,532,823
Intangible assets 74 2,902,932 5,528,659 2,902,932 5,528,659
Other non-current assets 8,948,080 32,110,207 8,948,080 32,110,207

Total non-current assets

Total assets

1,760,128,249

1,674,485,128

1,763,154,575

1,671,810,252

3,326,814,693

3,110,823,322

3,329,841,019

3,108,148,446

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement of financial position (continued)

Crown Seal Public Company Limited
As at 31 December 2015

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements in which
equity method is applied Separate financial statements
Note 2015 2014 2015 2014
Liabilities and shareholders' equity o
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 6, 16 374,432,084 394,113,007 374,432,084 394,113,007
Rental received in advance to be recognised
within one year 6 992,608 1,179,275 992,608 1,179,275
Corporate income tax payable 40,785,420 32,745,957 40,785,420 32,745,957
Other current liabilities 15,131,764 15,566,821 15,131,764 15,566,821
Total current liabilities 431,341,876 443,605,060 431,341,876 443,605,060
Non-current liabilities
Rental received in advance - net of
current portion 6 14,392,816 15,385,424 14,392,816 15,385,424
Deferred tax liabilities 23 30,732,551 31,893,158 30,732,551 31,893,158
Provision for long-term employee benefits 17 142,035,405 138,183,201 142,035,405 138,183,201
Total non-current liabilities 187,160,772 185,461,783 187,160,772 185,461,783
Total liabilities 618,502,648 629,066,843 618,502,648 629,066,843

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement of financial position (continued)

Crown Seal Public Company Limited
As at 31 December 2015

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements in which
equity method is applied Separate financial statements
Note 2015 2014 2015 2014
Shareholders' equity o
Share capital
Registered
799,988 non-cumulative preferred shares of
Baht 10 each 18 7,999,880 7,999,880 7,999,880 7,999,880
52,000,012 ordinary shares of Baht 10 each 520,000,120 520,000,120 520,000,120 520,000,120
528,000,000 528,000,000 528,000,000 528,000,000
Issued and paid-up
799,988 non-cumulative preferred shares of
Baht 10 each 18 7,999,880 7,999,880 7,999,880 7,999,880
52,000,012 ordinary shares of Baht 10 each 520,000,120 520,000,120 520,000,120 520,000,120
Additional paid-in capital
Premium on preferred shares 49,209,704 49,209,704 49,209,704 49,209,704
Premium on ordinary shares 337,598,339 337,598,339 337,598,339 337,598,339
Retained earnings
Appropriated-statutory reserve 79 52,800,000 52,800,000 52,800,000 52,800,000
Unappropriated 1,716,771,507 1,486,842,544 1,717,496,065 1,485,239,297
Other components of shareholders' equity 23,932,495 27,305,892 26,234,263 26,234,263
Total shareholders' equity 2,708,312,045 2,481,756,479 2,711,338,371 2,479,081,603
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 3,326,814,693 3,110,823,322 3,329,841,019 3,108,148,446
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Income Statement

Crown Seal Public Company Limited
For the year ended 31 December 2015

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements in which

equity method is applied Separate financial statements

Note 2015 2014 2015 2014

Revenues o
Sales 6 2,680,650,215 2,623,782,857 2,680,650,215 2,623,782,857
Service income 6 162,035,633 167,120,193 162,035,633 157,120,193
Other income 21 169,842,722 203,479,367 169,842,722 203,479,367
Total revenues 3,002,528,570 2,984,382,417 3,002,528,570 2,984,382,417
Expenses
Cost of sales 2,233,424,181 2,237,031,374 2,233,424,181 2,237,031,374
Cost of service 139,189,492 128,735,237 139,189,492 128,735,237
Selling expenses 65,987,687 70,456,630 65,987,687 70,456,630
Administrative expenses 154,526,611 139,518,054 154,526,611 139,518,054
Total expenses 2,693,127,971 2,575,741,295 2,693,127,971 2,5675,741,295
Profit before share of profit from investment

in associated company and income tax expense 409,400,599 408,641,122 409,400,599 408,641,122
Share of profit (loss) from investment in associated

company 70 (2,327,805) 1,603,247 - -
Profit before income tax expense 407,072,794 410,244,369 409,400,599 408,641,122
Income tax expense 23 (83,544,899) (82,238,513) (83,544,899) (82,238,513)
Profit for the year 323,527,895 328,005,856 325,855,700 326,402,609
Earnings per share 24
Basic earnings per share

Profit for the year 6.22 6.31 6.27 6.28
Diluted earnings per share

Profit for the year 6.13 6.21 6.17 6.18

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement of comprehensive income

Crown Seal Public Company Limited
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Financial statements in which

equity method is applied

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

Note 2015 2014 2015 2014

Profit for the year o 323,527,895 328,005,856 325,855,700 326,402,609
Other comprehensive income:
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified

to profit or loss in subsequent periods
Exchange differences on translation of financial

statements in foreign currency (8,373,397) 1,071,629 - -
Unrealised gain on revaluation of land 13, 20 - 14,598,324 - 14,598,324
Income tax effect 23 - (2,919,665) - (2,919,665)
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified

to profit or loss in subsequent periods - net of

income tax (3,373,397) 12,750,288 - 11,678,659
Other comprehensive income for the year (8,373,397) 12,750,288 - 11,678,659
Total comprehensive income for the year 320,154,498 340,756,144 325,855,700 338,081,268
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement of cash flows

Crown Seal Public Company Limited
For the year ended 31 December 2015

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements in which
equity method is applied Separate financial statements
2015 2014 2015 2014
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 407,072,794 410,244,369 409,400,599 408,641,122
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to
net cash provided by (paid from) operating activities:
Loss on (reversal of) diminution in value of inventories
and write off of inventories and spare parts (15,686,858) 27,886,546 (15,686,858) 27,886,546
Depreciation and amortisation 163,093,018 133,089,947 163,093,018 133,089,947
Share of (profit) loss from investment in associated company 2,327,805 (1,6083,247) - -
Gain on change in the value of investment properties - (48,767,676) - (48,767,676)
(Gain) loss on sales of equipment 159,075 (139,535) 159,075 (139,535)
Long-term employee benefits expenses 8,070,012 7,865,200 8,070,012 7,865,200
Interest income (10,264,017) (13,059,739) (10,264,017) (13,059,739)
Dividend income - (14,100) - (14,100)
Unrealised (gain) loss on exchange 225,422 (92,132) 225,422 (92,132)
Profit from operating activities before changes in
operating assets and liabilities 554,997,251 515,409,633 554,997,251 515,409,633
Decrease (increase) in operating assets
Trade and other receivables 30,291,635 (4,421,539) 30,291,635 (4,421,539)
Inventories 62,499,212 (47,412,298) 62,499,212 (47,412,298)
Other current assets 6,122,933 (5,292,854) 6,122,933 (5,292,854)
Other non-current assets (1,172,464) (1,646,230) (1,172,464) (1,646,230)
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities
Trade and other payables (20,153,508) 7,386,105 (20,153,508) 7,386,105
Other current liabilities (439,944) 2,951,262 (439,944) 2,951,262
Rental received in advance (1,179,275) (992,608) (1,179,275) (992,608)
Provision for long-term employee benefits (4,217,808) (6,298,785) (4,217,808) (6,298,785)
Cash flows from operating activities 626,748,032 459,682,686 626,748,032 459,682,686
Cash paid for corporate income tax (76,666,041) (65,983,793) (76,666,041) (65,983,793)
Net cash flows from operating activities 550,081,991 393,698,893 550,081,991 393,698,893

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

178 s1euuUs=9U 2558
Annual Report 2015



Statement of cash flows (continued)

Crown Seal Public Company Limited

For the year ended 31 December 2015

Cash flows from investing activities
Increase in current investments
Investment in an associated company
Acquisitions of equipment

Proceeds from sales of equipment

Increase in intangible assets

(Increase) decrease in advance paid for purchase of machinery

Interest income

Dividend income

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Dividend paid

Net cash flows used in financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Effect of exchange rate on cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 7)

Supplemental cash flows information
Non-cash transactions: -

Renew revaluation surplus of land

Financial statements in which

equity method is applied

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

2015 2014 2015 2014

(170,000,000) (40,289,460) (170,000,000) (40,289,460)
. (46,341,825) . (46,341,825)
(277,646,987) (228,8083,381) (277,646,987) (228,8083,381)

171,474 750,641 171,474 750,641
(38,080) (4,482,448) (38,080) (4,482,448)
24,089,640 (28,603,640) 24,089,640 (28,603,640)
10,811,630 12,967,876 10,811,630 12,967,876

- 14,100 - 14,100
(412,612,323) (334,788,137) (412,612,323) (334,788,137)
(93,598,932) (93,598,932) (93,598,932) (93,598,932)
(93,598,932) (93,598,932) (93,598,932) (93,598,932)
43,870,736 (34,688,176) 43,870,736 (34,688,176)
162,775 192,986 152,775 192,986
454,750,901 489,246,091 454,750,901 489,246,091
498,774,412 454,750,901 498,774,412 454,750,901
- 14,598,324 - 14,598,324
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Notes to Financial Statements

Crown Seal Public Company Limited
For the year Ended 31 December 2015

180

General information

Crown Seal Public Company Limited (“the Company”) is a public company incorporated and domiciled in Thailand. Its
major shareholder is Nippon Closures Co., Ltd., which was incorporated in Japan. The ultimate company of the Group
is Toyo Seikan Group Holdings, Ltd. The Company is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of caps for
bottles and the hire of printing sheets for can. The registered office of the Company is at 5 SoiRangsit — Nakhon Nayok

46, Tambon Prachatipat, Amphur Thanyaburi, Pathum Thani.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards enunciated
under the Accounting Professions Act B.E. 2547 and their presentation has been made in compliance with the
stipulations of the Notification of the Department of Business Development dated 28 September 2011, issued
under the Accounting Act B.E. 2543.

The financial statements in Thai language are the official statutory financial statements of the Company. The financial

statements in English language have been translated from the Thai language financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where otherwise disclosed in the

accounting policies.

New financial reporting standards

Below is a summary of financial reporting standards that became effective in the current accounting year and those

that will become effective in the future.

(@)  Financial reporting standards that became effective in the current year

The Company has adopted the revised (revised 2014) and new financial reporting standards issued by the
Federation of Accounting Professions which become effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January
2015. These financial reporting standards were aimed at alignment with the corresponding International
Financial Reporting Standards, with most of the changes directed towards revision of wording and terminology,
and provision of interpretations and accounting guidance to users of standards. The adoption of these financial
reporting standards does not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements. However,

some of these standards involve changes to key principles, which are summarised below:
TAS 19 (revised 2014) Employee Benefits

This revised standard requires that the entity recognise actuarial gains and losses immediately in other
comprehensive income while the former standard allowed the entity to recognise such gains and losses

immediately in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive income, or to recognise them gradually in profit or loss.

This revised standard does not have any impact on the financial statements as the Company already

recognised actuarial gains and losses immediately in other comprehensive income.
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4.1

4.2

4.3

(®)

TFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

This standard stipulates disclosures relating to an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements and
associates, including structured entities. This standard does not have any significant impact on the financial

statements of the Company.
TFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

This standard provides guidance on how to measure fair value and stipulates disclosures related to fair value
measurements. Entities are to apply the guidance under this standard if they are required by other accounting
standards to measure their assets or liabilities at fair value. The effect of the change from the adoption of this

standard is to be recognised prospectively.
This standard does not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.
Financial reporting standard that will become effective in the future

During the current year, the Federation of Accounting Professions issued a number of the revised (revised
2015) and new financial reporting standards and accounting treatment guidance which is effective for fiscal
years beginning on or after 1January 2016. These financial reporting standards were aimed at alignment with
the corres ponding International Financial Reporting Standards. The Company's management believes that the
revised and new financial reporting standards and accounting treatment guidance will not have any significant

impact on the financial statements when it is initially applied.

Significant accounting policies

Revenue recognition

Sales of goods are recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the

buyers. Sales are the invoiced value, excluding value added tax of goods supplied after deducting discounts and

allowances.

Service revenue is recognised when services have been rendered taking into account the stage of completion.

Rental income is recognised as income using the straight-line basis over the term of the lease agreement.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis based on the effective interest rate.

Dividends are recognised when the right to receive the dividends is established.

Export subsidies granted by the Ministry of Finance in the form of tax coupons are recognised as income when the

Company obtains written notification of approval of the tax coupon.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and at banks, and all highly liquid investments with an original

maturity of three months or less and not subject to withdrawal restrictions.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are stated at the net realisable value. Allowance for doubtful accounts is provided for the

estimated losses that may be incurred in collection of receivables. The allowance is generally based on collection

experiences and analysis of debt aging.
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4.4 Inventories

Finished goods and work in process are valued at the lower of cost (under the weighted average method) and net
realisable value. The cost of inventories includes all production costs and attributable factory overheads.

Raw materials, chemicals, spare parts and factory supplies are valued at the lower of average cost and net realisable
value and are charged to production costs whenever consumed.

45 Investments

Investment in associated company is accounted for in the financial statements, in which the equity method is applied,
using the equity method and is accounted for in the separate financial statement using the cost method.

Investments in non-marketable equity securities, which the Company classifies as other investments, are stated at
cost net of allowance for loss on diminution in value (if any).

The weighted average method is used for computation of the cost of investments.
4.6  Investment properties

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at fair value. Any gains or losses arising from changes in the value of investment

properties are recognised in the income statement when incurred.

On disposal of investment properties, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset is recognised in the income statement in the period when the asset is derecognised.

4.7  Property, plant and equipment/Depreciation

Land is stated at the revalued amount. Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
allowance for loss on impairment of assets (if any).

Land are initially recorded at cost on the acquisition date, and subsequently revalued by an independent professional
appraiser to their fair values. Revaluations are made with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount does
not differ materially from fair value at the end of reporting period.

Differences arising from the revaluation are dealt with in the financial statements as follows:

- When an asset’s carrying amount is increased as a result of a revaluation of the Company’s assets, the increase
is credited directly to the other comprehensive income and the cumulative increase is recognized in equity
under the heading of “Revaluation surplus on assets”. However, a revaluation increase is recognised as income
to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease in respect of the same asset previously recognised as an

expense.

- When an asset’s carrying amount is decreased as a result of a revaluation of the Company’s assets, the
decrease is recognized in the income statement. However, the revaluation decrease is charged to the other
comprehensive income to the extent that it does not exceed an amount already held in the “Revaluation surplus
on assets” in respect of the same assets.

Depreciation of plant and equipment is calculated by reference to their costs, on the straight-line basis over the
following estimated useful lives.

Buildings and building improvements 5-20 years
Machinery and equipment 3-15  vyears
Furniture, fixtures, office equipment and motor vehicles 3-5 years
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4.8

4.9

4.10

4.1

Depreciation is included in determining income.
No depreciation is provided on land and assets under installation.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on disposal of an asset is included in the income statement

when the asset is derecognised.
Intangible assets and amortisation
Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any).

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on a systematic basis over the economic useful life and tested for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method of such intangible assets are reviewed at least at each financial year end. The amortisation

expense is charged to the income statement.

A summary of the intangible assets with finite useful lives is as follows.

Useful lives
Computer software 3and 5 years
Licenses 6 vyears

Related party transactions

Related parties comprise enterprises and individuals that control, or are controlled by, the Company, whether directly

or indirectly, or which are under common control with the Company.

They also include associated company and individuals which directly or indirectly own a voting interest in the
Company that gives them significant influence over the Company, and key management personnel, and directors and

officers with authority in the planning and direction of the Company’s operations.
Long-term leases

Leases of equipment which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the leased assets and the present value of the
minimum lease payments. The outstanding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other long-term
payables, while the interest element is charged to the income statement over the lease period. The equipment

acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the useful life of the asset.

Leases of equipment which do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the income statement on a straight-line

basis over the lease term.
Foreign currencies
The financial statements are presented in Baht, which is also the Company's functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at the exchange rate ruling at

the end of reporting period.

Gains and losses on exchange are included in determining income.
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4.13

414

184

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company performs impairment reviews in respect of the property, plant and
equipment and other intangible assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that an asset may be
impaired. An impairment loss is recognised when the recoverable amount of an asset, which is the higher of the

asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use, is less than the carrying amount.

An impairment loss is recognised in the income statement. However in cases where land was previously revalued and
the revaluation was taken to equity, a part of such impairment is recognised in equity up to the amount of the previous

revaluation.

In the assessment of asset impairment if there is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The increased carrying amount of the asset
attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss shall not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the income
statement unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal, which exceeds the carrying

amount that would have been determined, is treated as a revaluation increase.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, wages, bonuses and contributions to the social security fund are recognised as expenses when incurred.

Post-employrment benefits (Defined contribution plans)

The Company and its employees have jointly established a provident fund in accordance with the Provident Fund Act B.E.
2530. The fund is monthly contributed by employees and by the Company. The fund’s assets are held in a separate trust
fund and the Company’s contributions are recognised as expenses when incurred. In addition, the Company has
contributions for provident fund made before the Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530 was effective. The Company manages

this fund itself and will pay it to the employees upon their terminations.
Post-employment benefits (Defined benefit plans) and other long-term employee benefits

The Company has obligations in respect of the severance payments it must make to employees upon retirement under
labor law. The Company treats these severance payment obligations as a defined benefit plan. In addition, the

Company provides other long-term employee benefit plan, namely long service awards.

The obligation under the defined benefit plan and other long-term employee benefit plans is determined by a

professionally qualified independent actuary based on actuarial techniques, using the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from post-employment benefits (Defined benefit plans) are recognised immediately

in other comprehensive income and for other long-term benefits are recognised immediately in the income statement.
Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can

be made of the amount of the obligation.
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4.15

4.16

417

Income tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of corporate income tax currently payable and deferred tax.
Current tax

Current income tax is provided in the accounts at the amount expected to be paid to the taxation authorities, based on

taxable profits determined in accordance with tax legislation.
Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying

amounts at the end of each reporting period, using the tax rates enacted at the end of the reporting period.

The Company recognises deferred tax liabilities for all taxable temporary differences while they recognise deferred tax assets
for all deductible temporary differences and tax losses carried forward to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit

will be available against which such deductible temporary differences and tax losses carried forward can be utilised.

At each reporting date, the Company reviews and reduces the carrying amount of deferred tax assets to the extent that it is

no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

The Company records deferred tax directly to shareholders' equity if the tax relates to items that are recorded directly to

shareholders' equity.
Forward exchange contracts

Receivables and payables arising from forward exchange contracts are translated into Baht at the rates of exchange ruling at
the end of reporting period. Unrecognised gains and losses from the translations are included in determining income.

Premiums or discounts on forward exchange contracts are amortised on a straight-line basis over the contract periods.
Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
buyer and seller (market participants) at the measurement date. The Company applies a quoted market price in an active
market to measure their assets and liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value by relevant financial reporting
standards. Except in case of no active market of an identical asset or liability or when a quoted market price is not available,
the Company measures fair value using valuation technique that are appropriate in the circumstances and maximises the use

of relevant observable inputs related to assets and liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair

value hierarchy into three levels based on categorise of input to be used in fair value measurement as follows:

Levell - Use of quoted market prices in an observable active market for such assets or liabilities
Level2 - Use of other observable inputs for such assets or liabilities, whether directly or indirectly
Level3 - Use of unobservable inputs such as estimates of future cash flows

At the end of each reporting period, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels within the fair
value hierarchy for assets and liabilities held at the end of the reporting period that are measured at fair value on a recurring

basis.
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Significant accounting judgments and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with financial reporting standards at times requires management
to make subjective judgments and estimates regarding matters that are inherently uncertain. These judgments and
estimates affect reported amounts and disclosures; and actual results could differ from these estimates. Significant

judgments and estimates are as follows.
Allowance for doubtful accounts

In determining an allowance for doubtful accounts, the management needs to make judgment and estimates based
upon, among other things, past collection history, aging profile of outstanding debts and the prevailing economic

condition.
Allowance for diminution in value of inventories

Allowances for diminution in the value of inventories accounts are intended to adjust the value of inventories for
probable losses. The management uses judgment to estimate losses, based on an analysis of inventory aging, taking

into account the current situation with respect to sales of inventory items, on a specific basis.
Allowance for diminution in value of investments

The Company treats other investments as impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value below their cost or where other objective evidence of impairment exists. The determination of what is “significant” or

“prolonged” requires judgment of the management.
Investment properties

The Company presents investment properties at the fair value estimated by an independent appraiser, and recognises
changes in the fair value in the income statement. The independent appraiser values the investment properties using
the sales comparison approach and the depreciated replacement cost approach. The key assumptions used in

estimating the fair value are described in Note 12.
Property, plant and equipment/Depreciation

In determining depreciation of plant and equipment, the management is required to make estimates of the useful lives
and residual values of the plant and equipment and to review estimate useful lives and residual values when there are

any changes.

The Company measures land at revalued amount. Such amount is determined by the independent valuer using sales

comparison approach, and such valuation involves certain assumptions and estimatesas described in Note 13.

In addition, the management is required to review property, plant and equipment for impairment on a periodical basis
and records impairment losses when it is determined that their recoverable amount is lower than the carrying amount.
This requires judgments regarding forecast of future revenues and expenses relating to the assets subject to the

review.
Leases

In determining whether a lease is to be classified as an operating lease or finance lease, the management is required
to use judgment regarding whether significant risk and rewards of ownership of the leased asset has been transferred,

taking into consideration terms and conditions of the arrangement.
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Intangible assets

The initial recognition and measurement of intangible assets, and subsequent impairment testing, require
management to make estimates of cash flows to be generated by the asset and to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level
of estimate future taxable profits.

Post-employment benefits under defined benefit plans and other long-term employee benefits

The obligation under the defined benefit plan and other long-term employee benefit plans is determined based on
actuarial techniques. Such determination is made based on various assumptions, including discount rate, future salary
increase rate, mortality rate and staff turnover rate.

Fair value of financial instruments

In determining the fair value of financial instruments recognised in the statement of financial position that are not
actively traded and for which quoted market prices are not readily available, the management exercise judgement,
using a variety of valuation techniques and models. The input to these models is taken from observable markets, and
includes consideration of credit risk (bank and counterparty, both) liquidity, correlation and longer-term volatility of
financial instruments. Change in assumptions about these factors could affect the fair value recognised in the
statement of financial position and disclosures of fair value hierarchy.

Related party transactions

During the years, the Company had significant business transactions with related parties. Such transactions, which are
summarised below, arose in the ordinary course of business and were concluded on commercial terms and bases
agreed upon between the Company and those related parties.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which equity
method is applied / Separate

financial statements Pricing policy
2015 2014

Transactions with related companies

Sales of caps 725,170 661,109 Market price

Service income from printing sheets 159,588 154,758 Market price

Rental income 2,441 3,145 Contract price

Sales of equipment, spare parts and raw 1,355 1,628 Price charged to other customers in the
materials normal course of business
Administrative income 11,453 9,077 Contract price

Purchases of raw materials 1,344 2,603 Market price

Purchases of spare parts and machinery 32,304 20,217 Market price

Royalty fee 22,311 22,436  Apercentage of net sales of each product
Claim payment for damaged goods 858 1,331 At cost
Transfer value of machine shared the ownership 4,358 989 At cost

Dividend paid 60,455 60,455 As declared
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Directors and management’s benefits

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Company had employee benefit expenses payable to its

directors and management as below.
(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which
equity method is applied /

Separate financial statements

2015 2014
Short-term employee benefits 19,209 19,257
Post-employment benefits 223 215
Total 19,432 19,472

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the balances of the accounts between the Company and those related parties are

as follows.
(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which
equity method is applied /

Separate financial statements

2015 2014

Trade accounts receivable -

related parties (Note 8) 100,699 108,304
Other receivables - related parties

(Note 8) 7,859 11,149
Other payables - related parties

(Note 16) 22,733 23,735
Rental received in advance
Rental received in advance 15,386 16,565
Less: Current portion (993) (1,179)
Net 14,393 15,386
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Additional information concerning the transactions with the related parties is as follows.

a)

The relationships between the Company and related parties are summarized below.

Company Type of business Relationship

PT Indonesia Caps and Closures ~ Produce and distribute packaging Associated company
caps for beverage

Boonrawd Brewery Group Manufacture and sale of Shareholder and common
beverages directors

Thai Namthip Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of Shareholder and common
beverages directors

Serm Suk Public Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of Shareholder and common
beverages directors

Toyo Seikan Group Holdings, Ltd. Manufacture and sale of Shareholder and common
packaging directors

Nippon Closures Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of Shareholder and common
packaging directors

Bangkok Can Manufacturing Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of 2 & 3 - Common shareholders and
piece cans directors

Toyo Seikan (Thailand) Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of plastic Common shareholders and
packaging directors

Next Can Innovation Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of 2-piece  Common shareholders and
cans directors

Saiwai Shoji Co., Ltd. Sale of machinery and spare parts Common shareholders

Toyo Filling International Co., Ltd.  Containing service and sale of Common shareholders
aerosol can

Kanagata (Thailand) Co., Ltd. Plastic injection mould and blow ~ Common shareholders

mould manufacturing

The transactions with trade accounts receivable - related parties are conducted in the normal course of
business of the Company and in accordance with its established objectives, which are the manufacture and
distribution of products to customers who are shareholders of the Company and are in competition with each

other, and the provision of printing services.

Other receivables - related parties comprise the outstanding balances from rental, sales of equipment and
spare parts, administrative assistance and the provision of IT infrastructure services to related companies.

Other payables - related parties comprise the outstanding balances from purchases of raw materials, spare
parts and machinery, accrued royalty fee and accrued claims payments for damaged goods.

The stipulated conditions of the provision of printing services to Bangkok Can Manufacturing Co., Ltd. are that
payment is to be made on a monthly basis and the period of service is indefinite.

Rental received in advance represents rental received under the agreement to rent out certain plots of land to

Bangkok Can Manufacturing Co., Ltd. for a period of 30 years, ending 1 July 2031.

Moreover, the Company entered into agreements to rent out additional land and building to Bangkok Can
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. The rental for this land,determined based on the appraisal value, and for the building,
calculated on the basis of depreciated cost,is payable in annual amounts. Compensation for the years ended
August 2015 and 2014 totaled Baht 0.3 million and Baht 0.3 million, respectively.
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The Company rents office space and provides central services, to Toyo Seikan (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
Compensation for the years ended December 2015 and 2014 totaled Baht 1 million and Baht 1 million,
respectively, payable on a monthly basis.

The Company extended the term of office rental with provision of central services for one year, ending
December 2016, with compensation amounting to Baht 1 million.

The Company entered into agreements to provide the rentals of server and storage machine to the related
companies in the group of Toyo Seikan Group Holdings Ltd. Agreements cover for a period of 4 years, ended
December 2014. Compensation is Baht 3 million, payable on an annual basis.

The Company entered into agreements to provide administrative services for computer software and hardware
and personnel systems to related companies in the group of Toyo Seikan Group Holdings Ltd. Compensation
under these agreements for the years 2015 and 2014 totaled Baht 7 million per annum, payable on a monthly basis.

The Company extended the agreements to provide above services for a period of one year, ending December
2016, with compensation amounting to Baht 8 million.

Moreover, the Company provided services of installation of software and hardware of SAP to Toyo Seikan
(Thailand) Co., Ltd. The service agreement was for a period of four months, ended January 2016, with
compensation payable totaled Baht 4 million. The Company entered into agreement to provide administrative
service of such software and hardware for one year, with compensation amounting to Baht 1 million.

The Company entered into sales of assets and service of generating the electricity with Bangkok Can
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. The compensation payment is fix rate per month and the period of services is
indefinite.

The Company entered into technical license agreement with Nippon Closures Co., Ltd., whereby the Company
receives technical support services for the manufacture of caps.The agreement ends in December 2017.
Compensation is payable at a percentage of net sales of products stipulated in the agreement, on a semi-annual
basis.

Moreover, the Company entered into an additional technical license agreement with such company, whereby
the Company receives technical support services for the manufacture of composite caps. The agreement runs
for 6 years, ending December 2016, with compensation in the form of an initial payment of JPY 5 million yen
and an annual fee at a percentage of net sales of these products.

Cash and cash equivalents

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which
equity method is applied /
Separate financial statements

2015 2014
Cash 180 191
Bank deposits 498,594 454,560
Total 498,774 454,751

As at 31 December 2015, bank deposits in savings accounts and fixed deposits carried interests between 0.10% and
2.03% per annum (2014: between 0.10% and 2.65% per annum).
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8. Trade and other receivables

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which equity method is applied/

Separate financial statements

2015 2014
Trade accounts receivable -related parties
Aged on the basis of due dates
Not yet due 70,978 74,863
Past due
Up to 3 months 29,721 33,441
Total trade accounts receivable - related parties 100,699 108,304
Trade accounts receivable - unrelated parties
Aged on the basis of due dates
Not yet due 238,169 255,222
Past due
Up to 3 months 55,286 59,059
3 - 6 months 256 10
6 - 12 months 15 -
Total trade accounts receivable - unrelated parties 293,726 314,291
Other receivables - related parties
Advances 93 2,743
Accrued income 7,766 8,406
Total other receivables - related parties 7,859 11,149
Other receivables - unrelated parties
Advances 1,945 887
Receivable from scrap sales 694 1,048
Others 1,384 1,381
Total other receivables - unrelated parties 4,023 3,316
Total trade and other receivables 406,307 437,060
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9. Inventories
(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which equity method is applied/

Separate financial statements

2015 2014
Reduce cost Reduce cost
to net to net
realisable Inventories- realisable Inventories-
Cost value net Cost value net

Finished goods 143,866 (22,002) 121,864 141,509 (17,094) 124,415
Work in process 97,549 (4,926) 92,623 151,063 6,771) 144,292
Raw materials 167,120 (5,932) 161,188 155,553 (4,866) 150,687
Goods in transit 11,673 - 11,673 20,370 - 20,370
Spare parts 54,962 - 54,962 49,358 - 49,358
Total 475,170 (32,860) 442,310 517,853 (28,731) 489,122

During the current year, the Company reduced cost of inventories by Baht 16 million (2014: Baht 28 million), to reflect
the net realisable value. This was included in cost of sales. In addition, the Company reversed the write-down of cost

of inventories by Baht 12 million (2014: Baht 22 million), and reduced the amount of inventories recognised as

expenses during the year.

10. Investment in associated company

10.1  Details of investment in associated company
(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Financial statement in
which equity method Separate financial
is applied statements
Associate's Nature of Country of  Shareholding  Carrying amount based
name business  incorporation  percentage on equity method Cost
(%) 2015 2014 2015 2014
PT Indonesia Caps Produceand  Republic of 25 43,315 49,017 46,342 46,342
and Closures distribute Indonesia
packaging
caps for
beverages
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10.2 Share of comprehensive income and dividend received

10.3

The Company has recognised its share of profit (loss) from investment in associated company in the financial

statements in which equity method is applied and dividend income in the separate financial statements as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which equity method is applied Separate financial statements

Share of profit (loss) from  Share of other comprehensive

investment in associate income from investment in Dividend received
Associates’ name during the year associate during the year during the year
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
PT Indonesia Caps and
Closures (2,328) 1,603 - - - .

Summarised material financial information of associate

Financial information of the associated company is summarised below.

(Unit: Million Baht)

31 December

Summarised information about financial position

Total assets

Total liabilities

Net assets

2015 2014
359 207
(186) (11)
173 196

(Unit: Million Baht)

For the year ended

31 December

Summarised information about comprehensive income

Revenue

2015 2014

Profit (loss)

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income
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11. Long-term investments
(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which

equity method is applied /

Company Separate financial statements
Shareholding
percentage (%) 2015 2014
Heritage Stoneware Co., Ltd. 10.00 10,000 10,000
Bangkok Can Manufacturing Co., Ltd. 1.61 9,494 9,494
Petpak Co., Ltd. 10.00 35,000 35,000
Muang-Ake Golf Co., Ltd. 0.08 180 180
City Sports and Recreation Co., Ltd. 0.03 273 273
Muang-Ake Vista Golf Course Co., Ltd. 0.06 350 350
Total cost 55,297 55,297
Less: Allowance for loss on diminution in value (10,000) (10,000)
Long-term investments - net 45,297 45,297

12. Investment properties
(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which equity method is applied /
Separate financial statements

2015

Allocated land

and construction

Land for rent thereon Vacant land Total
Net book value at beginning of year 172,000 158,400 143,600 474,000
Net book value at and of year 172,000 158,400 143,600 474,000
Rental income for the year 1,273 - - 1,273

Expense - - - -

In December 2015, the Company hired an independent appraiser, American Appraisal (Thailand) Co., Ltd. to appraise
the fair value of investment properties by using the same approaches as those of last year. Since the appraised values
of such assets were not different from the value previously appraised, the Company therefore did not adjust their fair

values.
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13.

Net book value at beginning of year
Net gain from a fair value adjustment

Net book value at and of year

Rental income for the year

Expense

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Financial statements in which equity method is applied/
Separate financial statements

2014

Allocated land
and construction

Land for rent thereon Vacant land Total
143,498 159,800 121,934 425,232
28,502 (1,400) 21,666 48,768
172,000 158,400 143,600 474,000
1,273 - - 1,273

In December 2014, the Company hired an independent valuer, American appraisal (Thailand) Co., Ltd. to appraise the
fair value of investment properties. The valuer determined the value of land using market price comparison approach,
while the depreciated replacement cost approach was used to value construction in development projects. The
appraised values of assets based on prior mentioned approaches were higher than assets value appraised in prior
year of Baht 49 million. The Company therefore recorded such gain on change in value of investment properties as
part of other income in the statement of income for the year 2014.

Property, plant and equipment

Separate financial statements

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Financial statements in which equity method is applied/

2015
Revaluation
basis Cost basis
Furniture,
fixtures, office
Buildingsand Machinery  equipment
puilding and and motor  Asset under
Land improvements  equipment vehicles installation Total
Cost/Revalued amount
1 January 2015 99,000 443,912 2,161,785 82,046 148,270 2,935,013
Additions - - 21,402 2,022 254,223 277,647
Disposals - (747) (43,898) (1,472) - (46,117)
Transfers in (out) - 6,934 285,671 8,660 (801,265) -
31 December 2015 99,000 450,099 2,424,960 91,256 101,228 3,166,543
Accumulated depreciation
1 January 2015 - 275,916 1,534,096 56,468 - 1,866,480
Depreciation for the year - 16,443 128,649 9,152 - 154,244
Depreciation on disposals - (844) (87,5632) (1,470) - (89,846)
31 December 2015 - 291,515 1,625,213 64,150 - 1,980,878
Net book value
31 December 2015 99,000 158,584 799,747 27,106 101,228 1,185,665
Depreciation for the year 2015
(Baht 150 million included in manufacturing cost, and the balance in administrative expenses)

154,244
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(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which equity method is applied/

Separate financial statements

2014
Revaluation
basis Cost basis
Fumiture,
fixtures, office
Buildings and Machinery  equipment
building and and motor Asset under
Land improvements  equipment  vehicles Installation Total
Cost/Revalued amount
1 January 2014 84,402 389,196 1,948,030 65,445 223,805 2,710,878
Additions - - 23,313 2,524 202,967 228,804
Revaluation 14,598 - - - - 14,598
Disposals - (2,100) (16,248) (919) - (19,267)
Transfers in (out) - 56,816 206,690 14,996 (278,502) -
31 December 2014 99,000 443,912 2,161,785 82,046 148,270 2,935,013
Accumulated
depreciation
1 January 2014 - 262,075 1,443,114 49,077 - 1,754,266
Depreciation for the year - 15,942 104,504 8,282 - 128,728
Depreciation on disposals - (2,101) (13,522) (891) - (16,514)
31 December 2014 - 275,916 1,534,096 56,468 - 1,866,480
Net book value
31 December 2014 99,000 167,996 627,689 25,578 148,270 1,068,533

Depreciation for the year
2014 (Baht 123 million included in manufacturing cost, and the balance in

administrative expenses) 128,728

The Company had its land revalued, at the latest in December 2014 by American Appraisal (Thailand) Co., Ltd., using
sales comparison approach to value its land. The Company recorded Baht 15 million unrealised gain on revaluation of

land as other comprehensive income in the statement of comprehensive income of the year 2014.

Had the land been carried on historical cost basis, its book value as of 31 December 2015 and 2014 would have

amounted to Baht 66 million.
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14.

As at 31 December 2015, certain items of buildings and equipment were fully depreciated but are still in use. The
gross carrying amount before deducting accumulated depreciation of those assets amounted to Baht 1,251million
(2014: Baht 1,037 million).

The Company shares the ownership of some building and machinery with Bangkok Can Manufacturing Co., Ltd. and
records the building and machinery in proportion to its ownership. The carrying amount of its portion as at 31
December 2015 was Baht 15 million (2014 Baht 18 million).

Intangible assets

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which
equity method is applied /

Separate financial statements

2015

Computer

software Licenses Total
Cost - at beginning of year 44,966 1,260 46,226
Acquisition 38 - 38
Cost - at end of year 45,004 1,260 46,264
Accumulated amortisation - at beginning of year 40,067 630 40,697
Amortisation for the year 2,349 315 2,664
Accumulated amortisation - at end of year 42,416 945 43,361
Intangible assets - net 2,588 315 2,903

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which equity method is applied/

Separate financial statements

2014

Computer

software Licenses Total
Cost - at beginning of year 40,483 1,889 42,372
Acquisition 4,483 - 4,483
Cost - at end of year 44,966 1,889 46,855
Accumulated amortisation - at beginning of year 37,955 945 38,900
Amortisation for the year 2,111 315 2,426
Accumulated amortisation - at end of year 40,066 1,260 41,326
Intangible assets - net 4,900 629 5,629
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15.

16.

17.
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Bank overdrafts and short-term loans from financial institutions

Unutilised bank overdrafts and short-term loan facilities of the Company as at 31 December 2015 totaled Baht 175

million and Baht 900 million, respectively (2014: Baht 175 million and Baht 900 million, respectively). Such loan

facilities are unsecured.

Trade and other payables

Trade accounts payables - unrelated parties

Other payables - related parties

Accrued royalty fee
Others

Total other payables - related parties

Other payables - unrelated parties

Other payables

Accrued expenses
Total other payables - unrelated parties

Total trade and other payables

Provision for long-term employee benefits

Post-employment benefits (Defined contribution plans)

Post-employment benefits (Defined benefit plans)

Other long-term employee benefits

Total

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which
equity method is applied /

Separate financial statements

2015 2014
282,551 295,775
10,868 12,621
11,865 11,214
22,733 23,735
35,730 37,321
33,418 37,282
69,148 74,603
374,432 394,113

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which
equity method is applied /

Separate financial statements

2015 2014
48,224 44,708
76,797 75,304
17,014 18,171

142,035 138,183

Provision for post-employment benefits (Defined benefit plans),which represents compensation payable the

employees after they are retired from the Company, was as follows.
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(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which
equity method is applied /
Separate financial statements

2015 2014
Provision for long-term employee benefits at beginning of year 75,304 71,862
Included in the income statement:
Current service cost 3,797 3,669
Interest cost 2,527 2,448
Benefits paid during the year (4,831) (2,675)
Provision for long-term employee benefits at end of year 76,797 75,304

Line items in the income statement which post-employment benefits (Defined benefit plans)are recognised are as

following:
(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Financial statements in which
equity method is applied /
Separate financial statements
2015 2014
Cost of sales 4,619 4,451
Selling and administrative expenses 1,705 1,666
fotl 6,324 6,117

The Company expects to pay Baht 4 million of post-employment benefits (Defined benefit plans)during the next year
(2014: Baht 4 million).

As at 31 December 2015, the weighted average duration of the liabilities for post-employment benefits (Defined
benefit plans) is 6 years (2014: 6 years).

Significant actuarial assumptions are summarised below.
Financial statements in which

equity method is applied /
Separate financial statements

2015 2014
(% per annum) (% per annum)
Discount rate 3.50 3.50
Salary increase rate 5.00 5.00

The result of sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions that affect the present value of the post-employment
benefits (Defined benefit plans) as at 31 December 2015 are summarised below:

Increase Effect to obligation Decrease Effect to obligation
(%) (Thousand Baht) (%) (Thousand Baht)
Discount rate 0.5 (2,761) 0.5 2,954
Salary increase rate 1.0 8,536 1.0 (7,657)
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18. Preferred shares

19.

20.

21.
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The preferred shares of the Company are registered shares granting dividend entitlements at the rate of the ordinary
shares plus Baht 1.50 per share. Dividends on the preferred shares are non-cumulative. Each preferred share has the

same voting rights as the ordinary shares and is convertible to ordinary shares in a ratio of 1:1 on the last day of every month.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, 799,988 preferred shares remained unexercised.

Statutory reserve

Pursuant to Section 116 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, the Company is required to set aside to a
statutory reserve at least 5% of its net income after deducting accumulated deficit brought forward (if any), until the

reserve reaches 10% of the registered capital. The statutory reserve is not available for dividend distribution.

Revaluation surplus on assets

This represents surplus arising from revaluation of land. The revaluation surplus can neither be offset against deficit nor

used for dividend payment.

Other income
(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which
equity method is applied /

Separate financial statements

2015 2014
Income from sales of scrap metal and spareparts 102,598 103,578
Administrative income 11,453 9,077
Interest income 10,264 13,060
Gain on change in the value of investment properties - 48,768
Others 35,528 28,996
Total 159,843 203,479
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22. Expenses by nature
Significant expenses by nature are as follows.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which
equity method is applied /

Separate financial statements

2015 2014

Salary, wages and other employee benefits 438,580 424,953
Depreciation and amortisation 163,093 133,090
Allowance for diminution in value of inventories and write off of

inventoriesand spare parts 15,687 27,886
Royalty fee 22,311 22,436
Freight-out expense 33,220 34,270
Repair and maintenance expenses 108,810 102,780
Raw materials and consumables used 1,617,470 1,695,192
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in process 51,157 (8,097)

23. Income tax/ deferred tax liabilities

Income tax expense for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 is made up as follows:
(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which
equity method is applied /

Separate financial statements

2015 2014

Current income tax:
Current income tax charge 84,493 70,715
Adjust in respect of income tax of previous year 212 1,924
Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (1,160) 9,599
Income tax expense reported in the income statement 83,545 82,238
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The amounts of income tax relating to each component of other comprehensive income for the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which
equity method is applied /

Separate financial statements

2015 2014
Deferred tax liability relating to gain on revaluation
of land - 2,920
- 2,920

Tax reconciliation between accounting profit and income tax expense is shown below.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which

equity method is applied Separate financial statements
2015 2014 2015 2014
Accounting profit before tax 407,073 410,244 409,401 408,641
Applicable tax rate 12.5% and 20% 12.5% and20% 20% 20%
Accounting profit before tax
multiplied by applicable tax rate 81,880 82,049 81,880 81,728
Adjust in respect of income tax of
previous year 213 1,924 213 1,924
Effects of:
Non-deductible expenses 6,909 7,924 6,909 7,924
Additional expense deductions
allowed (4,296) (18,832) (4,296) (18,832)
Others (1,161) 9,173 (1,161) 9,494
Total 1,452 (1,735) 1,452 (1,414)
Income tax expense reported in
the income statement 83,545 82,238 83,545 82,238
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The components of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Statements of financial position

Financial statements in which
equity method is applied /
Separate financial statements

2015 2014
Allowance for diminution in value of inventories 6,572 5,746
Provision for long-term employee benefits 18,768 18,744
Rental receivable in advance 2,878 3,077
Others 1,772 1,673
Total deferred tax assets 29,990 29,240
Depreciation and amortization 28,472 28,882
Gain on change in the value of investment properties 25,692 25,692
Revaluation surplus on land 6,559 6,559
Total deferred tax liabilities 60,723 61,133
Deferred tax liabilities, net 30,733 31,893

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit for the year (excluding other comprehensive income) by the

weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit for the year (excluding other comprehensive income) by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary
shares which would need to be issued to convert all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares. The
calculation assumes that the conversion took place either at the beginning of the year or on the date the potential
ordinary shares were issued.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share.

Financial statements in which equity method is applied

For the year ended 31 December

Weighted average

Profit for number of Earnings
the year ordinary shares per share
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
(Thousand (Thousand (Thousand (Thousand (Baht) (Baht)
Baht) Baht) shares) shares)
Basic earnings per share
Profit for the year 323,528 328,006 52,000 52,000 6.22 6.31

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares
Convertible preferred shares - - 800 800

Diluted earnings per share
Profit of ordinary shareholders assuming
the conversion to ordinary shares 323,528 328,006 52,800 52,800 6.13 6.21
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Separate financial statements

For the year ended 31 December

Weighted average

Profit for number of Earnings
the year ordinary shares per share
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
(Thousand (Thousand (Thousand (Thousand (Baht) (Baht)
Baht) Baht) shares) shares)
Basic earnings per share
Profit for the year 325,856 326,403 52,000 52,000 6.27 6.28
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares
Convertible preferred shares - - 800 800
Diluted earnings per share
Profit of ordinary shareholders assuming
the conversion to ordinary shares 325,856 326,403 52,800 52,800 6.17 6.18

Segment information

Operating segment information is reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting the chief operating
decision maker has received and regularly reviewed to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the
segment and assess its performance. The chief operating decision maker has been identified as the Company's

authorised director.

For management purposes, the Company are organised into business units based on its products and services and

have three reportable segments as follows:

1. manufacture and sale of caps
2. hire of printing sheets for can
3. investment properties

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating segments.

The chief operating decision maker monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resource allocation and assessing performance. Segment performance is measured based
on operating profit or loss and on a basis consistent with that used to measure operating profit or loss in the financial
statements. However, the Company’ financing activities which give rise to finance costs and finance income,
administrative activities, and income taxes are managed on a group basis. Therefore these income and expenses are

not allocated to operating segments.
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The following tables present revenue and profit information regarding the Company’s operating segments for the years ended 31

December 2015 and 2014, respectively.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which equity method is applied

For the year ended 31 December

Manufacture and Hire of printing Investing in
sale of caps sheets for can properties Total

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Revenue
Local 1,993,600 1,921,700 162,036 167,120 1,273 50,041 2,156,809 2,128,861
Export 687,150 702,083 - - - - 687,150 702,083
Total revenue 2,680,650 2,623,783 162,036 157,120 1,273 50,041 2,843,959 2,830,944
Operating results
Segment profit 484,134 421,007 22,549 27,251 1,273 50,041 507,956 498,299
Unallocated income and expenses
Finance income 10,264 13,060
Other income 45,708 36,800
Administrating expenses (154,527) (139,518)
Share of gain (loss) from investment

in associated company (2,328) 1,603

Profit before income tax expense 407,073 410,244
Income tax expense (83,545) (82,238)
Profit for the year 323,528 328,006

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

For the year ended 31 December

Manufacture and Hire of printing Investing in
sale of caps sheets for can properties Total

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Revenue
Local 1,993,600 1,921,700 162,036 157,120 1,273 50,041 2,156,809 2,128,861
Export 687,150 702,083 - - - - 687,150 702,083
Total revenue 2,680,650 2,623,783 162,036 157,120 1,273 50,041 2,843,959 2,830,944
Operating results
Segment profit 484,134 421,007 22,549 27,251 1273 50,041  507.056 498,299
Unallocated income and expenses
Finance income 10,264 13,060
Other income 45,708 36,800
Administrating expenses (154,527) (139,518)
Profit before income tax expense 409,401 408,641
Income tax expense (83,545) (82,238)
Profit for the year 325,856 326,403
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The Company mainly operated in Thailand, with sales derived from both local and foreign markets as reflected in

above table. All of non-current assets, except for investment in associated company are located in Thailand.

For the year 2015,the Company has revenue from three major customers in amount of Baht 1,032 million, arising from

sales of caps segment (2014: Baht 1,043 million derived from three major customers, arising from sales of caps segment).

26. Provident fund

The Company and its employees have jointly established a provident fund in accordance with the Provident Fund Act
B.E. 2530. Employees contribute to the fund monthly at the rate of 5% of their salaries, and the Company contributes
at rates of 5%-10% of the employees’ salaries. For employees who joined the fund before 1 January 2003, the
Company has to pay extra contributions when their length of service reaches 7 years and 10 years. The fund, which is
managed by Kasikorn Asset Management Company Limited, will be paid to the employees upon termination in
accordance with the fund rules. The contributions for the year 2015 amounting to approximately Baht 18 million (2014:

Baht 17 million) were recognised as expense.

27. Dividends paid

Total Dividend per Dividend per
Approved by dividends  preferred share  ordinary share
(Thousand (Baht) (Baht)
Baht)
Final dividends for 2013 Annual General Meeting of
shareholders on 22 April
2014 93,600 3.25 1.75
Total dividends declared in 2014 93,600 3.25 1.75
Final dividends for 2014 Annual General Meeting of
shareholders on 27 April
2015 93,600 3.25 1.75
Total dividends declared in 2015 93,600 3.25 1.75

A Baht 1,050 of the dividend, which was declared in each years, was for shareholders who have no right to receive
dividend, and a Baht 93,598,932 has actually been paid.
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28. Commitments
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Company has the following outstanding commitments.

a) The Company has commitments, which mature within one year, to local and overseas suppliers under

purchase orders for raw materials, spare parts and service hiring, and capital expenditures, as follows.

(Unit: Million)
31 December 2015
Purchase orders Purchase orders
Foreign Purchase orders for spare parts for capital
Currency for raw materials  and service hiring expenditures Total
Baht 157 20 35 212
US dollar 1 - - 1
Japanese yen - 9 - 9
(Unit: Million)
31 December 2014
Purchase orders Purchase orders
Foreign Purchase orders for spare parts for capital
Currency for raw materials ~ and service hiring expenditures Total
Baht 162 14 29 205
US dollar 1 - - 1
Japanese yen - 12 - 12
Euro - - 2 2

b) The Company has bank guarantees of Baht 10 million (2014: Baht 8 million)issued by a bank on behalf of the
Company. Letters of guarantees are to guarantee electricity usage of Baht 9.5 million and the purchase-sell

agreements with a state agency of Baht 0.5 million.

29. Financial instruments
29.1 Financial risk management

The Company’s financial instruments, as defined under Thai Accounting Standard No. 107 “Financial Instruments:
Disclosure and Presentations”, principally comprise cash and cash equivalents, current investments, trade and other
receivables, trade and other payables. The financial risks associated with these financial instruments and how they are

managed is described below.

a) Credit risk

The Company is exposed to credit risk primarily with respect to trade and other receivables. The Company
manages the risk by adopting appropriate credit control policies and procedures and therefore does not expect
to incur material financial losses. In addition, the Company does not have high concentration of credit risk since
it has a large customer base. The maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amounts of

receivables as stated in the statements of financial position.
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b) Interest rate risk

The Company’s exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to its deposits at financial institutions. However,
since most of the financial assets and liabilities bear floating interest rates or fixed interest rates which are close
to the market rate, the interest rate risk is expected to be minimal.

Significant financial assets and liabilities classified by type of interest rate are summarised in the table below,
with those financial assets and liabilities that carry fixed interest rates further classified based on the maturity
date, or the repricing date if this occurs before the maturity date.

(Million Baht)

Financial statements in which equity method is applied /
Separate financial statements
31 December 2015

Fixed
interestrates
maturity within ~ Floating Non-interest
1 year interest rates bearing Total Interest rate
(% per annum)
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 454 35 10 499 0.04-1.50
Current investments 210 - - 210 1.85-2.03
Trade and other
receivables - - 406 406
664 35 416 1,115
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables - - 374 374

- - 374 374

(Million Baht)

Financial statements in which equity method is applied /
Separate financial statements
31 December 2014

Fixed
interestrates Floating
maturity within interest Non-interest
1 year rates bearing Total Interestrate
(% per annum)
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 438 17 - 455 0.05-2.65
Current investments 40 - - 40 2.40
Trade and other
receivables - - 437 437
478 17 437 932
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables - - 394 394

- - 394 394
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) Foreign currency risk

The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk arises mainly from trading transactions that are denominated
in foreign currencies. The Company seeks to reduce this risk by entering into forward exchange contracts

when it considers appropriate. Generally, the forward contracts mature within one year.

The balances of financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are summarised below.

31 December 2015

Financial
Foreign currency Financial assets liabilities Average exchange rate
(Million) (Million) (Baht per 1 foreign currency unit)
US dollar - 1 35.95
Japanese yen - 39 0.30

31 December 2014

Financial
Foreign currency Financial assets liabilities Average exchange rate
(Million) (Million) (Baht per 1 foreign currency unit)
US dollar 4 3 32.90
Japanese yen - 40 0.28

Forward exchange contracts outstanding are summarised below.

31 December 2015

Foreign currency  Sold amount Contractual exchange rate Contractual maturity date
(Million) (Baht per 1 foreign currency unit)
US dollar 0.83 35.42 - 36.13 3 February 2016 -

17 September 2016

31 December 2014

Foreign currency  Sold amount Contractual exchange rate Contractual maturity date
(Million) (Baht per 1 foreign currency unit)
US dollar 2 31.89-33.11 8 January 2015 -
6 July 2015

29.2 Fair value of financial instruments

Since the majority of the Company’s financial instruments are short-term in nature or bear floating interest rates, their

fair value is not expected to be materially different from the amounts presented in the statements of financial position.
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30. Fair value hierarchy

31.

32.

33.
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As at 31 December 2015, the Company had the assets and liabilities that were measured at fair value using different

levels of inputs as follows:

(Unit: Million Baht)

Financial statements in which equity method is applied /

Separate financial statements

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets measured at fair value
Investment properties - 468 6 474
Land - 99 - 99
Liabilities for which fair value are disclosed
Foreign currency forward contracts - 30 - 30

Capital management

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it has appropriate capital structure
in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value. As at 31 December 2015, the Company's
debt-to-equity ratio was 0.23:1 (2014: 0.27:1).

Event after the reporting period

On 22 February 2016, the meeting of the Company’s Board of Directors passed a resolution to propose to the Annual
General Meeting of shareholders to be held in April 2016 to adopt a resolution to pay a dividend of Baht1.75 per share
for ordinary shareholders and Baht 3.25 per share for preferred shareholders, or a total of Baht 94 million, to the
shareholders in respect of the 2015 profit. Such dividend will be paid and recorded after it is approved by the Annual

General Meeting of the Company’s shareholders.

Approval of financial statements

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 22 February 2016.
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Our Products

1. Crown cap

is a bottle closure made from pressed steel sheet (tin free steel, tin plated steel) lined with liner to prevent
leakage. Once closed, Crown cap preserves the original content quality with an excellent sealing performance. Crown
cap is used for carbonated drink, beer, soda, and soymilk and fruit juice.

2. Pilfer - Proof (PP Cap)

is a screw cap developed to protect against pilferage. It is made by pressing aluminuim sheet into cylindrical
shape, perforated (between the body and flare) and lined. PP cap is rust-proof, easy to open, can be recapped if
the content is not wholly consumed. Pilfer-Proof cap is suitable for carbonated drink, health drink, spirit and medicine.

3. Maxi crown

is a bottle closure made from pressed and scored tin free steel shell. The score is developed for easy opening
by simply pulling the attached ring. This closure gives a perfect and pilferage. Maxi crown is recapping for non
refrigerate product.

4. Maxi cap

is a bottle closure made from aluminium sheet pressed into one piece, scored and lined. Apart from the same
general characteristic as Maxi crown, Maxi cap made of aluminium, is rust-proof and more suitable for product kept
in high humidity or being wet for a period of time. Maxi cap is used for drinking water, beer, and spirit and fruit juice.

5 Maxi - P
is a bottle closure made from scored aluminium shell. The general characteristic is the same as Maxi cap except
the pulling ring is made of plastic instead of aluminium. Maxi-P used for drinking water, beer, spirit and fruit juice.

6. Plastic cap

is a screw cap made from plastic resin which is molded into shape. The inside is designed either with or without
liner material to prevent leakage. The cap has knurls around the side for easy opening, it can recap after used. Now
Plastic cap is used in many products upon customer’s requirement

7. Composite cap

is a closure comprised of two parts, the shell formed by plastic resin and metal top panel. Composite cap is
designed for product with Retort Sterilization process and suitable for Chicken Essence, Bird’s Nest or other premium
grade products.

8. Hand - crowner
The hand-crowner is specially designed to crimp crown caps tightly, it is efficient in protecting the product inside.
The hand-crowner is easy to use and can be hand carried.

9. Maxi - crimping machine
A Single-hand, pneumatic Maxi crimping machine can be used to crimp either Maxi series. It is designed with

high technology to achieve utmost sealing performance.

For sales please contact: Tel(662) 533 0450-9
Domestic sales ext550 or Export sales ext557, Fax.(662) 974 115
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